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Certain information required by Part III of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference to the Registrant's proxy statement
for the 2019 Annual Stockholders Meeting, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within
120 days after the end of the fiscal year to which this Report relates.
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SPECIAL CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Report on Form 10-K and the documents incorporated herein by reference, as well as our other public documents
and statements our officers and representatives may make from time to time, contain forward-looking statements
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. These statements are therefore entitled to the protection of the safe harbor
provisions of these laws. These forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties, and relate to future events
or our future financial or operating performance. The forward-looking statements include all statements other than
statements of historical fact, including, without limitation, all statements regarding:
our estimates of our financial results for the quarter ending March 31, 2019, and all other estimates regarding
the quarter ending March 31, 2019;
our strategies and plans for our retail business and our Medici businesses, including our tZERO initiatives;
the possibility that we will sell or attempt to sell our retail business or pursue or attempt to pursue one or more other
strategic alternatives that could change our business dramatically, as well as the possibility that we will determine not
to sell or attempt to sell our retail business or pursue any other strategic alternative at all in the foreseeable future;
the possibility that we may sell our retail business and all statements about the potential effects of any such sale;
whether we would or would not submit any sale of our retail business to a vote of our stockholders;
whether we would or would not distribute any proceeds of any sale of our retail business to our stockholders by any
means or use those proceeds in our blockchain initiatives;
our expectations regarding the costs, benefits and risks of Medici Ventures' and tZERO's initiatives, including their
acquisitions or purchases of interests in other companies;
potential negotiated equity investments in Overstock and/or tZERO;

the plans of tZERO and Medici Ventures and the costs, benefits and risks of their initiatives, including those of

tZERO's ownership of SpeedRoute and PRO Securities;
our expectations regarding the costs, benefits and risks of the recently-completed tZERO security token offering;
our expectations regarding the costs, benefits and risks of our efforts and plans to advertise or offer other additional
businesses, innovations and projects that we or our subsidiaries may engage in, offer or advertise in the future;
our expectations regarding Medici Land Governance Inc., a newly-formed public benefit corporation;
our efforts to improve our natural search results in our retail business;
our future operating or financial results, or other GAAP or non-GAAP financial measures or amounts or anticipated
changes in any of them;
our capital requirements and our ability to fund them;
the adequacy of our liquidity and our ability, if any, to increase our liquidity or capital resources;
¢ZERO's plans, including without limitation its plans regarding its Token Trading Systems;
our plans and expectations regarding the costs, benefits, and risks of attempting to develop technology applications
tncluding applications using or relating to blockchain technology and our plans to commercialize any of these
potential applications;
the competition we currently face and anticipate;
the effects of current and future government regulation;
our expectations for our international sales efforts and the anticipated results of our international operations;
our plans for further changes to our business;
our expectations regarding our emphasis on home and garden product offerings;
our expectations regarding our potential liabilities or exposure to claims under Delaware's Abandoned Property Law;
our expectations regarding the actual costs of our employees' health insurance claims for which we may be liable; and
our other statements about the anticipated benefits and risks of our business and plans.
Further, in some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as may, will, could, should,
likely, expect, plan, seek, intend, anticipate, project, believe, estimate, predict, potential, goal, strategy, future or
continue, the negative of such terms or other comparable terminology. These statements are only predictions. Actual
events or results may differ materially from those contemplated by our forward-looking statements for a variety of
reasons, including among others:
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any changes we may make to our business as a result of our current ongoing review of potential strategic alternatives,
which could involve a sale of our retail business and/or additional equity or debt financings;
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the possibility that we may sell our retail business and retain the after-tax proceeds of the sale for use in our
blockchain initiatives, which would result in our stockholders owning equity interests in a publicly-held corporation
seeking to develop entirely new businesses and revenue streams, without the benefits of our current retail business and
the approximately $1.8 billion it generates in annual net revenues, but with most if not all of the expenses of operating
a publicly-held corporation;
the potentially substantial corporate level income tax expense we could incur if we were to sell our retail business in a
taxable transaction;
the possibility that our well-publicized review of potential strategic alternatives including the potential sale of our
retail business may distract our management and other employees, may cause members of our management and/or
other key employees to seek employment elsewhere, and may have adverse effects on our business and financial
results;
the technical, operational, financial, regulatory, legal, reputational, marketing and other obstacles we face in trying to
create a profitable business from our blockchain initiatives;
our ability to reach a definitive agreement or complete a capital raising transaction for tZERO on the terms
contemplated by the previously-disclosed memorandum of understanding we recently signed with GSR Capital and
Makara Capital;

the possibility that the proceeds of the security token offering recently completed by tZERO might be treated as

income to us for federal income tax purposes;
difficulties we have encountered and continue to encounter with changes that Google has made to its natural search
engine algorithms, which have periodically resulted in lower rankings of our products and may continue to do so, and
future changes that Google and other search engine companies may make to their natural search engine algorithms,
which may have similar effects on us;
increasing competition, including from Amazon, from well funded companies willing to incur substantial losses in
order to build market share, and from others including competitors with delivery capabilities that we cannot currently
match and do not expect to be able to match in the foreseeable future;
difficulties we may encounter in connection with our efforts to offer services to our customers outside of our retail
business;

difficulties, including expense and any operational or regulatory issues we may encounter in connection with
tZERO or its subsidiaries;

technical, operational, regulatory or other difficulties we may encounter with our Medici or tZERO blockchain and
financial technology initiatives, including any difficulties we may have marketing any products or services tZERO
may offer, whether due to lack of market size or acceptance or as a result of competition from any of the numerous
competitors seeking to develop competing technologies or systems or as a result of patents that may be granted to
other companies or persons, and losses we may continue to incur in connection with our Medici and tZERO
blockchain and technology initiatives;
the difficulties tZERO will face in attempting to generate revenues from blockchain-based applications of any nature,
including its potential DLR software product;
impairment charges we may recognize with respect to assets or businesses that we, Medici Ventures or tZERO have
acquired or may acquire;
any liability or expense we may incur as a result of our interests in other companies, whether as a result of regulatory
issues or otherwise;
any downturn in the U.S. housing industry or other changes in U.S. and global economic conditions or U.S. consumer
spending;
the imposition of tariffs or occurrence of other factors that increase the price of importing into the U.S. the types of
merchandise we sell in our retail business;
modifications we may make to our business model from time to time;
the mix of products purchased by our customers and changes to that mix;
any claims we may face regarding cyber security issues or data breaches or difficulties we encounter regarding
dnternet or other infrastructure or communications impairment problems or the costs of preventing or responding to
any such problems;
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any problems with or affecting our payment card processors, including cyber-attacks, Internet or other infrastructure
©or communications impairment or other events that could interrupt the normal operation of the payment card
processors or any difficulties we may have maintaining compliance with the rules of the payment card processors;
the possibility that we will be unable to raise additional capital or obtain financing adequate to enable us to continue

our operations;
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problems with or affecting the facility where substantially all of our computer and communications hardware is
{ocated or other problems that result in the unavailability of our Website or reduced performance of our transaction
systems;
any losses or issues we may encounter as a consequence of accepting or holding bitcoin or other cryptocurrencies,
whether as a result of regulatory, tax or other legal issues, technological issues, value fluctuations, lack of widespread
adoption of bitcoin or other cryptocurrencies as an acceptable medium of exchange or otherwise;
any difficulties we may encounter as a result of our reliance on numerous third parties that we do not control for the
performance of critical functions material to our business;
difficulties we may encounter in connection with our efforts to emphasize our home and garden product
offerings and to brand ourselves as a home and garden shopping destination, including the risk that our sales of
home and garden product offerings could decrease substantially as a result of a significant downturn in some or
all of the U.S. housing market;
difficulties we may encounter in connection with our efforts to expand internationally, including claims we may face
and liabilities we may incur in connection with those efforts;
adverse results in legal proceedings, investigations or other claims;
any difficulties we may have optimizing our warehouse operations;
any decrease in the volume of retail sales, particularly in home goods, and the occurrence of any event that would
adversely affect e-commerce or discourage or prevent consumers from shopping online or via mobile apps;
the possibility that our liability for our employees' health insurance claims increases as a result of more claims or
larger claims than we expect and/or increases in the costs of healthcare generally; and
the other risks described in this report or in our other public filings.

In evaluating all forward-looking statements, you should specifically consider the risks outlined above and in this
Report, especially under the headings "Risk Factors," "Legal Proceedings," and "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations." These factors may cause our actual results to differ
materially from those contemplated by any forward-looking statement. Although we believe that our expectations
reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee or offer any assurance of future
results, levels of activity, performance or achievements or other future events.

Our forward-looking statements contained in this report speak only as of the date of this report and, except as required
by law, we undertake no obligation to update forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances occurring
after the date of this report or any changes in our expectations or any change in any events, conditions or
circumstances on which any of our forward-looking statements are based.
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PART 1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

The following description of our business contains forward-looking statements relating to future events or our
future financial or operating performance that involve risks and uncertainties, as set forth above under "Special Note
Regarding Forward-Looking Statements." Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these
forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors described in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including
those set forth above in the Special Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements or in Section 1A under
the heading "Risk Factors" or elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Introduction

We are an online retailer and advancer of blockchain technology. Through our online retail business, we offer a broad
range of price-competitive products, including furniture, home decor, bedding and bath, and housewares, among other
products. We sell our products and services through our Internet websites located at www.overstock.com, www.o.co
and www.o.biz (referred to collectively as the "Website"). Although our three websites are located at different domain
addresses, the technology and equipment and processes supporting the Website and the process of order fulfillment
described herein are the same for all three websites. Our retail business initiatives are described in more detail below
under "Our Retail Business."

Our Medici business initiatives seek to develop and advance the concepts of "Government as a Service" and a
"Technology Stack for Civilization" by creating or fostering a set of products and solutions that leverage the
transparency and immutability of blockchain technology to generate efficiencies and increase security and control in
six areas of civilizational necessity: identity management, property rights and management, central banking and
currencies, capital markets, supply chains and commerce, and voting systems. Our Medici business initiatives include
our wholly-owned subsidiary, Medici Ventures, Inc. ("Medici Ventures"), which conducts the majority of its business
through its majority-owned subsidiary tZERO Group, Inc. ("tZERQO"), formerly t@.com, Inc., a financial technology
company pursuing potential financial applications of blockchain technologies as well as non-blockchain businesses.
Medici Ventures currently holds minority equity interests in several technology companies whose focuses include the
areas mentioned above. Our Medici business initiatives are described in more detail below under "Our Medici
Business" and our tZERO business initiatives are described in more detail below under "Our tZERO Business
Initiatives."

We are considering a range of potential transactions, including a sale of our retail business and additional equity or
debt financings. Our Board of Directors continually discusses a variety of potential strategic and financial options and
other changes to our business, but has not approved or made any determination to consummate any strategic
transaction, and may not do so in the foreseeable future or at all. Our strategic initiatives are described in more detail
below under “Strategic Initiatives.”

Our company, based near Salt Lake City, Utah, was founded in 1997. We launched our initial website in March 1999
and were re-incorporated in Delaware in 2002. As used herein, "Overstock," "Overstock.com,"”, "O.co," "we," "our"
and similar terms include Overstock.com, Inc. and our majority-owned subsidiaries, unless the context indicates

otherwise.
Our Retail Business

Our retail business generates nearly all of our net revenues. In our retail business, our goal is to provide goods to
furnish and accessorize "dream homes" for our target customers—consumers who seek quality, stylish merchandise at
bargain prices. At December 31, 2018, we offered 4.9 million products (8.9 million SKUs), of which over 99% were
in-line products (products in active production), including more than 25,000 private label products offered under
eleven private label brands. We believe that the furniture and home goods market, which is highly fragmented and has

10



Edgar Filing: OVERSTOCK.COM, INC - Form 10-K

traditionally been served by brick and mortar stores, will continue transitioning to online sales, particularly as
Millennial consumers (which we define as those aged 20-36), who are generally comfortable shopping online, start
families and move into new homes. We regularly change our product assortment to meet the evolving preferences of
our customers and current trends. Our products include, among others, furniture, home décor including rugs, bedding
and bath, home improvement, and kitchen items. We compete primarily based on:

Quality customer experience with an emphasis on price, value, and a wide assortment of products delivered in a
personalized format with the convenience of our mobile app, and with the benefits of our award-winning customer
care;

Proprietary technologies which we believe help us provide our customers with a quality shopping experience;

6
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Logistics capabilities tailored to the furniture and home goods category and developed over our many years of
e-commerce experience;

{.ong-term mutually beneficial relationships with our partners, which currently number approximately 4,000; and
Our Club O Loyalty Program, which we believe increases customer engagement and retention.

For 2018, nearly all our retail sales through our Website were from transactions in which we fulfilled orders through
our network of approximately 4,000 third-party manufacturers, distributors and other suppliers ("partners") selling on
our Website. Our use of the term "partner” does not mean that we have formed any legal partnerships with any of our
retail partners. We provide our partners with access to a large customer base and convenient services for order
fulfillment, customer service, returns handling, and other services. Our supply chain allows us to ship directly to our
customers from our suppliers or from our warehouses. Our retail sales also include direct sales of our own inventory
shipped from our warehouses. Our warehouses primarily fulfill orders from direct sales of our own inventory,
including some customer returns of partner products. Our warehouses generally ship between 1,500 and 3,000
packages per day and up to approximately 6,000 packages per day during peak periods.

During the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 our sales were almost entirely to customers located in the
United States and no single customer accounted for more than 1% of our total net revenue.

Additional Offerings

We offer additional products or services that may complement our primary retail offerings, but are not significant to
our retail revenues.

Our international business where we offer products to customers outside the United States using third party logistics
providers;

.Worldstock Fair Trade, a store within our Website that offers handcrafted products made by artisans all over the
world to help improve the lives of people in emerging economies;

Pet Adoptions, a free service and portal within our Website that leverages our technology to display pets available for
adoption from shelters across the United States;

pverstock Hotels, portal within our Website that enables customers to search and book hundreds of thousands of
properties worldwide, including big box brands, modern boutiques, and more;

Supplier Oasis, a single integration point through which our partners can manage their products, inventory and sales
channels, and also obtain multi-channel fulfillment services through our distribution network; and

Businesses advertising products or services on our Website.

Manufacturer, Distributor, and Supplier Relationships

To the extent possible we maintain manufacturer, distributor, and supplier relationships, and seek new manufacturer,
distributor, and supplier relationships, and also use our working capital, to ensure a continuous allotment of product
offerings for our customers. Generally, our manufacturers, distributors, or suppliers regularly communicate to us the
quantity of products that are held in reserve for us, but our arrangements with them generally do not guarantee the
availability of those products for a set duration. Our manufacturer, distributor, and supplier relationships are based on
historical experience and are generally non-exclusive and we retain the right to select and change our suppliers at our
discretion. Generally, manufacturers, distributors, and suppliers do not control the terms under which products are
sold through our Website.

Sales and Marketing

We use a variety of methods to target our retail consumer audience, including online campaigns, such as advertising
through keywords, product listing ads, display ads, search engines, affiliate marketing programs, social coupon
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websites, portals, banners, e-mail, direct mail, and viral and social media campaigns. We also do brand advertising
through television, radio, print ads, and event sponsorships.

Customer Service
We are committed to providing superior customer service. We staff our customer service department with dedicated

in-house and outsourced professionals who respond to phone, instant online chat, and e-mail inquiries on products,
ordering, shipping status, returns, and other areas of customer inquiry.

13
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Technology

We use our internally developed Website and a combination of proprietary technologies and commercially available
licensed technologies and solutions to support our retail operations. We use the services of multiple
telecommunications companies to obtain connectivity to the Internet. Currently, our primary computer infrastructure
is located in a data center in Utah. We also have other data centers which we use for backups, redundancy,
development, testing, disaster recovery, and corporate systems infrastructure.

Competition

Internet retail is intensely competitive and has relatively low barriers to entry. We believe that competition in this
industry is based predominantly on:

price;

product quality and assortment;
shopping convenience;

website organization and load speed;
order processing and fulfillment;

order delivery time;

customer service;

website functionality on mobile devices;
brand recognition; and

brand reputation.

We compete with other online retailers, traditional retailers, and liquidation "brokers" which may specifically adopt
our methods and target our customers. We currently or potentially compete with a variety of companies that can be
divided into several broad categories:

online discount general retailers;

online private sale sites;

online specialty retailers;

online liquidators;

online retailers who have or are developing significant "brick and mortar" capabilities; and

traditional general merchandise and specialty retailers and liquidators, many of which have a significant online
presence.

Many of our current and potential e-commerce competitors have greater brand recognition, longer operating histories,
larger customer bases, and significantly greater financial, marketing, and other resources than we do. Further, any of
them may enter into strategic or commercial relationships with larger, more established and well-financed companies,
including exclusive distribution arrangements with our vendors or service suppliers that could deny us access to key
products or needed services, or acquisitions of our suppliers or service providers, having the same effect. Many of
them do or could devote greater resources to marketing and promotional campaigns and devote substantially more
resources to their website and systems development than we do. Many have supply chain operations that decrease
product shipping times to their customers, have options for in-store product pick-up, allow in-store returns, or offer
other delivery and returns options that we do not have. New technologies, the continued enhancement of existing
technologies, developments in related areas such as same-day product deliveries, and the development of proprietary
delivery systems increase competitive pressures on us.

Seasonality

14



Edgar Filing: OVERSTOCK.COM, INC - Form 10-K

Our retail business is affected by seasonality because of the holiday season, which historically has resulted in higher
sales volume during our fourth quarter, which ends December 31. We recognized 24.8%, 26.2%, and 29.2% of our
annual revenue during the fourth quarter of 2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively. While we had lower sales volume
during Q4 2018, we anticipate the trend of higher sales volume during our fourth quarter to continue for the
foreseeable future.

Financial Information about Business Segments and Geographic Areas

As described further in Item 15 of Part IV, "Financial Statements"—Note 21. Business Segments, contained in the
"Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we determined our segments
based on how we manage our business, which, in our view, consists primarily of our Retail and Medici businesses.

Our Retail business is a

8
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reportable segment. As described below, our Medici business is comprised of many components or operating
segments, including our tZERO reportable segment. We use pre-tax net income (loss) as the measure to determine our
reportable segments. As a result, tZERO is the only reportable segment of our Medici business as it is quantitatively
significant. The remaining Medici business operating segments are not significant and are included in Other. See

Item 15 of Part IV, "Financial Statements"—Note 21. Business Segments for information regarding our business
segments and geographical areas.

Intellectual Property and Trade Secrets

We regard our domain names and other intellectual property as critical to our success. Included in our intellectual
property is some of the financial technology we have developed as part of our Medici initiatives. We rely on a
combination of laws and contractual restrictions with our employees, customers, suppliers, affiliates, and others to
establish and protect our proprietary rights, including the law pertaining to trade secrets.

Our Medici Business

In late 2014, we began working on initiatives to develop and advance blockchain technologies. We pursue these
initiatives through our wholly-owned subsidiary, Medici Ventures and its majority-owned subsidiary tZERO. These
initiatives remain in the start-up phase, and neither Medici Ventures nor tZERO has generated significant revenues
from any blockchain-based technology or application of blockchain technology. As of December 31, 2018, we have
spent approximately $209.6 million in our Medici business since its inception, with the majority of that being spent in
tZERO.

Medici Ventures

Medici Ventures' strategy is to develop and advance the concepts of "Government as a Service" and a "Technology
Stack for Civilization" by creating or fostering a set of products and solutions that leverage blockchain technology to
generate efficiencies and increase security and control in six areas of civilizational necessity: identity management,
property rights and management, central banking and currencies, capital markets, supply chains and commerce, and
voting systems. A blockchain is a cryptographically secured, distributed infrastructure, or network, which may be
accessed and, in some cases, maintained by each member of the network. Medici Ventures has a team of
approximately 37 software engineers, developers and other technologists who work in blockchain development and
deployment and enterprise level software development and deployment. Medici Ventures provides the services of its
software engineers, developers, or other technologists to other blockchain companies. Medici Ventures also owns
strategic minority equity interests in several blockchain-related companies, each of which focuses on at least one of
the Government as a Service areas mentioned above. Medici Ventures takes an active interest in and holds seats on the
boards of some of these companies. These companies include technology companies whose focuses include
commercial blockchain applications for identity and social media, property and land, money and banking, capital
markets, supply chain, and voting. All of the companies in which Medici Ventures holds strategic equity interests are
startup businesses, businesses in the development stage, or businesses with a short operating history. The majority of
Medici Ventures' business is its 80% interest in tZERO, which, as described below, is a financial technology company
pursuing potential financial applications for blockchain technologies.

See "Risk Factors-Additional Risks Relating to Our Medici Business."

tZERO

Medici Ventures' majority-owned subsidiary tZERO is a financial technology company pursuing potential financial
applications of blockchain technologies as well as non-blockchain businesses. tZERO has a team of approximately 50

software engineers, developers and other technologists who focus on developing and exploring opportunities for novel
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applications of blockchain technology. As a result of its early stage of development, tZERO has not yet generated
revenue from any commercially available blockchain-based applications. tZERO is currently involved in, among other
things, the following:

Blockchain Services - Token Trading Systems. In connection with Overstock's 2016 SEC-registered offering of
Blockchain Voting Series A Preferred Stock (the "Series A Preferred"), tZERO developed a suite of software and
technologies referred to as the tZERO Issuance and Trading Platform (the "tZERO Platform"). The Series A Shares
trade exclusively on the PRO Securities ATS, which utilizes the tZERO Platform. tZERO has been leveraging its
experience and expertise from developing the tZERO Platform for the Series A Preferred to develop trading systems
that are capable of trading tZERO's Preferred Equity Tokens ("tZERO Security Tokens"), issued in a private
placement completed in October 2018, and, ultimately, other issuer's digital securities (such systems, the "Token
Trading Systems"). First, in January 2019, the PRO Securities ATS, utilizing the tZERO Platform, partnering with
Dinosaur Financial Group, LLC ("Dino") and Electronic Transaction Clearing, Inc. ("ETC"), each

9
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SEC-registered broker-dealers and FINRA members, began facilitating private placement resales of tZERO Security
Tokens to accredited investors in reliance upon an exemption from registration under Section 4(a)(7) of the Securities
Act. Second, in June 2018, tZERO and BOX Digital Markets LLC ("BOX Digital") announced that they had entered
into a joint venture, named Boston Security Token Exchange LLC, intended to develop a U.S. national securities
exchange (the "Exchange") with regulatory approvals that would enable the Exchange to trade digital securities. The
Exchange will require approval from the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission prior to beginning operations.
tZERO is creating the necessary technology, and will manage the ongoing technology implementation, administration,
maintenance and support. BOX Digital is providing executive leadership and regulatory expertise. Subject to
obtaining SEC approval, tZERO and Box Digital intend for the Exchange to operate as a facility of BOX Options
Exchange, an existing registered U.S. securities exchange. We have been informed that the management of the joint
venture continues to work with the Staff of the SEC, and anticipates filing the proposed trading rules of the Exchange
in the second quarter of 2019. The commencement of operations of the Exchange would be subject to approval by the
SEC of the trading rules and other matters. tZERO continues to explore the viability of other Token Trading Systems,
any of which may be developed as an additional functionality of the PRO Securities ATS, as a functionality of another
U.S. alternative trading system, as a functionality of a non-U.S. trading system or a non-U.S. exchange that tZERO
may operate or designate, or any other format, wherever situated.

tZERO Preferred Equity Tokens. tZERO issued the tZERO Security Tokens on October 12, 2018, and in January
2019, tZERO began secondary trading of tZERO security tokens by accredited investors using digital securities

brokerage accounts at Dino, which is serving as the introducing broker-dealer in connection with the PRO Securities
ATS.

Blockchain Services - Digital Locate Receipts ("DLR") software. The "digital locate receipt” software (the
"DLR Software") is currently in customer production testing, which is being conducted by a third party, and
tZERO has not yet entered into any commercial licenses with any licensees. The DLR Software is intended
to help broker-dealer licensees with stock inventory to both load and manage their inventory in order to
assist short sellers of public securities in establishing that they have located available shares in the U.S.
public securities market prior to effecting short sales. The DLR Software is intended to enable licensees to

. create a blockchain-based record of the shares that the licensee has made available for "locates" using
customizable DLR Software functionality and of the daily purchases of the right to "locate" specifically
identified shares for purposes of compliance with regulatory requirements. The broker-dealer licensees of
DLR Software are the parties responsible for ensuring that locates issued using the DLR Software comply
with all applicable regulations, and the commercial viability of the DLR Software is dependent on the ability
of broker-dealer licensees to establish locates using the DLR Software as an effective means of satisfying
regulatory obligations in connection with effecting short sales.

Blockchain Services - Bitsy, Inc. Effective January 1, 2019, tZERO acquired 100% of the equity interest in Bitsy, Inc.
by purchasing the 67% equity interest in Bitsy held by Steve Hopkins, Medici Ventures' former chief operating officer
and general counsel, and current president of tZERO, and affiliates for $8.0 million in cash, and purchasing the
remaining 33% of the Bitsy common stock from Medici Ventures for a $4.0 million convertible promissory note due
December 31, 2020 and an assignment of certain intellectual property to Medici Ventures. In September 2018, Bitsy
announced that it had begun a limited beta launch of a digital wallet service intended to create a bridge between
traditional fiat currencies and cryptocurrencies.

Non-blockchain services - SpeedRoute and PRO Securities. tZERO wholly owns two registered broker-dealers,
SpeedRoute, LLC ("SpeedRoute") and PRO Securities, LLC ("PRO Securities"). SpeedRoute is an electronic,
agency only Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. ("FINRA")-registered broker-dealer that provides
connectivity for its customers to U.S. equity exchanges as well as off-exchange sources of liquidity such as dark
pools. All of SpeedRoute's customers are registered broker-dealers. SpeedRoute does not hold, own or sell securities.
PRO Securities is a FINRA-registered broker-dealer that owns and operates the PRO Securities alternative trading
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system (the "PRO Securities ATS"), which has filed a Form ATS with the Securities and Exchange Commission
("SEC") notifying the SEC of its activities as an alternative trading system, or ATS. The PRO Securities ATS is a
closed system available only to its broker dealer subscribers. PRO Securities does not accept orders from non-broker
dealers, nor does it hold, own or sell securities.

Non-blockchain services - Verify Investor, LLC. tZERO purchased 81.0% of Verify Investor, LLC, an accredited
.investor verification company, for $12 million in cash, in February 2018. Verify Investor, LLC, through its website
Verifylnvestor.com, provides a fast, easy, and cost-effective method of compliance for companies seeking to verify
their investors as accredited investors.

10
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tZERO is no longer offering automated investment advisory services through tZERO Advisors or electronic discount
trading through Muriel Siebert & Co., Inc. (Member: FINRA & SIPC) under the FinanceHub tab on our Website. On
January 18, 2019, tZERO sold its entire equity interest in StockCross Financial Services, Inc. to StockCross Financial
Services, Inc. and Muriel Siebert & Co., Inc. for an amount equal to our original purchase price.

In January 2019, tZERO obtained a patent from the United States Patent and Trademark Office for a system that can
take orders to trade “digital transactional items” such as securities, tokens, shares, cash, and other assets from broker
dealers and then translate the orders into crypto orders on a digital trading platform or exchange. The patent was
recently awarded and to date has not had any effects on tZERQO’s business. tZERO believes that the patent will assist in
protecting tZERQ's proprietary technologies as competitors begin to develop their own trading platforms.

In March 2019, we disclosed that we had executed a Memorandum of Understanding regarding a potential equity
investment of up to $100 million in tZERO to be co-led by GSR Capital and Makara Capital, subject to due diligence,
negotiation of binding contracts and regulatory approval. We are in continuing discussions regarding the potential
investment, but have not yet entered into any definitive agreement.

We believe that a number of organizations are or may be working to develop trading systems utilizing distributed
ledger or blockchain technologies or other novel technologies that may be competitive with tZERO's technology,
including its patented technology. Although it is difficult to obtain reliable information about blockchain activities by
companies that may be our competitors, they may include companies such as SharesPost, OpenFinance Network,
Templum Inc., Coinbase, KoreConX, Blocktrade AG, Smart Valor, the Nasdaq Stock Market, Intercontinental
Exchange, Circle, Ideanomics, CrowdEngine, Securitize, Harbor, Polymath, and other entities that are operating
trading venues offshore or otherwise structured in an effort to avoid aspects of U.S. regulation.

To the extent that tZERO attempts to market its DLR Software, tZERO would be competing with virtually all of the
largest broker dealers in the U.S., all of which have substantially greater resources than tZERO or Overstock, and
some of which may generate substantial revenues and profits from the existing firmly entrenched system.

SpeedRoute and Pro Securities compete with a large number of broker dealers, many of which are substantially larger
and have substantially greater financial resources than SpeedRoute, Pro Securities, tZERO or Overstock.

See "Risk Factors-Additional Risks Relating to Our tZERO Initiatives."
Strategic Initiatives

We have engaged Guggenheim Securities, LLC to help us identify and evaluate certain strategic initiatives. We are
considering a range of potential transactions, including a sale of our retail business and additional equity or debt
financings. Our Board of Directors continually discusses a variety of potential strategic and financial options and other
changes to our business, but has not approved or made any determination to consummate any strategic transaction,
and may choose not to do so in the foreseeable future or at all.

If we sell our retail business, the sale may not require approval by our stockholders under Delaware law. If we enter
into an agreement to sell our retail business and determine that no vote of our stockholders is required, we do not
expect to submit it to a vote. If we sell our retail business, we currently expect to retain all or substantially all of the

after-tax proceeds of the sale for use in our blockchain initiatives.

Legal and Regulatory Matters
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From time to time, we receive claims and become subject to regulatory investigations or other governmental actions,
consumer protection, employment, intellectual property, and other commercial litigation related to the conduct of our
business. We also prosecute lawsuits to enforce our legal rights. Regulatory investigations and other governmental
actions as well as any litigation may be costly and time consuming and can divert our management and key personnel
from our business operations. Regulatory investigations and other governmental actions as well as any such litigation
may result in significant damages, associated costs, or equitable remedies relating to the operation of our business.
Any such matters may materially harm our business, prospects, results of operations, financial condition, or cash
flows.

These matters and other types of claims could result in legal expenses, fines, adverse judgments or settlements and
increase the cost of doing business. They could also require us to change our business practices in expensive and
significant

11
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ways. In addition, litigation could result in interpretations of the law that may limit our current or future business,
require us to change our business practices, or otherwise increase our costs.

Additional litigation may be necessary in the future to enforce our intellectual property rights, to protect our trade
secrets, or to determine the validity and scope of the proprietary rights of others. Any litigation, regardless of outcome
or merit, could result in substantial costs and diversion of management and technical resources, any of which could
materially harm our business.

For further information, see (see Item 1A—"Risk Factors") and the information set forth under Item 15 of Part IV,
"Financial Statements"—Note 12. Commitments and Contingencies, Legal proceedings and contingencies, contained in
the "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Government Regulation

We are subject to a wide variety of laws, rules and regulations, some of which apply or may apply to us as a result of
our retail business, some of which apply or may apply to us as a result of our Medici business, and others of which
apply to us for other reasons, such as our status as a publicly held company or the places in which we sell certain types
or amounts of products. Our retail business is subject to general business regulations and laws, as well as regulations
and laws specifically governing the Internet, e-commerce, and other services we offer. Existing and future laws and
regulations may result in increasing expense and may impede our growth. Applicable and potentially applicable
regulations and laws include regulations and laws regarding taxation, privacy, data protection, pricing, content,
copyrights, distribution, mobile communications, electronic device certification, electronic waste, energy
consumption, environmental regulation, electronic contracts and other communications, competition, consumer
protection, employment, import and export matters, information reporting requirements, access to our services and
facilities, the design and operation of websites, health and sanitation standards, the characteristics and quality of
products and services, product labeling and unfair and deceptive trade practices.

Our efforts to expand our retail business outside of the U.S. expose us to foreign and additional U.S. laws and
regulations, including but not limited to, laws and regulations relating to taxation, business licensing or certification
requirements, advertising practices, online services, the use of cryptocurrency, the importation of specified or
proscribed items, importation quotas, consumer protection, intellectual property rights, consumer and data protection,
privacy, encryption, restrictions on pricing or discounts, and the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and other
applicable U.S. and foreign laws prohibiting corrupt payments to government officials and other third parties.

Our Medici and tZERO businesses are subject to general business regulations and laws, including some of those
described above, but are also affected by a number of other laws and regulations, including but not limited to, laws
and regulations relating to money transmitters and money services businesses, including the requirements of the
Financial Crimes Enforcement Network of the U.S. Department of the Treasury ("FinCEN"), cryptocurrencies, public
benefit corporations, provisions of various securities laws and other laws and regulations governing broker dealers,
alternative trading systems and national securities exchanges, anti-money laundering requirements,
know-your-customer requirements, record-keeping, reporting and capital and bonding requirements, and a variety of
other matters. Blockchain and distributed ledger platforms are recent technological innovations, and the regulation of
securities tokens and other digital assets is developing. In the U.S., the businesses that we are working to develop are
or may be subject to a wide variety of complex statutes and rules, most of which were implemented prior to the
development of these technologies, and it is sometimes unclear whether or how various statutes or regulations apply.

The Token Trading System launched in January 2019 is subject to or affected by numerous laws and regulations. The
Token Trading System relies on the PRO Securities ATS, which is subject to Regulation ATS as well as other
regulations, and which utilizes the tZERO Platform, partnering with broker-dealers that are also subject to regulation
by the SEC and FINRA, in order to facilitate private placement resales of tZERO Security Tokens to accredited
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investors in reliance upon an exemption from registration under Section 4(a)(7) of the Securities Act. The joint
venture that tZERO and BOX Digital announced in June 2018 is seeking regulatory approvals that would enable the
parties to operate a national securities exchange to trade security tokens. A national securities exchange, which will
require approval from the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission prior to beginning operations, will be subject to
provisions of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and regulation substantially greater than that applicable to tZERO's
current operations. In addition, depending on the digital assets traded, the U.S. Commodity Futures Trading
Commission may consider the assets to be commodities or derivatives and subject to additional regulation. Certain
aspects of our Medici business, including Bitsy's operations which were subsequently acquired by tZERO, are or may
be subject to the state and federal laws and regulations applicable to money service businesses, including the
requirements of FinCEN.
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See Item 1A—"Risk Factors—Additional Risks Relating to Our Medici Business" and "Additional Risks Relating to Our
tZERO Initiatives."

Employees

At December 31, 2018, we had approximately 2,060 full-time employees. We seasonally increase our workforce
during our fourth quarter to handle increased workload in both our warehouse and customer service operations. We
have never had a work stoppage and none of our employees are represented by a labor union. We consider our
employee relationships to be good. Competition for qualified personnel in our industry is intense, particularly for
software engineers and other technical staff.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following persons were executive officers of Overstock as of March 13, 2019:

Executive Officers Age Position

Patrick M. Byrne 56 Chief Executive Officer, President, and Director
Jonathan E. Johnson III 53 President of Medici Ventures, Inc. and Director
Saum Noursalehi 40 Chief Executive Officer of tZERO Group, Inc. and Director
Carter P. Lee 49  Chief Administrative Officer

Dave Nielsen 49  Chief Sourcing & Operations Officer

Gregory J. Iverson 43  Chief Financial Officer

John Paul "J.P." Knab 38 Chief Marketing Officer

Kamelia Aryafar 33  Chief Customer & Algorithms Officer

Nate F. Auwerda 38 Chief Technology Officer

Seth A. Moore 36 Chief Strategy Officer

Sumit Goyal 34 Chief Digital Officer

Dr. Patrick M. Byrne has served as our Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) and as a Director since
1999, President since May 2018, and as Chairman of the Board of Directors from 2001 through 2005 and 2006
through 2014. Dr. Byrne also served as the Chief Executive Officer of tZERO, a subsidiary of Overstock, from July
2015 through May 2018 and also has served as Co-chairman of the Board of Directors for tZERO since October 2017.
Dr. Byrne founded Overstock in 1999. From 1994 to the present, Dr. Byrne has served as a Manager of the Haverford
Group, an investment company and an affiliate of Overstock. Dr. Byrne holds a bachelor's degree in Chinese studies
from Dartmouth College, a master's degree from Cambridge University as a Marshall Scholar, and a doctorate in
philosophy from Stanford University.

Mr. Jonathan E. Johnson III has served as President of Medici Ventures since August 2016 and as a Director since
2013. Mr. Johnson also served as our Chairman of the Board of Directors from 2014 through 2017. Mr. Johnson
joined Overstock in 2002 and previously served as our President, Executive Vice Chairman, Acting Chief Executive
Officer, Senior Vice President, and General Counsel. Mr. Johnson holds a bachelor's degree in Japanese from
Brigham Young University and received his law degree from the J. Reuben Clark, Jr. Law School at Brigham Young
University.

Mr. Saum Noursalehi has served as the Chief Executive Officer of tZERO since May 2018. Mr. Noursalehi also
served as our President of Retail from August 2016 through May 2018 and as a Director since May 2017. Mr.
Noursalehi joined Overstock in 2005 and previously served as Chief Revenue Officer and Senior Vice President, Vice
President of OLabs, Vice President of Product Development, and held roles in website, mobile and search engine
optimization. Mr. Noursalehi holds a bachelor's degree in Computer Science from the University of Utah.
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Mr. Carter P. Lee has served as our Senior Vice President of Technology and People Care since 2015 and was
appointed as our Chief Administrative Officer during 2018. Mr. Lee joined Overstock in Overstock in 2001 and
previously served as Vice President of Technology Operations and held other roles including Director of Internal
Systems. Prior to joining Overstock, Mr. Lee was a Systems Engineer for Hospice of the Valley and Vice President of
Technology for Motherboard Discount Center in Phoenix, AZ.

Mr. Dave Nielsen joined Overstock as our Chief Sourcing and Operations Officer in October 2018, having returned to
Overstock after serving for three and half years as the Chief Executive Officer for Global Access. Mr. Nielsen
originally joined Overstock in 2009 and previously served as our Senior Vice President of Business Development,
Co-President, and Senior Vice
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President and General Merchandise Manager. Additionally, Mr. Nielsen also served as President and CEO of Old
Town Imports, LLC, and also held several leadership positions with Payless ShoeSource, Inc. Mr. Nielsen received
his bachelor's Degree in Business Management with an emphasis in Marketing from Brigham Young University.

Mr. Gregory J. Iverson (principal financial and accounting officer) joined Overstock as our Chief Financial Officer in
April 2018. Prior to joining Overstock, Mr. Iverson spent eleven years at Apollo Education Group, Inc. (AEG), a
global private-sector education company, culminating with his role as Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Iverson also served
as the Director of Financial Reporting at US Airways Group, Inc. (subsequently acquired by American Airlines), and
began his career in the audit and advisory practices of Arthur Andersen, LLP and Deloitte & Touche, LLP, in
Phoenix, Arizona. Mr. Iverson graduated with a B.S. in business from the University of Idaho and is a Certified Public
Accountant.

Mr. John Paul "J.P." Knab has served as our Senior Vice President of Marketing since March 2016, having returned to
Overstock after serving for one-year as the Senior Vice President of Marketing, Merchandising and Business
Development for U.S. Water Filters in St. Paul, Minnesota, and was appointed as our Chief Marketing Officer in
August 2018. Mr. Knab originally joined Overstock in 2005 and previously served as our Vice President of Marketing
and held other roles including Director of Merchandising and Director of Analytics. Mr. Knab holds an MBA with a
Marketing emphasis and a bachelor's degree in Finance from Brigham Young University.

Dr. Kamelia Aryafar has served as our Chief Algorithms Officer since September 2018. Dr. Aryafar joined Overstock
in 2017 and previously served as our Vice President, Head of Machine Learning, Data Science and Al, and Director of
Engineering. Dr. Aryafar transitioned from academia to the industry as a senior machine learning scientist and lead at
Etsy in 2013. Dr. Aryafar holds a Ph.D. and M.Sc. in computer science and machine learning from Drexel University
and has published several papers in scientific journals.

Mr. Nate F. Auwerda was appointed as our Chief Technology Officer in November 2018. Mr. Auwerda joined
Overstock in 2004 and previously served as Vice President of Technology, Senior Director of Technology, Director of
Website Operations, Senior Manager of IT Security & Infrastructure as well as various other positions.

Mr. Seth A. Moore was appointed as our Senior Vice President of Analytics in February 2017 and later appointed as
Senior Vice President of Strategy in December 2017, Chief of Staff to the CEO in October 2017, and later appointed
Chief Strategy Officer during 2018. Mr. Moore joined Overstock in 2006 and previously served as Vice President of
OLabs, Vice President of Analytics, and Vice President of Website Marketing. Mr. Moore holds a bachelor's degree in
Political Science from Brigham Young University.

Mr. Sumit Goyal was appointed as our Chief Digital Officer in November 2018. Mr. Goyal joined Overstock in 2011
and previously served as our Chief Technology Officer as well as various other positions in technology and software
development. Before joining Overstock.com, Mr. Goyal held software engineering and programmer positions at
eHarmony.com, eBay, Goldman Sachs, and IBM. Mr. Goyal holds a bachelor's degree in Computer Science from the
National Institute of Technology Kurukshetra.

None of our officers has an employment agreement or any specific term of office.
Available Information

We make our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and
amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, available free of charge through the Investor Relations section of our main website,
www.overstock.com, as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to,
the Securities and Exchange Commission. Our Internet Website and the information contained therein or connected
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thereto are not a part of or incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Please consider the following risk factors carefully. If any one or more of the following risks were to occur, it could
have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations, and the market
price of our securities could decrease significantly. Statements below to the effect that an event could or would harm
our business (or have an adverse effect on our business or similar statements) mean that the event could or would have
a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations, which in turn could
or would have a material adverse effect on the market price of our securities. Many of the risks we face involve more
than one type of risk. Consequently, you should read all of the risk factors below carefully before making any decision
to acquire or hold our common stock or preferred stock. Virtually all of the risks of holding our common stock are
also risks for holding our Series A Preferred Stock and our Series B Preferred Stock.

Holders of, and potential investors in, our Series A Preferred Stock should also read "Additional Risks Related
Primarily to our Series A Preferred Stock," and "Additional Risks Related to our Series A Preferred Stock and our
Series B Preferred Stock," below.

Holders of, and potential investors in, our Series B Preferred Stock should also read "Additional Risks Related to our
Series A Preferred Stock and our Series B Preferred Stock," below.

Holders of, and potential investors in, the tZERO Security Tokens issued by tZERO Group, Inc. should also read
"Additional Risks Related to our tZERO Security Tokens," below.

Any investment in our securities involves a high degree of risk. Investors should consider carefully the risks and
uncertainties described below, and all other information in this Form 10-K and in any reports we file with the SEC
after we file this Form 10-K, before deciding whether to purchase or hold our securities. Additional risks and
uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also become important factors that
may harm our business. The occurrence of any of the risks described in this Form 10-K could harm our business. The
trading price of our securities could decline due to any of these risks and uncertainties, and investors may lose part or
all of their investment.

Risks Relating to Our Company and to Our Current Review of Strategic Initiatives

We have a history of significant losses. If we do not achieve profitability or generate positive cash flow from
operations in the near future, our ability to continue in business will depend on our ability to raise additional capital,
obtain financing or monetize significant assets, and we may be unable to do so.

We have a history of significant losses and our losses have accelerated in recent years, particularly 2018, and we
expect to incur operating and net losses in the foreseeable future. Net cash used in operating activities were $138.9
million during 2018, and at December 31, 2018 our accumulated deficit was $458.9 million. Our losses have
accelerated in recent years, particularly in 2018, and we may not be able to achieve profitability promptly or at all. We
are working to improve the efficiency of our operations but may be unable to do so. Recent staff reductions we have
made and additional cost reductions we may implement in the future may adversely affect our business operations. If
we are unable to successfully manage our business while reducing our expenses, our ability to continue in business
could depend on our ability to raise sufficient additional capital, obtain sufficient financing, or sell or otherwise
monetize significant assets such as our corporate headquarters. We do not expect to be able to obtain significant debt
financing in the near future. Additionally, we may not be able to raise capital on acceptable terms or at all. The
occurrence of any of the foregoing risks would have a material adverse effect on our financial results, business and
prospects.

We have significant negative working capital.
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Our net working capital (current assets less current liabilities) was a negative $26.2 million at December 31, 2018
compared to a positive $50.5 million at December 31, 2017. Additionally, any significant declines in our revenues
could result in decreases in our working capital, which would further reduce our cash balances. Our failure to generate
sufficient revenues or profits or to obtain additional financing or raise additional capital could have a material adverse
effect on our operations and on our ability to meet our obligations as they become due. The occurrence of any of the
foregoing risks would have a material adverse effect on our financial results, business and prospects.
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We do not have access to any credit facility or other arrangement for borrowing funds.

We currently do not have access to a credit facility or to the proceeds of any mortgage indebtedness or other secured
or unsecured indebtedness for borrowed money. We may be unable to obtain financing on favorable terms, or at all.
Our lack of any credit facility or other ready access to borrowed funds could have a material adverse effect on our
ability to fund additional losses in the near future, or to respond to unexpected cash requirements or other liquidity
issues that we may face from time to time. Our inability to generate sufficient cash flow from operations or obtain
financing on acceptable terms would have a material adverse effect on our financial results, business and prospects.

We are subject to the risk of possibly becoming an investment company under the Investment Company Act.

The Investment Company Act regulates certain companies that invest in, hold or trade securities. Primarily as a result
of a portion of our assets consisting of minority investment positions, we are subject to the risk of inadvertently
becoming an investment company. Because registration under the Investment Company Act would make it
impractical for us to operate our business, we need to avoid becoming subject to the registration requirements of the
Investment Company Act. To do so, we may structure transactions in a less advantageous manner than if we did not
have Investment Company Act concerns, or we may avoid otherwise economically desirable transactions and/or
strategic initiatives due to those concerns. In addition, events beyond our control, including significant appreciation or
depreciation in the value of certain of our holdings or adverse developments with respect to our ownership of certain
of our subsidiaries, could result in us inadvertently becoming an investment company. If it were established that we
were an investment company, there would be a risk, among other material adverse consequences, that we could
become subject to monetary penalties or injunctive relief, or both, in an action brought by the SEC, that we would be
unable to enforce contracts with third parties or that third parties could seek to obtain rescission of transactions with us
undertaken during the period it was established that we were an unregistered investment company. If it were
established that we were an investment company, it would have a material adverse effect on our business and financial
operations and our ability to continue our business.

In February of 2018, we and tZERO each received notice that the staff of the SEC's Division of Enforcement is
conducting an investigation and has requested information regarding the tZERO security token offering.

In February 2018, the Division of Enforcement of the SEC informed tZERO and subsequently informed us that it is
conducting an investigation and requested that we and our affiliates, including Medici Ventures and tZERO
voluntarily provide certain information and documents related to tZERO and the tZERO security token offering in
connection with its investigation. In December 2018, we received a follow-up request for information. We are
cooperating fully with the SEC in connection with its investigation, which will require the time and attention of
tZERO and our personnel and may have an adverse effect on our ability to focus attention on our businesses and our
ability to raise capital. In addition, the outcome of the investigation could result in negative publicity for tZERO or us
and may have a material adverse effect on us or on the current and future business ventures of tZERO.

We are exploring strategic initiatives, and decisions we make could have material adverse effects on our business and
the market price of our common stock.

We have been and are currently exploring certain strategic initiatives, and decisions we make could change our
business fundamentally and increase the risks and uncertainties of our business substantially. We are considering a
range of potential transactions, including a sale of our retail business and additional equity or debt financings. There
can be no assurance that we will pursue or consummate any strategic transaction or, if consummated, that any such
transaction will ultimately be favorable to the Company and its stockholders. Any such transaction could materially
adversely affect our business and financial results. In addition, our exploration of strategic and financing options has
required and will continue to require significant time and attention by our management, and the incurrence of
significant expenses. Further, our efforts to keep investors informed about our consideration of strategic alternatives
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may result in distraction and unrest among our employees, which may adversely affect employee engagement, morale
and retention and which could have a material adverse effect on our financial results, business and prospects.

Our recent reduction in workforce may prevent us from executing initiatives to improve the performance of our retail
business effectively or at all.

We have been and are currently implementing certain initiatives to improve the performance of our retail business,
and our recent reduction in workforce could prevent us from engaging in certain initiatives we had previously
considered and could prevent us from executing such initiatives effectively. At December 31, 2018, our workforce
consisted of approximately 2,060 employees. At March 5, 2019, our workforce had been reduced by approximately
250, or approximately 12%, and consisted of
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1,810 employees. The reduction in our workforce could prevent us from engaging in certain initiatives to improve the
performance of our retail business, due to an insufficiency of workforce size or an insufficiency of certain required
skills, and could prevent us from executing initiatives effectively, which could have a material adverse effect on our
financial results, business and prospects.

If we sell our retail business, our revenues will decrease substantially, we will need to develop new businesses and
sources of revenue, and our business, financial results and prospects may be materially adversely affected.

If we sell our retail business in order to focus on our efforts on our Medici initiatives, our revenues would decrease to
an insignificant amount. Our retail business is a relatively mature and predictable business compared to our Medici
initiatives, which have a short history, minimal revenues, significant expenses, significant losses and significant
uncertainties, and conduct business in a new and rapidly changing industry. We would continue to bear most of the
expenses we currently bear as a publicly held company but would have to build a new business and develop new
sources of revenue based on our blockchain initiatives, and there is no assurance that we would be able to do so or,
even if we could do so, that our new business could become profitable.

If we sell our retail business, we do not expect to make any distribution to stockholders.

If we sell our retail business for cash, we currently expect to retain all of the after-tax proceeds of the sale for use in
our blockchain initiatives. The decision to retain all of the after-tax proceeds, or to declare a dividend, implement a
stock repurchase program, make one or more issuer tender offers or take any other similar action, would be subject to
the discretion of our Board of Directors, and would depend on the factors the Board deems relevant at the time.
Relevant factors would likely include our capital resources, liquidity, operating results, internal projections and plans
at the time. We have incurred significant losses recently, and we have utilized a significant amount of cash in funding
of our Medici and tZERO initiatives. We also have plans for Medici and tZERO that will require significant additional
funding, and we do not currently expect to make any distribution to stockholders even if we sell the retail business. As
a result, the market price of our securities could decrease substantially.

A sale of our retail business might not be subject to a stockholder vote.

Whether a sale of our retail business would be subject to a stockholder vote would depend primarily on whether a vote
is required by applicable law and whether a buyer would require us to submit it to a vote regardless of the
requirements of applicable law. If we make a decision to sell our retail business, we and our Board will evaluate the
applicable requirements and other factors we and our Board then deem relevant, but at present we do not expect to
submit any transaction to a stockholder vote unless we are required to do so, whether by applicable law or otherwise.
If we sell our retail business without submitting the transaction to a vote, we may face claims asserting that we should
have submitted it to a vote. In addition, we may not sell our retail business in the foreseeable future or at all. Any
developments, lack of developments (or announcements about any developments or lack of developments) could
cause the trading prices of our securities to decrease.

If we sell our retail business, we could incur a substantial corporate level income tax liability.

If we sell our retail business in a transaction taxable to the Company, the corporate level income tax liability to the
Company would depend in part on the sales price but could be substantial. If we experience an ownership change due
to stock sales by our significant stockholders, the amount of net operating losses or credits that can be used to offset
the tax on any gain may be limited. Depending on the sales price and limits that are triggered by an ownership change,
any net operating losses and credits we have that might be used to reduce the income tax liability to the Company may
be unlikely to reduce the tax liability by a significant amount.
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If we sell our retail business, our Compensation Committee may accelerate the vesting, in whole or in part, of some or
all outstanding restricted stock units under our Equity Incentive Plan.

If we sell our retail business, the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors may accelerate the vesting, in
whole or in part, of some or all outstanding restricted stock units ("RSUs") under our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan. Any
such determination would be subject to the discretion of the Compensation Committee and such factors as the
Compensation Committee might then deem relevant. Any such acceleration would result in an increase in the number
of shares outstanding and would dilute stockholders' ownership of our company.
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Our discussions with potential bidders for our retail business could result in the compromise of our intellectual
property.

As a consequence of our discussions with potential bidders for our retail business, it may be possible for potential
bidders to misappropriate intellectual property and other confidential information from us, which could have a
material adverse effect on our financial results, business and prospects.

If we sell our retail business in order to focus on our blockchain initiatives and related efforts, risks relating to our
Medici businesses, including our tZERO initiatives, that may be immaterial to us now would likely each become a
material risk to us.

If we sell our retail business in order to focus on our blockchain initiatives and related efforts, we would immediately
become a much smaller company than we are now. Consequently, risks relating to our Medici businesses, including
our tZERO initiatives, which may currently be immaterial to us, would in all likelihood each become material risks to
us. See "Additional Risks Relating to Our Medici Business," and "Additional Risks Relating to Our tZERO
Initiatives" below.

We engage in related party transactions, which could result in conflicts of interest involving our management.

We engage in related party transactions with members of our management and Board of Directors, including with
Patrick Byrne and Saum Noursalehi and their affiliates. We also own interests in businesses, including tZERO, in
which one or more of our directors, officers and other employees own interests. Related party transactions present
conflicts of interest which could have a material adverse effect on our financial results, business and prospects.

Our ownership of less than 100% of tZERO and other subsidiaries may cause conflicts of interest.

Our wholly-owned subsidiary Medici Ventures owns 80% of the outstanding common stock of tZERO, and tZERO
employees, former employees and others own the balance of the shares. tZERO has issued employee stock options
that may further dilute our ownership interest. In addition, tZERO may engage in capital raising activities in the future
that could further dilute our ownership interest. To that end, in March 2019, we disclosed that we have executed a
Memorandum of Understanding regarding a potential transaction involving an equity investment of up to $100 million
in tZERO by GSR Capital and Makara Capital, and are in continuing discussions in furtherance thereof. We cannot be
sure that we will be able to complete any such transaction on the contemplated terms or on the desired timeframe, if at
all. Medici Ventures also has issued employee stock options that may result in our owning less than 100% of Medici
Ventures in the future, which would also reduce our effective interest in tZERO. The boards of directors of tZERO
and Medici Ventures must consider the interests of all of their stockholders, and the interests of the individual
stockholders may differ from our interests. Any significant divergence between our interests and the interests of other
stockholders, who are also likely to be employees, of our majority owned subsidiaries, could result in disagreements
regarding business matters and could have an adverse effect on employee morale and on our business.

The options granted by Medici Ventures and the options granted by tZERO could reduce our effective ownership of
each of them significantly.

Medici Ventures has granted compensatory options under its stock option plan and sold warrants to purchase Medici
common stock. If all of the currently outstanding Medici Ventures options were vested and exercised and all of the
currently outstanding warrants were exercised, our ownership of Medici Ventures would decrease from 100% to 90%.
tZERO has granted compensatory options under its equity incentive plan. If all of the currently outstanding tZERO

options were vested and exercised, Medici Ventures’ ownership of tZERO would decrease from 80% to 76%.
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If all of the currently outstanding Medici Ventures options and warrants and all of the currently outstanding tZERO
options were exercised, our effective indirect ownership of tZERO would decrease from 80% to 69%.

An equity financing by tZERO, whether involving GSR Capital and/or Makara Capital or otherwise, could accelerate
the vesting of the options granted by tZERO.

The tZERO equity incentive plan requires the administrator of the plan to accelerate, vest, or cause the lapse of
restrictions applicable to awards outstanding under the plan upon a “change in control” as defined in the plan. For
purposes of the tZERO plan, a “change in control” includes Overstock and any entity or entities directly or indirectly
controlled by Overstock becoming the legal or beneficial owner of tZERO shares having less than a majority of the
total voting power of the outstanding stock of tZERO. As a result, a sale of tZERO shares, whether involving GSR
Capital and/or Makara Capital or
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otherwise, could accelerate the vesting of the options granted by tZERO. Further, the exercise of options or warrants
issued by Medici Ventures and/or the exercise of vested options issued by tZERO could contribute to or cause the
accelerated vesting of any then unvested tZERO options.

Our subsidiary Medici Land Governance, Inc. is a public benefit corporation.

Our subsidiary Medici Ventures has formed Medici Land Governance, Inc. ("MLG") as a public benefit corporation
under Delaware law. Directors of traditional corporations, including Overstock and Medici Ventures, are required to
make decisions they believe to be in the best interests of their stockholders. The directors of MLG are required by
Delaware law to manage MLG in a manner that balances (1) MLG stockholders' pecuniary interests, (2) the best
interests of those materially affected by MLG conduct, and (3) MLG public benefit purpose, which is to promote full
financial inclusion, economic advancement, and enfranchisement of individuals, by creating systems using blockchain
and other technologies that help individuals prove rightful ownership of assets, capitalize their assets, and establish a
formal identity. As a result, MLG may not have the same focus on increasing stockholder value that Overstock and
Medici Ventures have, and the duties of the officers and directors of MLG, some of whom also are or will be officers
and/or directors of Overstock and/or Medici Ventures, may conflict with the duties of the officers and directors of
Medici Ventures and Overstock. Even in the absence of common directors, conflicts of interest may arise.

MLG does not have a proven business model, does not have revenues or profits, and may require additional capital.

MLG was formed in mid-2018 and is an early stage company that currently does not generate revenues or profits. Its
current projects are being done as pilot projects without charge at MLG’s expense to demonstrate MLG’s capabilities
and develop its reputation. Although MLG intends to generate revenues and profits in the future, it has not yet
developed a business model. If MLG cannot generate revenues and profits, MLG will require additional capital, which
may have a material adverse effect on our financial results, business and prospects.

Strategic relationships, joint ventures, purchases of strategic interests in other companies and acquisitions of other
companies involve numerous risks, including increased regulatory and integration risks.

We have developed strategic relationships, entered into joint ventures, purchased strategic interests in other
companies, and acquired other companies, and we expect to pursue and engage in similar types of activities in the
future. Each of these types of business transactions involve numerous risks, including difficulties in the evaluation of
business opportunities and risks, including regulatory and integration risks, as well as difficulties in the assimilation of
acquired operations and products. These types of transactions can also result in the diversion of management's
attention from other business matters, employee retention issues, and the risk of liability for liabilities of acquired
companies. We may not be able to successfully integrate businesses, operations, personnel, services, products or other
assets that we have acquired or may acquire in the future. Further, acquisitions may also create a need for additional
accounting, tax, compliance, documentation, risk management and internal control procedures, and may require us to
hire additional personnel to implement, perform and/or monitor such procedures. To the extent our procedures are not
adequate to appropriately implement, perform and/or monitor all necessary procedures relating to any new or
expanded business, we could be exposed to a material loss or regulatory sanction. In addition, we may be unable to
sell or otherwise monetize any of the interests or companies or other assets or rights we have acquired or may acquire
in the future. We also may be unable to maintain our strategic relationships, including those with joint venture
partners, or develop new strategic relationships. The occurrence of any of the foregoing which could have a material
adverse effect on our financial results, business and prospects.

The potential investment in tZERO contemplated by the Memorandum of Understanding we announced in March
2019 with GSR Capital and Makara Capital may not occur.
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In March 2019, we disclosed that we had executed a Memorandum of Understanding regarding a potential equity
investment of up to $100 million in tZERO to be co-led by GSR Capital and Makara Capital, subject to due diligence,
negotiation of binding contracts and regulatory approval. We may not be able to reach agreement on the terms of any
such investment. Even if we are able to reach agreement on the terms and enter into a definitive agreement regarding
the potential investment, the transaction may not close. Our efforts to reach an agreement and close a transaction will
continue to take time and attention from our senior executives, which may have an adverse effect on our business, and
if the transaction fails to occur, it may have a material adverse effect on our financial results, business and prospects.
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We may have additional exposure to claims under Delaware's Abandoned Property Law.

In September 2018 we lost a jury trial in Delaware brought on Delaware's behalf alleging that we had violated
Delaware's unclaimed property laws by failing to report and turn over to Delaware certain unused gift card balances.
The time period covered by the lawsuit was 2004 through 2007. The jury returned a verdict, which we expect to result
in a judgment against us of approximately $7.3 million plus attorneys' fees and costs. We may have additional
exposure for the time period 2008 through 2014.

We have significant deferred tax assets, and we may not be able to realize these assets in the future.

We have established a valuation allowance for our net deferred tax assets, primarily due to realized losses and
uncertainty regarding our future taxable income. Determining whether a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets is
appropriate requires significant judgment and an evaluation of all positive and negative evidence. At each reporting
period, we assess the need for, or the sufficiency of, a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets. We intend to
maintain a valuation allowance on our net deferred tax assets until there is sufficient evidence to support the reversal
of all or some portion of these allowances.

We are currently subject to claims that we have infringed intellectual property rights of third parties and may be
subjected to additional infringement claims in the future.

We are currently and may in the future be subject to claims that we have infringed the intellectual property rights of
others, by offering allegedly infringing products or otherwise. We have contested and expect to continue to contest
claims we consider unfounded rather than settling such claims, even when we expect the costs of contesting the claims
to exceed the cost of settlement. Any claims may result in significant expenditure of our financial and managerial
resources and may result in us making significant damages or settlement payments or changes to our business. We
could be prohibited from using software or business processes, or required to obtain licenses from third parties, which
could be expensive or unavailable. Any such difficulties could have a material adverse effect on our financial results,
business and prospects.

We may be unable to protect our proprietary technology and to obtain trademark protection for our marks.

Our success depends to a significant degree upon the protection of our software and other proprietary intellectual
property rights. We rely on a combination of laws and contractual restrictions with our employees, customers,
suppliers, affiliates, and others to establish and protect our proprietary rights, including the law pertaining to trade
secrets. Despite these precautions, it may be possible for a third party to copy or otherwise obtain and use our
intellectual property or trade secrets without authorization. In addition, we cannot ensure that others will not
independently develop similar intellectual property. Third parties have in the past recruited and may in the future
recruit our employees who have had access to our proprietary technologies, processes and operations. These recruiting
efforts expose us to the risk that such employees and those hiring them will misappropriate and exploit our intellectual
property and trade secrets. We may be unable to protect it, in the United States or elsewhere, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business. Although we have registered and are pursuing the registration of our key
trademarks in the United States and some other countries, some of our trade names may not be eligible to receive
registered trademark protection. In addition, effective trademark protection may not be available or we may not seek
protection in every country in which we market or sell our products and services, including in the United States. Our
competitors might adopt product or service marks similar to our marks or might try to prevent us from using our
marks. Any claim by another party against us or customer, confusion related to our trademarks, or our failure to obtain
trademark registration, could have a material adverse effect on our financial results, business and prospects.

If one or more states successfully asserts that we are liable for the collection of sales or other taxes for periods prior to
the Supreme Court's recent decision in South Dakota v. Wayfair, our business could be harmed.
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Prior to the Supreme Court's recent decision in South Dakota v. Wayfair, in which we were a named party, to overturn
its 1992 decision in Quill v. North Dakota, we generally did not collect sales or other similar taxes on sales of goods
into states where we had no duty to do so under Quill. If any jurisdiction where we did not collect sales or other taxes
successfully asserts that we should have done so, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, regardless of
the ultimate outcome.

A subsidiary of ours owns the land on which we built our headquarters, and we may incur environmental expense and
liabilities.

In 2014, our wholly-owned subsidiary O.com Land, LLC purchased land near Salt Lake City, Utah on which we have
built our new headquarters. The land is part of the Midvale SLAG Superfund Site ("Site"), a former Comprehensive
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Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act ("CERCLA") superfund site. O.com Land, LLC is required
to follow certain requirements of CERCLA and the consent decree governing remediation of the Site, and its failure to
do so could expose us to material environmental liabilities.

Additional Risks Relating to Our tZERO Initiatives
Risks Related to tZERO's Business

tZERO has a limited operating history, which makes it hard to evaluate its ability to generate revenue through
operations, and at the date of this filing, tZERO has not generated revenue from any commercially available
blockchain-based application.

tZERO was formed in 2014 to develop blockchain and financial technology as part of Overstock's Medici initiatives.
tZERO's limited operating history makes it difficult to evaluate its current business and future prospects. tZERO has
encountered, and will continue to encounter, risks and difficulties frequently experienced by growing companies in
rapidly developing and changing industries, including challenges in forecasting accuracy, determining appropriate
uses of its limited resources, gaining market acceptance, managing a complex regulatory landscape and developing
new products. tZERQ's current operating model may require changes in order for it to scale its operations efficiently.
Investors in our common stock should consider tZERO's business and prospects in light of the risks and difficulties it
faces as an early-stage company focused on developing products in the field of financial technology. To date, tZERO
has focused on developing its business and exploring opportunities for novel applications of blockchain technology.
tZERO has not generated revenue from any commercially available blockchain-based applications. tZERO has
generated limited revenue and has accumulated losses since its inception. As such, tZERO's has historically been
dependent upon continued financial support from us. If we are unable to generate positive cash flow in our retail
business, raise additional capital, obtain financing, or sell or otherwise monetize significant assets, we may be unable
to continue funding tZERO at the rate or levels we would otherwise do, which could have a material adverse effect on
us and on the current and future business of tZERO.

tZERO may not successfully develop, launch, market, or sell its DLR Software.

tZERO anticipates that its first commercially available blockchain-based product will be its DLR Software. The DLR
Software is currently in customer production testing, which is being conducted by a third party, and tZERO has not
yet entered into any commercial licenses with any licensees. The DLR Software is intended to help broker-dealer
licensees with stock inventory to both load and manage their inventory in order to assist short sellers of public
securities in establishing that they have located available shares in the U.S. public securities market prior to effecting
short sales. The DLR Software is intended to enable licensees to create a blockchain-based record of the shares that
the licensee has made available for "locates" using customizable DLR Software functionality and of the daily
purchases of the right to "locate" specifically identified shares for purposes of compliance with regulatory
requirements. Although tZERO believes that the DLR Software provides broker-dealers with a better solution than the
system currently in use for identifying "locates," the existing system is firmly entrenched and is controlled by firms
with substantially greater resources than tZERO or Overstock. tZERO may not successfully develop, launch, market
or sell its DLR Software.

The commercial viability of the DLR Software is dependent on the ability of broker-dealer licensees to offer the DLR
Software as an effective means of satisfying the regulatory obligations of those effecting short sales. Regulation SHO
under the Exchange Act ("Regulation SHO"), as interpreted and implemented by the SEC, is the principal regulation
governing short sales. In preliminary discussions with regulators regarding the application of DLR Software, certain
members of the SEC Staff (the "Staff") have expressed concerns regarding whether locates issued utilizing the DLR
Software would provide customers of broker-dealer licensees with a valid locate for purposes of Regulation SHO
unless certain conditions were satisfied by the issuing broker-dealers. The broker-dealer licensees of DLR Software,
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as the parties issuing locates for purposes of Regulation SHO, will be responsible for ensuring that locates issued
using the DLR Software comply with all applicable regulations and satisfy the requirements of Regulation SHO. In
the event that compliance with regulatory obligations in utilizing DLR Software proves too burdensome to
broker-dealer licensees, the DLR Software may not gain market acceptance among broker-dealers.

In addition, the SEC and other regulatory and self-regulatory authorities may in the future adopt additional rules and
regulations, adopt new or modified interpretations of existing regulations, or take other actions, that may impact those
engaging in short selling activity or adversely affect the ability of short-selling customers of broker-dealer licensees to
rely on locates generated by the DLR Software in effect at the time. Any governmental or regulatory action that
restricts the ability of investors to effect short sales, or to do so in reliance on locates generated by the tZERO DLR
Software, could adversely affect the commercial viability of the DLR Software.
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Moreover, tZERO will need to devote significant resources to license sales and marketing efforts in order to convince
broker-dealers that licensing the DLR Software will increase their revenues from their stock lending operations and to
persuade large pension funds and other entities that hold large amounts of publicly traded securities that providing
inventory supply to broker-dealers utilizing the DLR Software will provide access to additional revenue opportunities.
tZERO will need to build a sales and marketing function and staff to effectively market the DLR Software. tZERO
may be unable to do so, and any sales and marketing function and staff it builds may be unable to successfully market
the DLR Software. Further, tZERO may have overestimated the size of the pension crisis and the potential market for
the DLR Software, the potential demand for the DLR Software, and the possibility that it will be able to market the
DLR Software to potential licensees.

Once the DLR Software is released for commercial licensing, tZERO may need to make changes to the specifications
of the DLR Software for any number of reasons. In the event that tZERO is unable to develop the DLR Software in a
way that realizes those specifications, it is possible that the DLR Software may never generate significant revenue or
become profitable for tZERO. Furthermore, despite good faith efforts to develop and complete the launch of the DLR
Software and subsequently to maintain it, it is still possible that the DLR Software will experience malfunctions or
otherwise fail to be adequately developed or maintained, which may negatively impact sales and marketing efforts.
There can be no assurance that the DLR Software will ever generate significant revenue or become profitable for
tZERO.

tZERO continues to develop new and existing trading platforms for the Series A Preferred, the tZERO Security
Tokens and, ultimately, other issuer's digital securities, but to date has only two Token Trading Systems in operation,
both by PRO Securities.

tZERO continues to develop new and existing Token Trading Systems to trade digital securities, including the Series
A Preferred, the tZERO Security Tokens, and, ultimately, other issuer's securities tokens. At the date of this filing,
only two Token Trading Systems are operational-in December 2016, the PRO Securities ATS, utilizing the tZERO
Platform, partnering with Keystone Capital Corporation ("Keystone") and ETC, each SEC-registered broker-dealers
and FINRA members, began facilitating trading in the Series A Preferred, and in January 2019, the PRO Securities
ATS, again utilizing the tZERO Platform, partnering with Dino and ETC, each SEC-registered broker-dealers and
FINRA members, began facilitating private placement resales of tZERO Security Tokens to accredited investors in
reliance upon an exemption from registration under Section 4(a)(7) of the Securities Act. Separately, in June 2018,
tZERO and BOX Digital announced that they had entered into a joint venture intended to develop the Exchange with
regulatory approvals that would enable the Exchange to trade security tokens. The Exchange will require approval
from the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission prior to beginning operations. The development of these and any
other Token Trading Systems implicates complex technological considerations and raises numerous legal and
regulatory issues that will need to be addressed-likely, in consultation with tZERO's broker dealer subsidiaries'
regulators. As a result of these technological, legal and regulatory considerations, new Token Trading Systems may
never be developed and, if developed, may (as may any existing Token Trading System), for a variety of
technological, legal and regulatory reasons, never become (or remain) operational. If tZERO is unable to successfully
develop viable Token Trading Systems, tZERO's business plans would be materially adversely affected. See "Risks
Related to the Development of the Token Trading Systems" below.

tZERO intends to offer services to companies considering or pursuing initial security token offerings but has not yet
been engaged to do so.

tZERO intends to offer services ("issuer services"), including offering an issuer services platform, to companies
considering or pursuing initial security token offerings. To date, tZERO has not been engaged to provide issuer
services to any other company considering or pursuing an initial security token offering, and there can be no assurance
that tZERO will launch its issuer services platform or be engaged to provide any issuer services in the future or that
any issuer services, if provided, will be profitable. If tZERO is engaged to provide any issuer services, tZERO could
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face claims from any dissatisfied clients and could incur liabilities in rendering any issuer services, any of which could
also damage our reputation and adversely affect other parts of our business.

PRO Securities and SpeedRoute, two subsidiaries of tZERO that currently generate substantially all of tZERO's
revenues, are registered broker-dealers and are subject to extensive regulation.

Broker-dealers are subject to extensive regulatory requirements under federal and state laws and regulations and
self-regulatory organization (“SRO”) rules. PRO Securities and SpeedRoute are registered with the SEC as

broker dealers under the Exchange Act and in the states in which they conduct securities business and are members,
and subject to the rules, of FINRA. In addition, PRO Securities owns and operates the PRO Securities ATS, which has
filed a Form ATS with the SEC notifying the SEC of its activities as an alternative trading system. PRO Securities and
SpeedRoute are subject to regulation, examination,
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investigation and disciplinary action by the SEC, FINRA and state securities regulators, as well as other governmental
authorities and SROs with which they are registered or licensed or of which they are a member.

PRO Securities and SpeedRoute currently generate substantially all of tZERO's revenues. Any failure of PRO
Securities or SpeedRoute to comply with all applicable rules and regulations could have a material adverse effect on
tZERO's operations and financial condition and a material adverse effect on us.

Our broker dealers and tZERO are involved in ongoing discussions with regulatory authorities.

Our broker dealers, PRO Securities and SpeedRoute, and tZERO have been and remain involved in ongoing oral and
written communications with regulatory authorities in connection with ongoing examinations, inquiries, or
investigations. Any failure of our broker dealers or tZERO to satisfy FINRA, the SEC, or any other regulatory
authority with which they must comply could have a material adverse effect on tZERO's operations and financial
condition and a material adverse effect on us.

Technology on which tZERO relies for its operations, including the technology underlying the Token Trading
Systems, may not function properly.

The technology on which tZERO and its licensees rely, including the technology underlying the Token Trading
Systems, may not function properly, which would have a material adverse effect on tZERO's plans, operations and
financial condition. Although the tZERO Platform has worked for the Series A shares and the tZERO Security
Tokens, trading in these securities has been extremely limited, and consequently the tZERO Platform has not been
tested with significant trading volume. If the technology does not work as anticipated, there may be no alternative
available. The importance of the technology to tZERO's operations means that any problems in its functionality would
have a direct materially adverse effect on tZERO's plans and expectations for revenues from blockchain applications.
The technology may malfunction because of internal problems or as a result of cyber-attacks or external security
breaches. Any such technological problems would have a material adverse effect on tZERQO's prospects.

Acquisitions tZERO has made and may make will increase costs and regulatory and integration risks.

From time to time tZERO has purchased interests in or acquired other businesses or the assets of other businesses and
may do so again in the future. Integrating an acquired business or its assets involves a number of risks and financial,
managerial and operational challenges. tZERO may incur significant expenses in connection with purchases or
acquisitions it has made in the past or may make in the future. Further, acquisitions may also create a need for
additional accounting, tax, compliance, documentation, risk management and internal control procedures, and may
require tZERO to hire additional personnel to implement, perform and/or monitor such procedures. To the extent
tZERO's procedures are not adequate to appropriately implement, perform and/or monitor all necessary procedures
relating to any new or expanded business, we could be exposed to a material loss or regulatory sanction. The
occurrence of any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on our financial results and business.

tZERO's acquisition of Bitsy Inc. may expose us to additional risks.

Effective January 2019, tZERO purchased the remaining 67% interest in Bitsy, Inc. for $8 million, bringing our total
equity interest in Bitsy, Inc. to 100%. Bitsy, Inc., is a U.S.-based company founded and partially owned by Medici
Ventures' former chief operating officer and general counsel, and current president of tZERO, Steve Hopkins. In
September 2018, Bitsy announced that it had begun a limited beta launch of a digital wallet service intended to create
a bridge between traditional fiat currencies and cryptocurrencies. Various aspects of the business that Bitsy is
engaging in are heavily regulated. Virtually every state in the U.S. regulates money transmitters and money services
businesses. In some states the licensing requirements and regulations expressly cover companies engaged in digital
currency activities; in other states it is not clear whether or how the existing laws and regulations apply to digital
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currency activities. These licenses and registrations subject companies to various anti-money laundering,
know-your-customer, record-keeping, reporting and capital and bonding requirements, limitations on the investment
of customer funds, and inspection by state and federal regulatory agencies. Bitsy has registered with FinCEN and
intends to obtain all licenses it is required to obtain. Under U.S. federal law, it is a crime for a person, entity or
business that is required to be registered with FinCEN or licensed in any state to fail to do so. Further, under U.S.
federal law, anyone who owns all or part of an unlicensed money transmitting business may be subject to civil and
criminal penalties.
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Additional Risks Related to our tZERO Security Tokens

The IRS may disagree with our characterization of the tZERO Security Token offering, which would have a material
adverse effect on us.

Although we have taken the position that the sale of the tZERO Security Tokens in the security token offering was a
sale of equity for tax purposes, if the IRS disagrees with our characterization and instead requires us to treat the
proceeds as income to us for federal income tax purposes, this would reduce our federal net operating loss
carryforwards by approximately $104.8 million as a result of the security token offering. In addition, if we are
required to treat the proceeds of the security token offering as a liability rather than equity for accounting purposes,
that would reduce tZERO's net book value compared to equity treatment.

We are subject to the risks of holding tZERO Security Tokens and the risk that we will be unable to sell the tZERO
Security Tokens.

As part of tZERO's Security Token offering, we elected to accept tZERO Security Tokens in payment of $30 million
of tZERO's indebtedness to us. As a holder of restricted securities, we therefore are subject to all of the risks of
holding the tZERO Security Tokens, including the risk that we will be unable to publicly resell any of the tZERO
Security Tokens unless tZERO registers our resale for us under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. We do not
have any contractual rights to require tZERO to do so.

The tZERO Security Tokens may be subject to registration under the Exchange Act if tZERO has assets above $10
million and more than a statutory amount of registered token holders, which would increase tZERO's costs
significantly and require substantial attention from tZERO's management.

Companies with total assets above $10 million and more than 2,000 holders of record of their equity securities, or 500
holders of record of its equity securities who are not accredited investors, at the end of their fiscal year must register
that class of equity securities with the SEC under the Exchange Act. If tZERO is required to register the tZERO
Security Tokens with the SEC under the Exchange Act, it would be a laborious and expensive process. Furthermore, if
such registration takes place, tZERO would have materially higher compliance and reporting costs going forward.

Risks Related to the Development of the Token Trading Systems

Development of Token Trading Systems pose financial, technological, and regulatory challenges and tZERO may not
be able to successfully develop, market and launch any particular Token Trading System.

The development of a Token Trading System requires significant capital funding, expertise of tZERO's management
and time and effort in order to be successful. For any particular Token Trading System, tZERO may have to make
changes to the specifications for any number of reasons or tZERO may be unable to develop the Token Trading
System in a way that realizes those specifications or any form of a functioning network. A Token Trading System,
even if successfully developed and maintained, may not meet investor expectations-for example, there can be no
assurance that a Token Trading System will provide less expensive or more efficient trading than is possible on
currently available trading platforms for traditional securities (or even other Token Trading Systems for digital
securities). Furthermore, a Token Trading System may experience malfunctions or otherwise fail to be adequately
developed or maintained, which may negatively impact that Token Trading System and the digital securities traded on
that Token Trading System.

tZERO may not have or may not be able to obtain the technical skills, expertise, or regulatory approvals needed to

successfully develop any particular Token Trading System and progress it to a successful launch. While tZERO has
sought to retain and continue to competitively recruit experts, there may, from time to time, be a general scarcity of
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management, technical, scientific, research and marketing personnel with appropriate training to develop and maintain
development of Token Trading Systems. In addition, there are significant legal and regulatory considerations that will
need to be addressed in order to develop and maintain each Token Trading System, including the qualifications of
licensees operating each Token Trading system, and addressing such considerations will require significant time and
resources. There can be no assurance that tZERO will be able to develop Token Trading Systems that fully achieve
tZERO's goals and satisfy the complex regulatory requirements applicable to SEC-registered exchanges and/or
permitted alternative trading systems. If tZERO is not successful in its efforts to develop Token Trading Systems that
are compliant with all regulatory and legal requirements and to demonstrate to users the utility and value of Token
Trading Systems, it may be impermissible to launch a particular Token Trading System or
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there may not be sufficient demand for the digital securities required for a particular Token Trading System to be
commercially viable, and tZERO's business would be materially adversely affected, which could have a material
adverse effect on us.

Regulatory authorities may never permit a Token Trading System to become operational.

Depending on the particular Token Trading System, numerous regulatory authorities, including FINRA and the SEC,
may need to permit the Token Trading System to become operational. If FINRA, the SEC or any other regulatory
authority objected to the Token Trading System or to aspects of the Token Trading System, such regulatory
authorities could prevent the Token Trading System from ever becoming operational. The regulatory landscape that
tZERO, its broker-dealer subsidiaries, and its partners need to navigate in order to achieve an operational Token
Trading System is complex, and tZERO may never be able to do so successfully for a particular Token Trading
System. Any such regulatory issues would have a material adverse impact on tZERO's business.

Token Trading Systems may not be widely adopted and may have limited users.

It is possible that Token Trading Systems will not be used by a large number of issuers, broker-dealers or holders of
security tokens or that there will be limited public interest in the continued creation and development of Token
Trading Systems. In addition, legal and regulatory developments could render any of the Token Trading Systems
obsolete or impermissible. Such a lack of use or interest could negatively impact the continued development of Token
Trading Systems and the business and financial position of tZERO and have a material adverse effect on us.

Alternative networks may be established that compete with or are more widely used than the Token Trading Systems.

It is possible that alternative networks could be established that utilize the same or similar protocols as those
underlying the Token Trading Systems or that facilitate services that are materially similar to the Token Trading
Systems' services. The Token Trading Systems may face competition from any such alternative networks, which could
negatively impact the Token Trading Systems and have a material adverse effect on tZERO and on us.

The tZERO Platform and the Token Trading Systems, and any blockchain technology on which they rely, may be the
target of cyber-attacks or may contain exploitable flaws in its underlying code, which may result in security breaches
and the loss or theft of securities that trade on the Token Trading Systems. If such attacks occur or security is
compromised, this could expose us to liability and reputational harm and could seriously curtail the utilization of
security tokens and cause a decline in the market price of the affected securities and could result in claims against
tZERO or us.

The Token Trading Systems, its structural foundation (including the tZERO Platform), and the software applications
and other interfaces or applications upon which they rely (including blockchain technology), are unproven, and there
can be no assurances that the Token Trading Systems and the creating, transfer or storage of securities on that system
will be uninterrupted or fully secure, which may result in impermissible transfers, a complete loss of investors'
securities on that system or an unwillingness of market participants to access, adopt and utilize security tokens or the
Token Trading Systems. Further, the tZERO Platform, the Token Trading Systems and any technology, including
blockchain technology, on which they rely, may also be the target of cyber-attacks (such as "double-spend" attacks or
"51%" attacks) seeking to identify and exploit weaknesses, which may result in the loss or theft of securities, which, in
turn, may materially and adversely affect the Token Trading Systems, tZERO, and us.

Some market participants may oppose the development of distributed ledger or blockchain based systems like those
central to tZERQO's commercial mission, which could adversely affect tZERO.
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Many participants in the system currently used for trading public securities in the United States may oppose the
development of capital markets systems and processes that utilize distributed ledger and blockchain-based systems.
The market participants who may oppose such a system may include entities with significantly greater resources,
including financial resources and political influence, than tZERO or we have. The ability of tZERO to operate and
achieve its commercial goals could be adversely affected by any actions of any such market participants that result in
additional regulatory requirements or other activities that make it more difficult for tZERO to operate could adversely
affect tZEROQ's ability to achieve its commercial goals, which could have a material adverse effect on us.
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Risks Related to Blockchain Technology

The regulatory regime governing blockchain technologies, cryptocurrencies, digital assets, the tZERO Platform and
offerings of digital assets is uncertain, and new regulations or policies may materially adversely affect the
development and the value of such cryptocurrencies and assets.

Regulation of digital assets, like the tZERO Security Tokens, as well as cryptocurrencies, blockchain technologies,
cryptocurrency exchanges, and the Token Trading Systems, is currently undeveloped and likely to rapidly evolve as
government agencies take greater interest in them. Regulation also varies significantly among international, federal,
state and local jurisdictions and is subject to significant uncertainty. Various legislative and executive bodies in the
United States and in other countries may in the future adopt laws, regulations, or guidance, or take other actions,
which may severely impact the permissibility of tokens generally and the technology behind them or the means of
transaction or in transferring them. Failure by tZERO and its Token Trading System partners to comply with any laws,
rules and regulations, some of which may not exist yet or are subject to interpretation and may be subject to change,
could result in a variety of adverse consequences, including civil penalties and fines.

Cryptocurrency networks, distributed ledger technologies, and coin and token offerings also face an uncertain
regulatory landscape in many foreign jurisdictions such as the European Union, China and Russia. Various foreign
jurisdictions may, in the near future, adopt laws, regulations or directives that may conflict with those of the United
States or may directly and negatively impact tZERQO's business. The effect of any future regulatory change is
impossible to predict, but such change could be substantial and materially adverse to tZERO's business.

The further development and acceptance of blockchain networks, which are part of a new and rapidly changing
industry, are subject to a variety of factors that are difficult to evaluate. The slowing or stopping of the development or
acceptance of blockchain networks and blockchain assets would have a material adverse effect on tZERO's business
plans and could have a material adverse effect on us.

The growth of the blockchain industry in general, as well as the blockchain networks on which the tZERO Security
Tokens will rely, is subject to a high degree of uncertainty. The factors affecting the further development of the
cryptocurrency and digital security industry, as well as blockchain networks, include, without limitation:

worldwide growth in the adoption and use of cryptocurrencies, digital securities, and other blockchain technologies;
government and quasi-government regulation of cryptocurrencies, digital securities, and other blockchain assets and
their use, or restrictions on or regulation of access to and operation of blockchain networks or similar systems;
the maintenance and development of the open-source software protocol of cryptocurrency or digital securities
networks;
changes in consumer demographics and public tastes and preferences;
the availability and popularity of other forms or methods of buying and selling goods and services, or
trading assets including new means of using government-backed currencies or existing networks;
eeneral economic conditions and the regulatory environment relating to cryptocurrencies and digital securities; and
a decline in the popularity or acceptance of cryptocurrencies or other blockchain based tokens.

The cryptocurrency and digital securities industries as a whole have been characterized by rapid changes and
innovations and are constantly evolving. Although it has experienced significant growth in recent years, the slowing
or stopping of the development, general acceptance and adoption and usage of blockchain networks and blockchain
assets may materially adversely affect tZERO's business plans.

The prices of digital assets are extremely volatile. Fluctuations in the price of digital assets could materially and
adversely affect tZERO's business.
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The prices of cryptocurrencies, such as Bitcoin and Ether, and other digital assets have historically been subject to
dramatic fluctuations and are highly volatile. A decrease in the price of a single digital asset may cause volatility in
the entire digital asset and security token industry. For example, a security breach that affects purchaser or user
confidence in Bitcoin or Ether may affect the industry as a whole. This volatility may adversely affect interest in and
demand for the Token Trading System, which would materially adversely affect tZERO's business.
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tZERO's and its subsidiaries' businesses are subject to complex and evolving U.S. and foreign laws and regulations
regarding privacy, technology, data protection, and other matters. Many of these laws and regulations are subject to
change and uncertain interpretation, and could result in claims, changes to their business practices, increased cost of
operations or otherwise harm their businesses.

tZERO and its subsidiaries are subject to a variety of laws and regulations in the United States and abroad that involve
matters central to its business, including user privacy, blockchain technology, data protection and intellectual
property, among others. Foreign data protection, privacy, and other laws and regulations are often more restrictive
than those in the United States. These U.S. federal and state and foreign laws and regulations are constantly evolving
and can be subject to significant change. In addition, the application and interpretation of these laws and regulations
are often uncertain, particularly in the new and rapidly evolving industry in which tZERO and its subsidiaries operate.

tZERO and its subsidiaries have adopted appropriate policies and procedures designed to comply with these laws. The
growth of their respective businesses and expansion outside of the United States may increase the potential of
violating these laws or its internal policies and procedures. The risk of being found in violation of these or other laws
and regulations is further increased by the fact that many of these have not been fully interpreted by the regulatory
authorities or the courts and are open to a variety of interpretations. Any action brought against tZERO or its
subsidiaries for violation of these or other laws or regulations, even if tZERO or its subsidiaries successfully defend
against it, could cause tZERO or any of its subsidiaries to incur significant legal expenses and divert its management's
attention from the operation of its business. If its operations are found to be in violation of any of these laws and
regulations, it may be subject to any applicable penalty associated with the violation, including civil and criminal
penalties, damages and fines, it could be required to refund payments received by it, and it could be required to curtail
or cease its operations. Any of the foregoing consequences could seriously harm tZERO's or any of its subsidiaries'
business and its financial results. These existing and proposed laws and regulations can be costly to comply with and
can delay or impede the development of new products, result in negative publicity, increase tZERO's or any of its
subsidiaries' operating costs, require significant management time and attention, and subject any of them to claims or
other remedies, including fines or demands that they modify or cease existing business practices.

The popularity of cryptocurrencies and digital securities offerings may decrease in the future, which could have a
material adverse effect on the cryptocurrency and digital securities industry and tZERQO's operations and financial
condition.

tZERO was founded to develop and commercialize financial technology based on the use of digital assets, digital
securities and blockchain technology. In recent years, cryptocurrencies and digital securities have become more
widely accepted among investors and financial institutions but have been also faced increasingly complex legal and
regulatory challenges and, to date, have not benefited from widespread adoption by governments, central banks or
established financial institutions. However, any significant decrease in the acceptance or popularity of cryptocurrency
or digital security offerings may have a material adverse effect on tZERO's operations and financial condition and a
material adverse effect on us.

To date, tZERO's primary source of revenues has been revenues from its wholly owned subsidiaries, SpeedRoute and
PRO Securities, and a large percentage of these firms' revenues come from a small number of major customers,
making tZERO vulnerable to changes in the business and financial condition of, or demand for SpeedRoute's and PRO
Securities' services by, such customers.

To date, tZERO's primary source of revenues has been revenues from its wholly owned subsidiaries, SpeedRoute and
PRO Securities. These firms' revenues primarily have come from three major customers, making tZERO vulnerable to
changes in the business and financial condition of, or demand for services by, such customers of SpeedRoute and PRO
Securities. During the year ended December 31, 2018, revenue passed through to tZERO from the broker-dealers
attributable to these three customers accounted for, respectively, 23%, 15% and 11% of tZERO's revenues. tZERO's
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income and ability to meet its financial obligations could also be adversely affected in the event of bankruptcy,
insolvency or significant downturn in the business of one of these SpeedRoute or PRO Securities customers.

The tZERO Platform and any current or future Token Trading Systems have been and will be, as applicable,
developed by key technology employees of tZERO and its affiliates, and their operation and further development
depend on the continued availability of those key employees.

The tZERO Platform, and any current or future Token Trading System, including technology and intellectual property
involved in their creation and operation, have been or will be, as applicable, developed primarily by a small number of
key technology employees of tZERO and its affiliates. The loss of the services of any of those key employees could
have a material adverse effect on the ability of tZERO to develop, operate or maintain the tZERO Platform or the
Token Trading Systems. If
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tZERO were to lose the services of any such key employees, it could be difficult or impossible to replace them, and
the loss of any of them could have a material adverse effect on tZERO's operations and financial condition.

The occurrence of any of the foregoing could result in claims against tZERO and us and could have a material adverse
effect on us and the holders of our securities.

The development and operation of tZERO's business, including the tZERO Platform and any Token Trading System
requires, will likely require, technology and intellectual property rights.

The ability of tZERO to develop tZERO Platform and any Token Trading System that may be developed in the future
may depend on technology and intellectual property rights that tZERO may license from unaffiliated third parties. If
for any reason tZERO were to fail to comply with its obligations under an applicable license agreement, or were
unable to provide or were to fail to provide the technology and intellectual property that the tZERO Platform or any
Token Trading System requires, they would be unable to operate, which would have a material adverse effect on
tZERO's operations and financial condition and could have a material adverse effect on us.

tZERO may face substantial competition from a number of known and unknown competitors as well as the risk that
one or more of them may obtain patents covering technology critical to the operation of the tZERO Platform or any
Token Trading System.

We believe that a number of organizations are or may be working to develop trading systems utilizing distributed
ledger or blockchain technologies or other novel technologies that may be competitive with tZERQO's own technology,
including its patented technology. Although it is difficult to obtain reliable information about blockchain activities by
companies that may be our competitors, they may include companies such as SharesPost, OpenFinance Network,
Templum Inc., Coinbase, KoreConX, Blocktrade AG, Smart Valor, the Nasdaq Stock Market, Intercontinental
Exchange, Circle, Ideanomics, CrowdEngine, Securitize, Harbor, and Polymath. As our industry matures, we expect
that larger existing companies in the financial services and technology industry, including companies offering services
and products related to e-commerce, cloud computing, artificial intelligence, online advertising, search engines,
software, and hardware may enter the digital securities secondary trading and digital securities exchange areas of our
current business and other areas of our potential business related to distributed ledger or blockchain technologies and
compete. Any or all of them may compete with us now or in the near future not only for potential business, but for the
time and attention of regulators and for the services of persons with the expertise we need. Some or all of such
organizations may have substantially greater technological expertise, experience with distributed ledger technologies
and/or financial resources than tZERO or Overstock has, and many of them appear to be attempting to patent
technologies that may be competitive with or similar to the technology tZERO has developed and patented. tZERO
does not have access to detailed information about the technologies these organizations and/or their respective
purchasers may be attempting to patent. If one or more other persons, companies or organizations obtains a valid
patent covering technology critical to the tZERO Platform or any Token Trading System, the tZERO partners that
need the relevant technology in order to enable the tZERO Platform or any Token Trading System to operate as
intended might be unable or unwilling to license the technology, and it could become impossible for the tZERO
Platform or any Token Trading System to operate, which could have a material adverse effect on tZERQO's operations
and financial condition and a material adverse effect on us. Further, tZERO’s subsidiaries may also face competition
in the areas of their respective businesses including accredited investor verification services, money services, or
broker dealer services, and these competitors may include Early 1Q, InvestReady.com, CharlesSchwab, the New York
Stock Exchange, the Nasdaq Stock Market, CBOE, Clearpool Group, Dash Financial Technologies, Coinbase,
SpectroCoin, Robinhood, Cash App, Abra, and Kraken. Any or all of them may compete with tZERO’s subsidiaries
now for current business or in the near future for potential business.

Additional Risks Relating to Our Retail Business
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Our business depends on the Internet, our infrastructure and transaction-processing systems.

We are completely dependent on our infrastructure and on the availability, reliability and security of the Internet and
related systems. Substantially all of our computer and communications hardware is located at a single Overstock
owned and operated facility. Our systems and operations are vulnerable to damage or interruption from fire, flood,
power loss, telecommunications failure, terrorist attacks, cyber-attacks, acts of war, break-ins, earthquake and similar
events. Our back-up facility is not adequate to support sales at a high level. Our servers and applications are
vulnerable to malware, physical or electronic break-ins and other disruptions, the occurrence of any of which could
lead to interruptions, delays, loss of critical data or the inability to accept and fulfill customer orders. Any system
interruption that results in the unavailability of our Website or our mobile app or reduced performance of our
transaction systems could interrupt or substantially reduce our ability to conduct our business. We have experienced
periodic systems interruptions due to server failure, application failure, power
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failure and intentional cyber-attacks in the past, and may experience additional interruptions or failures in the future.
Any failure or impairment of our infrastructure or of the availability of the Internet or related systems could have a
material adverse effect on our financial results, business and prospects.

We rely upon paid and unpaid natural search engines to rank our product offerings, and our financial results may
suffer if we are unable to regain our prior rankings in natural searches.

We rely on paid and unpaid natural search engines to attract consumer interest in our product offerings, including
Google, Bing, and Yahoo!. Changes to their ranking algorithms may further adversely affect our product offerings in
paid and/or unpaid searches, and we may at times be subject to ranking penalties if the operators of search engines
believe we are not in compliance with their guidelines. Search engine companies change their natural search engine
algorithms periodically, and our ranking in natural searches may be adversely affected by those changes, as has
occurred from time to time, and which have led us to pursue revenue growth in other more expensive marketing
channels. Google's search engine is dominant in our business and has historically been a significant source of traffic to
our website, much of it at essentially no incremental cost to us. If the changes we believe Google made in 2017
prevent us from regaining our prior rankings in Google's natural search engine, we will have to utilize more expensive
marketing channels or otherwise compensate for the loss of some of the natural search traffic, and if we are unable to
do so, our financial results may suffer and the changes may have a material adverse effect on our business. Search
engine companies may also determine that we are not in compliance with their guidelines from time to time, as has
occurred in the past, and they may penalize us in their search algorithms as a result.

Our business depends on effective marketing, including marketing via email and social networking messaging and our
competitors have and may continue to directly increase our marketing costs and also have and may continue to cause
us to decrease certain types of marketing.

We depend on effective marketing and high customer traffic. We depend on email to promote our site and offerings
and to generate a substantial portion of our revenue. If a significant portion of our target customers no longer utilize
email, or if we are unable to effectively and economically deliver email to our potential customers, whether for legal,
regulatory or other reasons, it would have a material adverse effect on our business. We also rely on social networking
messaging services for marketing purposes, and anything that limits our ability or our customers' ability or desire to
utilize social networking services could have a material adverse effect on our business. In addition to competing with
us for customers, suppliers, and employees, our competitors have and may continue to directly increase our operating
costs, by driving up the cost of various forms of online advertising. We may elect to decrease our use of sponsored
search or other forms of marketing from time to time in order to decrease our costs, which may have a material
adverse effect on our financial results and business. We may also elect to spend additional amounts on sponsored
search or other forms of marketing from time to time in order to increase traffic to our Website, or to take other
actions to increase traffic and/or conversion. If we are unable to develop, improve, implement and maintain effective
and efficient cost-effective advertising and marketing programs, it would have a material adverse effect on our
financial results and business.

Some shoppers may not utilize the search engines at all, and we may be unable to reach some of those shoppers.
Large marketplace websites and sites which aggregate marketplace sellers with a large product selection are becoming
increasingly popular, and we may not be able to place our products on these sites to take advantage of their internal
search platforms. Further, some shoppers may begin their searches at a competitor's website and may not utilize
traditional search engines at all. Our inability to place products on or access these sites may have a material adverse

effect on our business.

We are subject to cyber security risks and risks of data loss or other security breaches.
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Our business involves the storage and transmission of users' proprietary information, and security breaches could
expose us to a risk of loss or misuse of this information, and to resulting claims, fines, and litigation. We have been
subjected to a variety of cyber-attacks, which have increased in number and variety over time. We believe our systems
are probed by potential hackers virtually 24/7, and we expect the problem will continue to grow worse over time.
Cyber-attacks may target us, our customers, our suppliers, banks, credit card processors, delivery services,
e-commerce in general or the communication infrastructure on which we depend. Any compromise of our security
could result in a violation of applicable privacy and other laws, significant legal and financial exposure, damage to our
reputation, and a loss of confidence in our security measures, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our
financial results and business. Moreover, any insurance coverage we may carry may be inadequate to cover the
expenses and other potential financial exposure we could face as a result of a cyber-attack or data breach.
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We face intense competition and may not be able to compete successfully against existing or future competitors.

The online retail market is evolving rapidly and intensely competitive. Barriers to entry are minimal, and current and
new competitors can launch new websites at a relatively low cost. We currently compete with numerous competitors,
including:

online retailers with or without discount departments, including Amazon.com, AliExpress (part of the Alibaba
Group), eBay, and Rakuten.com (formerly Buy.com);

online shopping services, including Google Express;

online specialty retailers such as Blue Nile, Bluefly, Houzz, Jet.com, Wayfair, Zappos.com, and Zulily;

furniture specialists including Ashley Furniture, Bob's Discount Furniture, Havertys, Raymour & Flanigan and Rooms
To Go;

traditional general merchandise and specialty retailers and liquidators including Barnes and Noble, Bed, Bath &
Beyond, Best Buy, Costco, Crate and Barrel, Ethan Allen, Gilt, Home Depot, HomeGoods, Hudson's Bay Company,
{KEA, J.C. Penney Company, Kirkland's, Kohl's, Lands' End, Lowe's, Macy's, Nordstrom, Pier 1 Imports, Pottery
Barn, Restoration Hardware, Ross Stores, Saks Fifth Avenue, Sears, T.J. Maxx, Target, Wal-Mart, and
Williams-Sonoma, all of which also have an online presence; and

online liquidators such as SmartBargains.

We expect that existing and future traditional manufacturers and retailers will continue to add or improve their
e-commerce offerings, and that our existing and future e-commerce competitors, including Amazon, will continue to
increase their offerings, their delivery capabilities, and the ways in which they enable shoppers to purchase goods,
including their mobile technology and the voice-activated shopping services offered by Amazon. Many of our
competitors specialize in one or more of the areas in which we offer products. For example, our furniture offerings
compete with more than 100 online retail furniture websites, in addition to many more traditional furniture retail
specialists. Some of our competitors run at net losses to gain market share in the online retail market. We also face
competition from shopping services such as Google Express, which offers products from Walmart, Costco, Target and
other retailers on a voice-activated shopping platform. Competition from Amazon and from other competitors, many
of whom have longer operating histories, larger customer bases, greater brand recognition, greater access to capital
and significantly greater financial, marketing and other resources than we do, affect us and have had and could
continue to have a material adverse effect on our financial results, business and prospects.

Tariffs or other measures that increase the effective price of products we or our suppliers or fulfillment partners import
into the United States could have a material adverse effect on our business.

We and many of our suppliers and fulfillment partners source a large percentage of the products we offer on our
Website from China and other countries. If the United States imposes tariffs or other measures that directly or
indirectly increase the price of products we or they import and that we offer on our Website, the increased prices could
have a material adverse effect on our financial results, business and prospects.

Economic factors, including our increasing exposure to the U.S. housing industry, may adversely affect us.

Economic conditions, particularly any weakness in the United States housing market, may adversely affect our
financial performance. Over the last several years, the percentage of our sales from home and garden products has
increased substantially. We believe that our sales of home and garden products are affected by the strength of the U.S.
housing industry, and that downturns in the U.S. housing industry could have a material adverse effect on our
financial results, business and prospects.

Decreases in discretionary consumer spending may adversely affect us.
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A substantial portion of the products and services we offer are products or services that consumers may view as
discretionary items rather than necessities. As a result, our results of operations are sensitive to changes in
macro-economic conditions that impact consumer spending, including discretionary spending. Difficult
macro-economic conditions, particularly high levels of unemployment or underemployment, also impact our
customers' ability to obtain consumer credit. Other factors, including consumer confidence, employment levels,
interest rates, tax rates, consumer debt levels, and fuel and energy costs could reduce consumer spending or change
consumer purchasing habits. Slowdowns in the U.S. or global economy, or an uncertain economic outlook, could
materially adversely affect consumer spending habits and could have a material adverse effect on our financial results,
business and prospects.
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Our international business efforts could adversely affect us.

We sell products in international markets. International sales and transactions are subject to inherent risks and
challenges that could adversely affect us, including:

the need to develop new supplier and manufacturer relationships;

the need to comply with additional U.S. and foreign laws and regulations;

changes in international laws, regulatory requirements, taxes and tariffs;

our limited experience with different local cultures and standards;

weopolitical events, such as war and terrorist attacks;

the risk that the products we offer may not appeal to customers in international markets; and
the additional resources and management attention required for such expansion.

Our international business could expose us to penalties for non-compliance with laws applicable to international
business and trade, including the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, which could have a material adverse effect on
our business. Foreign data protection, privacy and other laws and regulations are different and often more restrictive
than those in the United States. Compliance with such laws and regulations will result in additional costs and may
necessitate changes to our business practices, which may adversely affect our business. To the extent that we make
purchases or sales denominated in foreign currencies, we would have foreign currency risks, which could have a
material adverse effect on our financial results, business and prospects.

If we do not successfully optimize and operate our warehouse, distribution centers and customer service operations,
our business could be harmed.

We have expanded, contracted and otherwise modified our warehouse, distribution centers and customer service
operations from time to time in the past, and expect that we will continue to do so. If we do not successfully optimize
and operate our warehouse, distribution centers and customer service operations, it could significantly limit our ability
to meet customer demand, customer shipping or return time expectations, or result in excessive costs and expenses for
the size of our business. Because it is difficult to predict demand, we may not be able to manage our facilities in an
optimal way, which may result in excess or insufficient inventory or warehousing capacity. We may also fail to staff
our fulfillment and customer service centers at optimal levels. Our failure to manage our warehouse operations,
distribution centers or our fulfillment and customer service centers optimally could adversely affect our financial
results and customer experience and could have a material adverse effect on our financial results, business and
prospects.

We depend on a large number of other companies to perform functions critical to our business, and any failure on their
part could have a material adverse effect our business.

We depend on a large number of other companies, including a large number of independent fulfillment partners whose
products we offer for sale on our Website, to perform functions critical to our ability to deliver products and services
to our customers. We depend on our fulfillment partners to perform a number of traditional retail operations such as
maintaining inventory, preparing merchandise for shipment to our customers and delivering purchased merchandise
on a timely basis. We also depend on the delivery services that we and they utilize, on the payment processors that
facilitate our customers' payments for their purchases, and on other third parties over which we have no control, for
the operation of our business. Difficulties with any of our significant fulfillment partners, delivery services, payment
processors or other third parties involved in our business, regardless of the reason, could have a material adverse effect
on our financial results, business and prospects.

We depend on our suppliers and fulfillment partners representations regarding product safety, content and quality, and
for proper labelling of products.
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We rely on our suppliers' and fulfillment partners' representations of product safety, content and quality. We also rely
on our suppliers and partners to ensure proper labelling of products. Issues or concerns regarding product safety,
labelling, content or quality could result in consumer or governmental claims and could adversely affect our financial
results and business. Any indemnity agreement we may have with a supplier or partner of a product may be
inadequate or inapplicable, and any insurance coverage we may carry may be inadequate. Even unsuccessful claims
could result in the expenditure of funds and management time and could have a negative impact on our business. The
occurrence of any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on our financial results, business and
prospects.
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Our decision to accept and hold cryptocurrency, such as bitcoin, may subject us to exchange risk and additional tax
and regulatory requirements.

In 2014, we began accepting bitcoin as a form of payment for purchases on our website. Neither bitcoin nor any of the
other cryptocurrencies we may hold are considered legal tender or backed by any government, and bitcoin and other
cryptocurrencies we may hold have experienced price volatility, technological glitches and various law enforcement
and regulatory interventions. The use of cryptocurrency such as bitcoin has been prohibited or effectively prohibited
in some countries. If we fail to comply with regulations or prohibitions applicable to us, we could face regulatory or
other enforcement actions and potential fines and other consequences. Our Board of Directors has authorized us to
retain, in bitcoin, up to 50% of our sales revenues paid for by customers in bitcoin. From time to time we hold bitcoin
and other cryptocurrencies directly, and we have exchange rate risk on the amounts we hold as well as the risks that
regulatory or other developments may adversely affect the value of the cryptocurrencies we hold. We may choose not
to hedge or may be unable to fully hedge our exposure to cryptocurrencies and may at times be unable to convert
cryptocurrencies to U.S. dollars. If any regulatory authority asserts that we require a license or other regulatory
approval to conduct business or own an interest in other businesses involving cryptocurrencies, it could have a
material adverse effect on our financial results and business.

In addition to our efforts to transition from our historical business as an e-commerce retailer to a blockchain-focused
company, we have an evolving e-commerce business model, which increases the complexity of our retail business.

In addition to our efforts to transition from our historical business as an e-commerce retailer to a blockchain-focused
company as described in this report, our retail business model has evolved in the past and continues to do so. In prior
years we added additional types of services and product offerings and in some cases, we modified or discontinued
those offerings, and in some cases have re-launched offerings we had previously terminated. We may continue to try
to offer additional types of products or services, and we do not know whether any of them will be successful. From
time to time we have also modified aspects of our business model relating to our product mix and the mix of
direct/partner sourcing of the products we offer. The additions and modifications to our business have increased the
complexity of our business and impacted our management, personnel, operations, systems, technical performance,
financial resources, and internal financial control and reporting functions. Future additions to or modifications of our
business are likely to have similar effects. Further, any new business or website we launch that is not favorably
received by consumers could damage our reputation or our brand. The occurrence of any of the foregoing could have a
material adverse effect on our financial results, business and prospects.

Our plans to end our Club O Rewards Mastercard could adversely affect us.

We are planning to end our Overstock Club O Rewards Mastercard which offers cardholders a complimentary Club O
Rewards membership with a higher reward earning percentage (8%). We anticipate larger than normal rewards
redemption from these members during the immediate 60-day grace period following the closure on March 29, 2019
which could have a material adverse effect on our financial results in Q2 2019.

Our insurance coverage and indemnity rights may not adequately protect us against loss.

The types, coverage, or the amounts of any insurance coverage we may carry from time to time may not be adequate
to compensate us for any losses we may actually incur in the operation of our business. Further, any insurance we may
desire to purchase may not be available to us on terms we find acceptable or at all. We are not indemnified by all of
our suppliers, and any indemnification rights we may have may not be enforceable or adequate to cover actual losses
we may incur as a result of our sales of their products. Actual losses for which we are not insured or indemnified, or
which exceed our insurance coverage or the capacity of our indemnitors or our ability to enforce our indemnity
agreements, could have a material adverse effect on our financial results, business and prospects.
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We are partially self-insured with respect to our employees' health insurance. If the actual costs of these claims exceed
the amounts we have reserved for them, we would incur additional expense.

Beginning January 1, 2017, we are partially self-insured with respect to our employees' health insurance, except to the
extent of stop-loss coverage that limits our losses both on a per employee basis and an aggregate basis. The actual
costs of our employees' health insurance claims could exceed our estimates of those costs for a number of reasons,
including more claims or larger claims than we expect, and increases in the costs of healthcare generally. If the actual
cost of our employees' health insurance claims and related expenses exceeds the amounts we have accrued, we may be
required to record additional charges for these claims and/or to establish additional reserves, which could have a
material adverse effect on our financial results, business and prospects.
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Additional Risks Relating to Our Medici Business

The businesses that we are pursuing through our Medici initiatives are novel and subject to technical, operational,
financial, regulatory, legal, reputational and marketing risks.

In August 2015, we acquired the assets and business of a financial technology ("fintech") company and in January
2016, we acquired two registered broker-dealers (our "broker-dealer subsidiaries") that were affiliated with the fintech
company. We have limited experience with the operation of fintech companies or of broker-dealers. In

December 2016, we issued publicly-traded securities traded exclusively on a registered alternative trading system
operated by one of our majority-owned broker-dealer subsidiaries, the ownership of which is tracked on a blockchain.
Our majority-owned subsidiary tZERO is working on other potential financial applications of blockchain technology,
including the potential development of a trading platform for digital "tokens" or "coins" treated as securities. See
"Additional Risks Relating to Our tZERO Initiatives" below. These are areas in which we do not have substantial
experience, and which are subject to the risks of new and novel businesses, including technical, operational, financial,
regulatory, legal and reputational risks, as well as the risk that we may be unable to market, license or sell our
technology successfully or profitably. The occurrence of any such risks could have a material adverse effect on our
financial results and business.

We may be required to write off amounts relating to our interests in startup businesses.

At December 31, 2018, Overstock and its subsidiaries held minority interests totaling approximately $60.4 million in
several companies that are in the startup or development stages and we may acquire additional minority interests in
other entities in the future. These interests are inherently risky because the markets for the technologies or products
these companies are developing are typically in the early stages and may never materialize. Additionally, since these
interests are in companies that are in the early startup or development stages, even if their technology or products are
viable, they may not be able to obtain the capital or resources necessary to successfully bring their technology or
products to market. Furthermore, we have no assurance that the technology or products of companies we have funded
would be successful, even if they were brought to market. We have written off amounts related to these interests in the
past and may in the future write off additional amounts related to these interests. Any such write-offs could be
material and could have a material adverse effect on our financial results and business.

Our ownership interest in digital currency transfer and payment businesses may expose us to additional risks.

Medici has acquired equity interests in startup companies which are pursuing a variety of digital currency transfer and
payment businesses. Virtually every state in the U.S. regulates money transmitters and money services businesses. In
some states the licensing requirements and regulations expressly cover companies engaged in digital currency
activities; in other states it is not clear whether or how the existing laws and regulations apply to digital currency
activities. Further, U.S. federal law requires registration of most such businesses with FinCEN. These licenses and
registrations subject companies to various anti-money laundering, know-your-customer, record-keeping, reporting and
capital and bonding requirements, limitations on the investment of customer funds, and inspection by state and federal
regulatory agencies. Under U.S. federal law, it is a crime for a person, entity or business that is required to be
registered with FinCEN or licensed in any state to fail to do so. Further, under U.S. federal law, anyone who owns all
or part of an unlicensed money transmitting business may be subject to civil and criminal penalties. If Bitt, Spera, or
FinClusive take any action that could subject them to registration with FinCEN or to licensing requirements in any
state before they become properly licensed and registered, we could be subject to potential civil and criminal
penalties. Any such penalties, or even the allegation of criminal or other illegal activities, could have a material
adverse effect on us and on our financial results and business.
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If we do not keep pace with technological changes, it may impair our ability to market, license or sell the products and
services developed as part of our Medici initiatives.

The market for products and services based on blockchain technology is characterized by rapid technological change,
frequent product and service innovation and evolving industry standards. The success of our Medici initiatives
depends on several factors, including the timely completion, introduction and market acceptance of such products and
services. Failure in this regard may significantly impair our competitiveness and financial results. In addition, we may
need to continuously modify and enhance our offerings to keep pace with changes in Internet-related hardware,
software, communication, browser and database technologies. We may not be successful in either developing these
modifications and enhancements or in bringing them to market in a timely fashion. Furthermore, uncertainties about
the timing and nature of new network platforms or technologies, or modifications to existing platforms or
technologies, could increase our research and development expenses. Any failure of products and services to keep
pace with technological changes or operate effectively with future network
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platforms and technologies could reduce the demand for our products and services. The occurrence of any of the
foregoing could have a material adverse effect on our financial results and business.

The blockchain related products and services that we are developing as part of our Medici initiatives have the
potential to be used in ways we do not intend, including for criminal or other illegal activities.

Blockchain related products and services, in particular cryptocurrencies, have the potential to be used for financial
crimes or other illegal activities. Because the Medici initiatives are novel there are uncertainties regarding any legal
and regulatory requirements for preventing blockchain related products and services from being put to such uses, and
there are uncertainties regarding the liabilities and risks to the Company if we are unable to prevent such uses. Even if
we comply with all laws and regulations regarding financial and blockchain related products and services, we have no
ability to ensure that our customers, partners or others to whom we license or sell our products and services comply
with all laws and regulations applicable to them and their transactions. Any negative publicity we receive regarding
any allegations of unlawful uses of our Medici initiatives could damage our reputation. More generally, any negative
publicity regarding unlawful uses of blockchain technology in the marketplace could reduce the demand for our
products and services. The occurrence of any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on our financial
results and business.

Risks Relating to Our Common Stock and Other Securities

If we determine not to sell our retail business or make other fundamental changes to our business, the trading prices of
our securities may decrease significantly. The trading prices of our securities may also decrease significantly if we
determine to take any such actions.

The trading prices of our common stock and other securities have been and may continue to be volatile. Our stock
price fluctuations may be due in part to our disclosures about our exploration of strategic alternatives. Our stock price
may be adversely affected by our future actions, including any decisions we may make or announcements to pursue or
not to pursue such strategic alternatives, and by any announcements we may make regarding any such matters, any of
which could cause the trading prices of our securities to decrease significantly which in turn could adversely affect our
ability to raise capital and could have a material adverse effect on our financial results, business and prospects.

The trading prices of our securities may be adversely affected by short-selling activities involving our common stock.

The trading prices of our common stock and other securities have been and may continue to be volatile. Our stock
price fluctuations may be due in part to short-selling activity related to our common stock. The practice of
short-selling activity may adversely affect our common stock price, which in turn could adversely affect our ability to
raise capital and could have a material adverse effect on our financial results, business and prospects.

The trading prices of our securities may be affected by the prices of cryptocurrencies, particularly Bitcoin, despite our
disclosures that we generally hold very little Bitcoin, and by perceptions regarding the business prospects of
blockchain technology generally.

The trading prices of our securities may be affected by the prices of cryptocurrencies, particularly Bitcoin, which may
be the result of an apparent misperception that the value of our business is related to the value of Bitcoin, despite our
disclosures that we generally hold very little Bitcoin. The market price of our securities may also be affected by
perceptions regarding the business prospects of our Medici business and blockchain technology generally. To the
extent that our blockchain initiatives do not succeed in a timely manner or at all, or the development or acceptance of
blockchain networks, blockchain assets or blockchain applications slows or stops, the trading prices of our securities
could decrease significantly, which in turn could adversely affect our ability to raise capital and could have a material
adverse effect on our financial results, business and prospects.
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We do not intend to pay dividends on our common stock and you may lose the entire amount of your investment in
our common stock.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock and do not intend to pay dividends on our
common stock for the foreseeable future. We intend to invest our future earnings, if any, to fund our growth.
Therefore, holders of our common stock will not receive any funds without selling their shares. You may not receive a
positive return on your investment, and you may lose your entire investment.
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Sales by our significant stockholders could have an adverse effect on the market price of our common and preferred
stock.

A small number of our stockholders own a significant percentage of our common stock. Our Chief Executive Officer
Patrick Byrne is the beneficial owner of approximately 18% of our common stock and approximately 50% of our
Series A preferred stock. Various trusts related to his mother Dorothy Byrne are the beneficial owners of an additional
aggregate of approximately 5.0% of our common stock. In addition, according to public filings with the SEC, at
December 31, 2018, a small number of institutional investors were beneficial owners of significant percentages of our
common stock. Sales by any of such stockholders could have a material adverse effect on the market prices of our
common stock and/or preferred stock. Dr. Byrne and/or entities he controls, including High Plains Investments LLC,
may sell shares of our common stock in the future and/or may enter into a Rule 10b5-1 plan for the sale of shares of
our common stock in the future. In addition, the transfer of ownership of a significant portion of our outstanding
shares within a three-year period could adversely affect our ability to use our net operating losses to offset future
taxable net income. Any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on the holders of our securities.

Pledges of our shares by officers and directors and significant stockholders could have an adverse effect on us and on
the market price of our common and preferred stock.

We do not prohibit or restrict our officers, directors, significant stockholders or others from pledging shares of our
company owned by any of them, by holding them in a margin account or otherwise. Patrick Byrne, who is our Chief
Executive Officer, a member of our Board and our largest stockholder (directly and indirectly through High Plains
Investments LLC), has pledged approximately 1.9 million of the approximately 5.8 million shares he beneficially
owns to one or more banks to secure a credit facility for High Plains Investments LLC and a personal loan. Any
margin call or similar action by a lender that results in a forced sale of shares pledged by any of our officers, directors
or significant stockholders could have an adverse effect on us and could have an adverse effect on the market price of
our securities.

Our quarterly operating results are volatile and may adversely affect the market prices of our common stock and
preferred stock, and you may lose all or a part of your investment.

We have experienced and expect to continue to experience significant fluctuations in our operating results in part
because of seasonal fluctuations in traditional retail patterns. Our gross revenues have historically been significantly
lower in the first and second calendar quarters than in the fourth quarter of the prior year due primarily to increased
shopping activity during the fourth quarter holiday season. Further, we generally increase our inventories substantially
in anticipation of holiday season shopping activity, which has a negative effect on our cash flow. As a result of the
fourth quarter holiday season shopping, we also typically have unusually large payments due to our fulfillment
partners in the first calendar quarter. Our revenues and operating results have varied in the past and may continue to
vary significantly from quarter to quarter due to a number of other factors, many of which are outside our control. In
addition to seasonal effects and the other risk factors described in this report, factors that have caused and/or could
cause our quarterly operating results to fluctuate and in turn affect the market prices of our common stock and
preferred stock include:

tncreases in the cost of advertising and changes in our sales and marketing expenditures;
expenses we incur in our Medici and tZERO business development efforts;

our inability to retain existing customers or encourage repeat purchases;

the extent to which our existing and future marketing campaigns are successful;

price competition, particularly in the costs of marketing as well as in product pricing;

the amount and timing of operating costs and capital expenditures;

the amount and timing of our purchases of inventory;

our inability to manage distribution operations or provide adequate levels of customer service;
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tncreases in the cost of fuel, transportation or distribution;

our inability to implement technology changes or integrate operations and technologies from acquisitions or other
business combinations;

our efforts to offer new lines of products and services; and

our inability to attract users to our website.

Any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on our financial results and business and our ability to raise
capital and could have a material adverse effect on the holders of our common stock and of our preferred stock.
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Our outstanding preferred stock could adversely affect the holders of our common stock in some circumstances.

We have two series of preferred stock outstanding. The preferred stock could adversely affect the holders of our
common stock in some circumstances. The preferred stock generally votes with the common stock, with holders of the
preferred stock having one vote for each share held. As of December 31, 2018, the 481,259 outstanding shares of
preferred stock constituted approximately 1.5% of the total number of shares of the preferred stock and the common
stock, taken together. The preferred stock ranks senior to the common stock with respect to dividends, is entitled to an
annual cash dividend of $0.16 per share in preference to any dividend on the common stock and is generally entitled
to participate in any dividends we pay on the common stock. The preferred stock ranks equally with the common
stock upon our liquidation, winding up or dissolution. Generally, in a business combination, each share of the
preferred stock would be treated as a share of common stock. Any of the foregoing could have a material adverse
effect on the holders of the common stock.

We may issue additional preferred stock without further stockholder approval, for purposes of a stockholder rights
plan or for other purposes, and any such preferred stock could entitle the holders to rights superior to those of the
holders of our common stock.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation authorizes our board to designate and issue preferred stock on
such terms as may be approved by the board without further stockholder approval. Our board could do so in
connection with the adoption of a stockholder rights plan or for other reasons. Preferred stock could be issued with
rights, preferences and privileges superior to those of our common stock. In addition, the issuance of preferred stock
could have the effect of making an acquisition of our Company more difficult or costly. We currently have 1.0 million
authorized shares of preferred stock undesignated as to series, and we could cause shares currently designated as to
series but not outstanding to become undesignated and available for issuance as a series of preferred stock to be
designated in the future.

Our Board of Directors or the compensation committee could accelerate the vesting of outstanding restricted stock
units upon a sale of the Company or otherwise, which could result in an increase in the number of shares outstanding.

The compensation committee of our board has granted and expects to grant additional restricted stock units ("RSUs")
to certain of our employees and directors. Upon vesting, we issue one share of common stock for every RSU held. The
board or the compensation committee could determine to accelerate the vesting of RSUs in the event of our sale of our
retail business or otherwise, which would result in an increase in the number of shares outstanding and would dilute
stockholders' ownership of our company. Although the number of RSUs outstanding changes frequently, if all RSUs
outstanding were vested as of December 31, 2018, the RSUs would convert into approximately 559,000 shares of our
common stock, or approximately 2.0% of the number of shares of common stock currently outstanding.

We generally have not received significant coverage by securities analysts, and the lack of coverage may adversely
affect our share price and trading volume.

We generally have not received significant coverage by securities analysts, and the securities analysts who do cover us
may stop coverage at any time. The lack of coverage may adversely affect our share price and trading volume and
may cause our share price or trading volume to be lower than they might be if more analysts covered us.

Anti-takeover provisions contained in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated
bylaws, as well as provisions of Delaware law, could impair a takeover attempt.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, amended and restated bylaws and Delaware law contain

provisions which could have the effect of rendering more difficult, delaying, or preventing an acquisition deemed
undesirable by our Board of Directors. Among other things, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and

70



Edgar Filing: OVERSTOCK.COM, INC - Form 10-K

amended and restated bylaws include provisions:

authorizing "blank check" preferred stock, which could be issued by our Board of Directors without stockholder
approval and may contain voting, liquidation, dividend and other rights superior to our common stock;

{imiting the liability of, and providing indemnification to, our directors and officers;

Yimiting the ability of our stockholders to call and bring business before special meetings;

providing that our Board of Directors is classified into three classes of directors with staggered three-year terms;

only permitting the Board of Directors to fix the number of directors and to fill vacancies;

prohibiting cumulative voting in the election of directors;

rohibit stockholder action by written consent, which requires all stockholder actions to be taken at a meeting of our
stockholders;
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requiring advance notice of stockholder proposals for business to be conducted at meetings of our stockholders and
for nominations of candidates for election to our Board of Directors;

controlling the procedures for the conduct and scheduling of Board of Directors and stockholder meetings; and
designating a state court located in the State of Delaware as the sole and exclusive forum for specified matters.

These provisions, alone or together, could delay or prevent hostile takeovers and changes in control or changes in our
management.

As a Delaware corporation, we are also subject to provisions of Delaware law, including Section 203 of the Delaware
General Corporation law, which prevents certain stockholders holding more than 15% of our outstanding common
stock from engaging in certain business combinations without approval of the holders of at least two-thirds of our
outstanding common stock not held by such 15% or greater stockholder.

Any provision of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, amended and restated bylaws or Delaware law
that has the effect of delaying, preventing or deterring a change in control could limit the opportunity for our
stockholders to receive a premium for their shares of our common stock or other securities and could also affect the
price that some investors are willing to pay for our common stock or other securities.

Additional Risks Related Primarily to our Series A Preferred Stock

Our Series A Preferred shares are substantially different from other securities traded in the U.S. public markets and are
subject to a variety of unusual restrictions and material risks.

Our Series A Preferred can trade only on the PRO Securities ATS utilizing the tZERO Platform. Trades of the Series
A Preferred settle on the trade date. The Series A Preferred is not and will not be listed on any securities exchange or
any other market of any kind. The Series A Preferred is extraordinarily illiquid. Only approximately ten trades in the
Series A Preferred have taken place since we issued the Series A Preferred in December 2016. Shares of Series A
Preferred can be held only in an online brokerage account with Keystone and cannot be held in any other account or
manner. Only certain persons and types of entities may purchase Series A Preferred. As a result of these and other
matters, the market for the Series A Preferred is likely to remain extraordinarily illiquid and it may be impossible to
sell any shares of the Series A Preferred.

The technology on which the tZERO Platform depends has been developed by our majority-owned subsidiary,
tZERO, and is licensed by its subsidiary, PRO Securities, and the Series A Preferred depends on both tZERO and on
PRO Securities, neither of which has substantial resources.

tZERO is a majority-owned subsidiary of ours and owns 100% of the equity interest in PRO Securities. tZERO
licenses the tZERO Platform to PRO Securities, and PRO Securities operates the PRO Securities ATS. Neither tZERO
nor PRO Securities has substantial resources or any commitment from any person, including the Company, to
contribute additional capital or to make any loan to either of them. If any one or more of the Company, tZERO or
PRO Securities were unable to fund its operations in the future, or if any one or more of them were to become the
subject of a bankruptcy or other insolvency proceeding, PRO Securities might be unable to continue to operate the
tZERO Platform, and the Series A Preferred could be materially adversely affected. In any such event, or if the PRO
Securities ATS or the tZERO Platform were to be unable to operate as a result of intellectual property issues or fail to
operate as intended for any other reason, holders of our capital stock, including the Series A Preferred, could lose their
entire investment in our capital stock, including all amounts invested in the Series A Preferred.

Accounts for the Series A Preferred are held directly in the customer's name, rather than in "street name," and the
complete trading history of each digital wallet is available to the general public and it may be possible for members of
the public to determine the identity of the holders of wallets.
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The Series A Preferred shares are directly recorded on our stockholder books and records maintained by
Computershare Trust Company, N.A. ("Computershare"), and cannot be held in "street name". The tZERO Platform
makes trade data publicly available shortly after each trade. The publicly available information includes the digital
wallet address of each holder of Series A Preferred and the entire trading history of each wallet, including the price of
each trade and the balance of the securities held. In addition, because all holders of the Series A Preferred are holders
of record, all of them are subject to the risk of loss of their anonymity.
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The Series A Preferred depends on both Keystone and its clearing broker, ETC.

The Series A Preferred depends on both Keystone and Electronic Transaction Clearing, Inc. ("ETC"). Keystone is the
only broker dealer authorized to provide the accounts required to trade the Series A Preferred, and ETC is the clearing
broker for Keystone with respect to the Series A Preferred. Any failure of either Keystone or ETC to continue
operating or to satisfactorily perform its obligations could make it impossible to trade the Series A Preferred.

In the event of the insolvency of Keystone or ETC, the Securities Investor Protection Corporation might not provide
any protection to the holders of Series A Preferred.

The Securities Investor Protection Corporation ("SIPC") oversees the liquidation of member broker dealers that close
when the broker dealer is bankrupt or in financial trouble, and customer assets are missing. SIPC normally provides
limited protection to customers. However, if Keystone or ETC were to become insolvent, the structure of the trading
system for the Series A Preferred could mean that SIPC would provide no protection to holders at all, which could
have a material adverse effect on holders of Series A Preferred.

Transactions involving the Series A Preferred could result in errors, which may be impossible to correct.

Some transactions in the Series A Preferred could require manual intervention, which could result in errors, and
because trades on in the Series A Preferred settle on the trade date, it may be impossible to correct any error,
regardless of the source of the error, which could have a material adverse effect on holders of Series A Preferred.

The Series A Preferred depends on Computershare as the transfer agent for the Series A Preferred.

Computershare serves as the transfer agent for the Series A Preferred. If Computershare were unable or unwilling for
any reason to serve as such, trading in the Series A Preferred would be impossible unless we were able to substitute
another transfer agent, which would have a material adverse effect on the holders of the Series A Preferred.

The potential application of U.S. laws regarding traditional investment securities to the Series A Preferred is unclear.

Because of the differences between the Series A Preferred and traditional investment securities, there is a risk that
issues that might easily be resolved by existing law if traditional securities were involved may not be easily resolved
for the Series A Preferred. The occurrence of any such issue or dispute could have a material adverse effect on the
holders of Series A Preferred.

The potential application of U.S. laws regarding virtual currencies and money transmission to PRO Securities' use of
the Ethereum blockchain is unclear.

The tZERO Platform uses the Ethereum blockchain for certain purposes. None of the parties involved in the operation
of the tZERO Platform is licensed under the virtual currency or money transmission regulations of any state in the
United States or registered with FinCEN. If any regulatory authority were to assert that the operation of the tZERO
Platform requires such licensing or registration, it could have a material adverse effect on the holders of the Series A
Preferred.

We have the right to convert the outstanding shares of Series A Preferred into shares of Series B Preferred at any time.
We have the right to convert the Series A Preferred into Series B Preferred at any time, and the terms of the Series B
Preferred may be amended at any time without the consent of the holders of the Series A Preferred. Any such

conversion and any such amendment of the Series B Preferred could have a material adverse effect on holders of
Series A Preferred.

74



Edgar Filing: OVERSTOCK.COM, INC - Form 10-K

The restrictions on the tax reporting of holder's cost basis in shares of Series A Preferred will not allow normal tax
planning in the sale of shares of Series A Preferred and may result in disadvantageous tax consequences to a seller of
Series A Preferred.

Only one method of cost basis reporting (the first-in, first-out, or FIFO, method) is available for the Series A
Preferred. As a result, sellers of Series A Preferred may be required to pay more tax on their sales or to pay taxes
earlier than if other normal methods of cost basis reporting had been available, which could have a material adverse
effect on the holders of Series A Preferred.
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Additional Risks Related to both our Series A Preferred Stock and our Series B Preferred Stock

We do not intend to issue any additional shares of either Series A Preferred or Series B Preferred, which is expected to
continue to result in very limited trading in each series.

We do not intend to issue any additional shares of Series A Preferred or of Series B Preferred, and we expect trading
in the Series A Preferred and the Series B Preferred to continue to be very limited.

We do not expect there to be any market makers to develop a trading market in the Series A Preferred, and there is
only one market maker in the Series B Preferred.

Most securities that are publicly traded in the United States have one or more broker dealers acting as "market
makers" for the security. A market maker is a firm that stands ready to buy and sell the security on a regular and
continuous basis at publicly quoted prices. Currently, to our knowledge, there is only one market maker in the Series
B Preferred. Further, we do not believe that the Series A Preferred will ever have any market makers. We expect the
lack of market makers to continue to contribute to a lack of liquidity in the Series A Preferred and in the Series B
Preferred, which could have a material adverse effect on holders' ability to trade either of them.

Rule 144 is not available for resales of "restricted shares" of Series A Preferred, and Rule 144 volume limitations on
resales of Series B Preferred are very low.

Persons, including non-affiliates of a public company such as the Company, who acquire shares directly or indirectly
from the public company, or from an affiliate of the public company, in a transaction or chain of transactions not
involving any public offering, or otherwise as described in Rule 144, acquire "restricted shares" for purposes of
Rule 144. Although Rule 144 permits public sales of "restricted shares" subject to certain conditions, Rule 144 is not
available for any sales of Series A Preferred, and the sale of any such shares may be difficult or impossible. Further,
because of the limited number of shares of Series B Preferred outstanding, the volume limitations of Rule 144 would
severely limit sales of Series B Preferred under Rule 144.

We will have an economic incentive to repurchase Series A Preferred and Series B Preferred at prices below the
redemption price, and our doing so could cause the trading prices of Series A Preferred and Series B Preferred, as
applicable, to decrease further.

We do not intend to repurchase any shares of the Series A Preferred or Series B Preferred, but if we do, we would do
so only at or below the prices at which we could redeem the shares. If we repurchase or redeem shares of either
Series A Preferred or Series B Preferred, the trading market for the shares would become less liquid, which could
cause the trading prices to decrease further, giving us an economic incentive to repurchase additional shares. The
occurrence of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on holders of Series A Preferred, Series B Preferred,
or both.

A share of Series A Preferred and/or Series B Preferred may have a substantially lower market value than a share of
our common stock.

The trading prices of the Series A Preferred and the Series B Preferred have been and may continue to be substantially
lower than the trading price of our common stock, which could have a material adverse effect on holders of Series A
Preferred and holders of Series B Preferred.

Holders of Series A Preferred and/or Series B Preferred have no rights with respect to our common stock, but they

may be adversely affected by certain events or changes made with respect to our common stock.
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Holders of our Series A Preferred and our Series B Preferred have no rights with respect to our common stock, and no
right to convert their shares into common stock or to exchange their shares for common stock, except that such
holders have the right to vote with the common stock. Holders of Preferred Stock do not have other rights of the
holders of the common stock, including the right to respond to common stock tender offers, if any, and their
investment in the Series A Preferred and/or the Series B Preferred may be materially negatively affected by any such
event. Holders' lack of any such rights, or the occurrence of any such event, could have a material adverse effect on
holders of Series A Preferred and holders of Series B Preferred.
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Voting rights of holders of Preferred Stock generally will be limited to voting together with the holders of the
common stock as a single class, and the holders of the Series A Preferred and the holders of the Series B Preferred
collectively will have only a small percentage of the voting power on any matter submitted to the holders of the
common stock and the Series A Preferred and Series B Preferred, voting together as a single class.

Voting rights of holders of Preferred Stock generally will be limited to voting together with the holders of the
common stock as a single class. Neither the holders of the Series A Preferred nor the holders of the Series B Preferred
have any right by themselves, either together or as separate classes, to elect any members of our Board of Directors.
As of December 31, 2018, the 481,259 shares of Preferred Stock that remained outstanding constituted approximately
1.5% of the total number of shares of the Preferred Stock and the common stock, taken together. If an amendment
requiring stockholder approval is proposed to our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation or our Amended
and Restated Bylaws, the holders of the Series A Preferred and the holders of the Series B Preferred will vote together
with the holders of the common stock as a single class, but neither the holders of the Series A Preferred nor the
holders of the Series B Preferred will be entitled to a class vote on the amendment, unless the proposed amendment
would adversely affect the special rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers of the Series A Preferred or

Series B Preferred, respectively. Holders' limited voting rights and any of the foregoing events could have a material
adverse effect on holders of Series A Preferred and holders of Series B.

The Series A Preferred and the Series B Preferred rank junior to all of our and our subsidiaries' liabilities, as well as
the capital stock of our subsidiaries held by third parties, in the event of a bankruptcy, liquidation or winding up of our
or our subsidiaries' business.

In the event of our bankruptcy, liquidation or winding up, any assets will be available to make payments to holders of
Series A Preferred and to holders of Series B Preferred only after all of our liabilities have been paid, and neither the
Series A Preferred nor the Series B Preferred will have any preference over the common stock in the event of our
bankruptcy, liquidation or winding up. In addition, the Series A Preferred and Series B Preferred will rank structurally
junior to all existing and future liabilities of our subsidiaries, as well as the capital stock of our subsidiaries held by
third parties, including employees holding shares of our majority-owned subsidiary tZERO and employees holding
shares of any other direct or indirect subsidiary of ours, whether now existing or created in the future. Any
bankruptcy, liquidation or winding up of the Company or any of its wholly or partially owned subsidiaries would have
a material adverse effect on holders of Series A Preferred and holders of Series B Preferred.

Our obligation to pay dividends on the Series A Preferred or on the Series B Preferred is limited, and our ability to pay
dividends on the Series A Preferred and on the Series B Preferred may be limited.

Our obligation to pay preferential dividends on the Series A Preferred and the Series B Preferred is subject to our
Board of Directors declaring such dividend payments, and our failure to pay preferential dividends on the Series A
Preferred and on the Series B Preferred might have no legal effect on us at all, although it could adversely affect the
trading prices of the Series A Preferred and of the Series B Preferred. Further, our payment of any dividends will be
subject to contractual and legal restrictions and other factors the board deems relevant, including agreements
governing any future indebtedness of ours. Any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on the holders of
the Series A Preferred and the holders of the Series B Preferred.

Purchasers of the Series A Preferred and of the Series B Preferred may be adversely affected by our issuance of any
subsequent series of preferred stock.

Neither the terms of the Series A Preferred nor the terms of the Series B Preferred restrict our ability to issue one or
more additional new series of preferred stock, any or all of which may rank equally with or have preferences over the
Series A Preferred and the Series B Preferred as to dividend payments, voting rights, rights upon liquidation or other
types of rights. We will have no obligation to consider the specific interests of the holders of Series A Preferred or the
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specific interests of the holders of Series B Preferred in creating any such new series of preferred stock or engaging in
any such offering or transaction. Our creation of any such new series of preferred stock or our engaging in any such
offering or transaction could have a material adverse effect on the holders of Series A Preferred and the holders of
Series B Preferred.

It is uncertain whether the IRS will treat the Series A Preferred and Series B Preferred as common stock or preferred
stock for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

We intend to treat the Series A Preferred and Series B Preferred as common stock for U.S. federal income tax
purposes. Nevertheless, it is unclear whether the IRS will treat the Series A Preferred and Series B Preferred as
common stock for U.S. federal income tax purposes. If the IRS were not to treat either the Series A Preferred or the
Series B Preferred as
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common stock for U.S. federal income tax purposes, it could have a material adverse effect on the holders of Series A
Preferred and the holders of Series B Preferred.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of December 31, 2018, we operated the following facilities in our retail business segments, unless otherwise
indicated:

Corporate office space

We own approximately 236,000 square feet of office space in Midvale, Utah, which consists of our corporate
headquarters, and which is primarily used for our retail business segment, with a small portion of the space used by
our Medici business, including our tZERO segment.

We lease approximately 12,000 square feet of additional office space in the United States for tZERQO's main office.
We lease approximately 6,000 square feet of additional office space in Ireland for developers which are primarily
used for our retail business segment.

Warehouse, fulfillment and customer service space

.We lease approximately 1.5 million square feet in the United States for warehouse, fulfillment, customer service, and
other operations.

Data centers

We lease approximately 3,300 square feet in the United States for various data centers.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information set forth under Item 15 of Part IV, "Financial Statements—Note 12. Commitments and Contingencies,
subheading Legal Proceedings," contained in the "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K is incorporated by reference in answer to this Item.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market information

The principal U.S. trading market for our common stock is the Nasdaq Global Market. Our common stock is traded
under the symbol "OSTK."

Stock Performance Graph
The stock performance graph is included in Part III, Item 12.
Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

Except as set forth herein, the information required by this Item is included in Part III, Item 12, or incorporated therein
by reference to our definitive proxy statement for the 2019 annual meeting of stockholders.

Holders

As of March 13, 2019, there were 120 holders of record of our common stock. Many of our shares of common stock
are held by brokers and other institutions on behalf of the beneficial owners.

Dividends

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain any earnings
for future growth and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. Any
future determination to pay dividends on our common stock will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and
will depend on our results of operations, financial conditions, contractual and legal restrictions and other factors the
Board of Directors deems relevant.

At December 31, 2018 we had 481,259 shares of our preferred stock (the "Preferred Stock") outstanding. The
Preferred Stock ranks senior to our common stock with respect to dividends. Holders of the Preferred Stock are
entitled to an annual cash dividend of $0.16 per share (1.0% of the subscription price), in preference to any dividend
payment to the holders of the common stock, out of funds legally available for payment of dividends and subject to
declaration by our Board of Directors. Holders of the Preferred Stock are also entitled to participate in any cash
dividends we pay to the holders of the common stock and are also entitled to participate in non-cash dividends we pay
to holders of the common stock, subject to potentially different treatment if we effect a stock dividend, stock split or
combination of the common stock. There are no arrearages in cumulative preferred dividends. We declared and paid a
cash dividend of $0.16 per share on our preferred stock during 2018.

Recent sales of unregistered securities
None.

Issuer purchases of equity securities
None.

Preferred Stock

81



Edgar Filing: OVERSTOCK.COM, INC - Form 10-K

In December 2016, we issued 695,898 shares of our preferred stock, consisting of 126,565 shares of our Blockchain
Voting Series A Preferred Stock (the "Series A Preferred") and 569,333 shares of our Voting Series B Preferred Stock
(the "Series B Preferred" and together with the Series A Preferred, the "Preferred Stock"), in a public offering
registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. As of December 31, 2018, the 481,259 shares of Preferred
Stock that remained outstanding constituted approximately 1.5% of the total number of shares of the Preferred Stock
and the common stock, taken together. Neither the Series A Preferred Stock nor the Series B Preferred Stock is
registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
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as amended. The Series A Preferred are digital securities that trade exclusively on a registered alternative trading
system ("ATS") operated by tZERO's wholly-owned subsidiary, PRO Securities, LLC (the "PRO Securities ATS"),
utilizing software technology known as the tZERO® Issuance and Trading Platform (the "tZERO Platform"). The
Series B Preferred are non-digital securities that trade in the over-the-counter market and are quoted on the OTCQX
market operated by OTC Markets Group.

Holders of the Preferred Stock do not have any right to convert or exchange such shares for shares of our common
stock or any other security, however, at our sole discretion, we may convert the Series A Preferred shares into Series
B Preferred shares at any time on a one-to-one basis. Until the third anniversary of the Original Issuance Date, we may
redeem, at our discretion, either or both the Series A and Series B Preferred shares for an amount equal to the highest
of the following: (1) the subscription price plus any accrued but unpaid dividends, (2) 105% of the average trading
price of our common stock during a five-trading-day period and (3) 105% of the average trading price of the series of
preferred shares during the same five-day-trading period. Except as required by law, the Preferred Stock vote with the
common stock on all matters. Holders of the Preferred Stock have one vote for each share held. The Preferred Stock
ranks senior to the common stock with respect to dividends. Holders of the Preferred Stock are entitled to an annual
cash dividend equal to 1.0% of the subscription price for the Preferred Stock, rounded to the nearest $0.01, in
preference to any dividend payment to the holders of the common stock, out of funds legally available for payment of
dividends and subject to declaration by our Board of Directors. Holders of the Preferred Stock are also entitled to
participate in any cash dividends we pay to the holders of the common stock and are also entitled to participate in
non-cash dividends we pay to holders of the common stock, subject to different treatment if we effect a stock
dividend, stock split or combination of the common stock. In the event of any liquidation, any amount available for
distribution to stockholders after payment of all liabilities will be distributed proportionately, with each share of Series
A Preferred and each share of Series B Preferred being treated as though it were a share of our common stock. If we
are party to any merger or consolidation in which our common stock is changed into or exchanged for stock or other
securities of any other person (or the Company) or cash or any other property (or a right to receive the foregoing), we
will use all commercially reasonable efforts to cause each outstanding share of the Preferred Stock to be treated as if
such share were an additional outstanding share of common stock in connection with any such transaction.

Securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans

Our Board of Directors adopted the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan, which was most recently amended and restated and
re-approved by the stockholders on May 9, 2017 (as so amended and restated, the "Plan"). Under the Plan, the Board
of Directors may issue incentive stock options to our employees and directors and non-qualified stock options to
consultants, as well as restricted stock units and other types of equity awards of the Company.

Options granted under the Plan generally expire at the end of ten years and vest in accordance with a vesting schedule

determined by our Board of Directors, usually over four years from the grant date. We have not granted compensatory
stock options since 2008, and no stock options are outstanding under the Plan. At December 31, 2018, no options were
outstanding under the Plan.

Restricted stock units granted in 2018, 2017, and 2016 vest over three years at 33.3% at the end of each of the first,
second and third year. Each restricted stock unit represents the right to one share of common stock upon vesting. The
following is a summary of restricted stock unit activity (amounts in thousands, except per share data):

2018 2017 2016
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
.. Grant .. QGrant .. Grant
Units Date Units Date Units Date
Fair Fair Fair
Value Value Value
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Outstanding—beginning of yeab40 $ 17.05 560 $17.46 349 $24.80

Granted at fair value 387 6542 310 17.75 541 14.52
Vested (234) 17.68 (212) 19.58 (219) 22.57
Forfeited (134) 42.85 (118) 16.21 (111) 16.52

Outstanding—end of year 559 $44.08 540 $17.05 560 $17.46

At December 31, 2018, 1.8 million shares of stock remained available for future grants under the Plan.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected consolidated financial data presented below should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements of Overstock.com, Inc. and related footnotes included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and
the discussion under Item 7—"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations." The selected consolidated financial data has been derived from our audited consolidated financial
statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The historical financial and operating information
may not be indicative of our future performance. The following discussion and analysis also should be read in
conjunction with the disclosures in Item 1. "Business" under "Our Retail Business" and "Our Medici Business," as
well as the risk factors described in Item 1A. "Risk Factors."

Revenues and cost of goods sold recorded in "Direct" and "Partner and Other" are now split between "Retail" and
"Other" on the consolidated statements of operations. "Other" includes revenues and costs of goods sold related to our
Medici business. In addition, we have recast the prior period revenues and cost of goods sold to conform with current

year presentation.

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Revenue, net

Year ended December 31,

2018

2017

2016

(in thousands, except per share data)

2015

2014

Retail $1,800,187 $1,728,104 $1,784,782 $1,655,908 $1,497,103
Other 21,405 16,652 15,181 1,930 —

Total net revenue 1,821,592 1,744,756 1,799,963 1,657,838 1,497,103
Cost of goods sold

Retail 1,452,195 1,392,558 1,458,411 1,353,184 1,218,044
Other 15,489 11,647 10,203 — —

Total cost of goods sold 1,467,684 1,404,205 1,468,614 1,353,184 1,218,044
Gross profit 353,908 340,551 331,349 304,654 279,059
Operating expenses:

Sales and marketing 274,479 180,589 147,896 124,468 109,461
Technology 132,154 115,878 106,760 98,533 86,258
General and administrative 164,481 90,718 89,298 82,187 71,777
Litigation settlement — — (19,520 ) — —
Restructuring — — — — (360 )
Total operating expenses 571,114 387,185 324,434 305,188 267,136
Operating income (loss) (217,206 ) (46,634 ) 6915 (534 ) 11,923
Interest income 2,208 659 326 155 152

Interest expense (1,468 ) (2,937 ) (877 ) (140 ) (39 )
Other income (expense), net (3,488 ) 1,178 14,181 3,634 1,169
Income (loss) before income taxes (219,954 ) (47,734 ) 20,545 3,115 13,205
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (2,384 ) 64,188 9,297 1,895 4,404
Consolidated net income (loss) $(217,570 ) $(111,922 ) $11,248 $1,220 $8,801
Less: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling

interests (11,500 ) (2,044 ) (1,274 ) (1,226 ) (53 )
Net income (loss) attributable to stockholders of $(206.070 ) $(109.878 ) $12.522 $2.446 $8.854
Overstock.com, Inc.

Net income (loss) per common share—basic:

Net income '(loss) attributable to common $(6.83 ) $(4.28 ) $0.49 $0.10 $0.37
shares—Dbasic

Weighted average common shares 29,976 25,044 25,342 24,612 23,999

outstanding—basic
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Net income (loss) per common share—diluted:
Net income (loss) attributable to common
shares—diluted

Weighted average common shares
outstanding—diluted

See the footnotes beneath the balance sheet data on the following page.

$(6.83 ) $(4.28 ) $0.49

29,976 25,044 25,426
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$0.10

24,703

$0.36

24,317
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As of December 31,
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
(in thousands)
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents $141,512 $203,215 $183,098 $170,262 $181,641

Restricted cash 1,302 455 430 430 580
Working capital (26,219 ) 50,534 (4,843 ) (10,308 ) 15,260
Total assets 461,219 433,815 485,076 428,389 376,865
Total liabilities 250,513 261,692 312,116 279,028 247,645
Stockholders' equity 210,706 172,123 172,960 149,361 129,220

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements relating to future events or our future
financial or operating performance that involve risks and uncertainties, as set forth above under "Special Cautionary
Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements." Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in
these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors described in this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
including those set forth above under "Special Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements" or in

Item 1A under the heading "Risk Factors" or elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. In addition, our future
results may be significantly different from our historical results. The following discussion and analysis also should be
read in conjunction with the disclosures in Item 1. "Business" under "Our Retail Business" and "Our Medici
Business," as well as the risk factors described in Item 1A. "Risk Factors."

Introduction

We are an online retailer and advancer of blockchain technology. Through our online retail business, we offer a broad
range of price-competitive products, including furniture, home decor, bedding and bath, and housewares, among other
products. We sell our products and services through our Internet websites located at www.overstock.com, www.o.co
and www.o.biz (referred to collectively as the "Website"). Although our three websites are located at different domain
addresses, the technology and equipment and processes supporting the Website and the process of order fulfillment
described herein are the same for all three websites. Our retail business initiatives are described in more detail below
under "Our Retail Business."

Our Medici business initiatives seek to develop and advance the concepts of "Government as a Service" and a
"Technology Stack for Civilization" by creating or fostering a set of products and solutions that leverage the
transparency and immutability of blockchain technology to generate efficiencies and increase security and control in
six areas of civilizational necessity: identity management, property rights and management, central banking and
currencies, capital markets, supply chains and commerce, and voting systems. Our Medici business initiatives include
our wholly-owned subsidiary, Medici Ventures, Inc. ("Medici Ventures"), which conducts the majority of its business
through its majority-owned subsidiary tZERO Group, Inc. ("tZERQO"), formerly t@.com, Inc., a financial technology
company pursuing potential financial applications of blockchain technologies as well as non-blockchain businesses.
Medici Ventures currently holds minority equity interests in several technology companies whose focuses include the
areas mentioned above. Our Medici business initiatives are described in more detail below under "Our Medici
Business" and our tZERO business initiatives are described in more detail below under "Our tZERO Business
Initiatives."

We have engaged Guggenheim Securities, LLC to help us identify and evaluate certain strategic initiatives. We are

considering a range of potential transactions, including a sale of our retail business and additional equity or debt
financings. Our Board of Directors continually discusses a variety of potential strategic and financial options and other
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changes to our business, but has not approved or made any determination to consummate any strategic transaction,
and may choose not to do so in the foreseeable future or at all.
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Our Retail Business

Our retail business, through December 31, 2018, generated nearly all of our net revenues. In our retail business, our
goal is to provide goods to furnish and accessorize "dream homes" for our target customers—consumers who seek
quality, stylish merchandise at bargain prices. At December 31, 2018, we offered 4.9 million products (8.9 million
SKUs), of which over 99% were in-line products (products in active production), including more than 25,000 private
label products offered under eleven private label brands. We believe that the furniture and home goods market, which
is highly fragmented and has traditionally been served by brick and mortar stores, will continue transitioning to online
sales, particularly as Millennial consumers (defined as those aged 20-36), who are generally comfortable shopping
online, start families and move into new homes. We regularly change our product assortment to meet the evolving
preferences of our customers and current trends. Our products include, among others, furniture, home décor including
rugs, bedding and bath, home improvement, and kitchen items. We compete primarily based on:

Quality customer experience with an emphasis on price, value, and a wide assortment of products delivered in a
personalized format with the convenience of our mobile app, and with the benefits of our award-winning customer
care;

Proprietary technologies which we believe help us provide our customers with a quality shopping experience;
Logistics capabilities tailored to the furniture and home goods category and developed over our many years of
e-commerce experience;

{.ong-term mutually beneficial relationships with our partners, which currently number approximately 4,000; and
Our Club O Loyalty Program, which we believe increases customer engagement and retention.

For 2018, nearly all our retail sales through our Website were from transactions in which we fulfilled orders through
our network of approximately 4,000 third-party manufacturers, distributors and other suppliers ("partners") selling on
our Website. Our use of the term "partner” does not mean that we have formed any legal partnerships with any of our
retail partners. We provide our partners with access to a large customer base and convenient services for order
fulfillment, customer service, returns handling, and other services. Our supply chain allows us to ship directly to our
customers from our suppliers or from our warehouses. Our retail sales also includes direct sales of our own inventory
shipped from our warehouses, including some customer returns of partner products. Our warehouses primarily fulfill
orders from direct sales of our own inventory. Our warehouses generally ship between 1,500 and 3,000 packages per
day and up to approximately 6,000 packages per day during peak periods.

During the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 our sales were almost entirely to customers located in the
United States and no single customer accounted for more than 1% of our total net revenue.

Additional Offerings

We offer additional products or services that may complement our primary retail offerings, but are not significant to
our retail revenues. These include:

Our international business where we offer products to customers outside the United States using third party logistics
providers;

.Worldstock Fair Trade, a store within our Website that offers handcrafted products made by artisans all over the
world to help improve the lives of people in emerging economies;

Pet Adoptions, a free service and portal within our Website that leverages our technology to display pets available for
adoption from shelters across the United States;

pverstock Hotels, portal within our Website that enables customers to search and book hundreds of thousands of
properties worldwide, including big box brands, modern boutiques, and more;

Supplier Oasis, a single integration point through which our partners can manage their products, inventory and sales
channels, and also obtain multi-channel fulfillment services through our distribution network; and
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Businesses advertising products or services on our Website.

Our Retail revenues are seasonal, with revenues historically being the highest in the fourth quarter, which ends
December 31, reflecting higher consumer holiday spending. While we had lower sales volume during Q4 2018, we
anticipate the trend of higher sales volume during our fourth quarter to continue for the foreseeable future. To the
extent possible we maintain supplier relationships, and seek new supplier relationships for our retail businesses, and
also use our working capital, to ensure a continuous allotment of product offerings for our customers.
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Strategies for Our Retail Business
Our strategies for our Retail business include:

Improve the shopping experience and improve our organic search rankings - We have developed and implemented
initiatives intended to enhance the shopping experience both for how customers and search engines experience our
site. Over the last four months we have begun to see improvements in our organic search engine rankings. We believe
we have found a set of initiatives that appears to be fueling this recovery. We intend to continue to focus on
supporting these initiatives so that we may drive more organic traffic and improved conversion rates on our website.

Leverage new personalization tech stack in Marketing - Over the course of the past 18-months, we have created a new
marketing tech stack that allows for more real-time relational marketing. We believe this platform is improving
relevance of ads to customers and enhancing their interactions with our business.

Expand Club O rewards program to enhance customer loyalty - We believe that membership in our Club O rewards
program increases customer engagement. We have also seen strong program growth in 2018 and we intend to make
additional enhancements in the program, primarily to increase the attractiveness of the program to customers,
including increasing member benefits and developing additional personalization programs.

Improve our delivery experience by expanding distribution facilities and third-party logistics services - We offer
third-party logistics services to our partners, and in 2018 we added a third distribution facility to speed shipping and
improve our overall customer experience. Partners participating in this program store products in one or more of our
warehouses, which benefits our customers by providing same-day order fulfillment and quicker delivery, as well as
reduced cost.

Expand technology platforms - We are building platforms that automate vendor management, product pricing, website
personalization and search relevance. We intend to make additional enhancements in automation, technology, and
engineering resources in order to further improve our customers' shopping experience.

Improve product content for our private label program - We launched our private label initiative in the third quarter of
2017. We have developed and are currently offering several private label brands and have more than 25,000 private
label products available on our Website. We are working to improve the quality of content and photography on those
products to enhance the shopping experience. We believe that private label brands can generate significant brand
equity and customer loyalty.

Our ability to pursue some or all of these plans, and the extent to which we would be able to pursue some or all of
them, will depend on the resources we have available, and may require significantly more capital than we currently
have. See Item 7 of Part II, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations-Liquidity and Capital Resources."

Medici Business Initiatives

Our Medici business initiatives seek to develop and advance the concepts of "Government as a Service" and a
"Technology Stack for Civilization" by creating or fostering a set of products and solutions that leverage the
transparency and immutability of blockchain technology to generate efficiencies and increase security and control in
six areas of civilizational necessity: identity management, property rights and management, central banking and
currencies, capital markets, supply chains and commerce, and voting systems. Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Medici
Ventures, conducts a majority of its business through its majority-owned subsidiary tZERO, a financial technology
company pursuing potential financial applications of blockchain technologies as well as non-blockchain businesses.
Medici Ventures also holds minority equity interests in several technology companies, each of which focuses on at
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least one of the Government as a Service areas mentioned above.
tZERO Business Initiatives

tZERO is a financial technology company pursuing potential financial applications of blockchain technologies as well
as non-blockchain businesses. tZERO’s primary focus at present is on its recent launch of a facility for the trading of
digital securities tokens and on its joint venture with BOX Digital Markets LLC ("BOX Digital") intended to develop
a U.S. national securities exchange (the "Exchange") with regulatory approvals that would enable the Exchange to
trade digital securities.

tZERO continues to identify, evaluate and pursue various opportunities for strategic acquisitions or purchases of
interests to add to the services and expertise it offers its customers. Subject to board approval, tZERO's management

exercises
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substantial discretion in identifying appropriate strategic transactions and negotiating the terms of such transactions.
Management's determinations are based on numerous financial, strategic and operational assumptions, and there can
be no assurance that such assumptions will prove to be true. Moreover, such strategic transactions may fail to produce
the benefits expected at the time of tZERQO's acquisitions or purchases of interests.

The businesses, products, and services that tZERO is pursuing or contemplating will require substantial additional
funding, initially for technology development and regulatory compliance, as well as for working capital, marketing
and sales, and other substantial costs of developing new products and businesses in emerging areas of technology.
These costs have been and are expected to continue to be material, both to tZERO and to Overstock.

Business Segments

As described further in Item 15 of Part IV, "Financial Statements"—Note 21. Business Segments, contained in the
"Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we determined our segments
based on how we manage our business, which, in our view, consists primarily of our Retail and Medici businesses.
Our Retail business is a reportable segment. As described below, our Medici business is comprised of many
components or operating segments, including our tZERO reportable segment. We use pre-tax net income (loss) as the
measure to determine our reportable segments. As a result, tZERO is the only reportable segment of our Medici
business as it is quantitatively significant. The remaining Medici business operating segments are not significant and
are included in Other. See Item 15 of Part IV, "Financial Statements"—Note 21. Business Segments for information
regarding our business segments and geographical areas.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP")
requires estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses,
and related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying
notes. The Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") has defined a company's critical accounting policies as the
ones that are most important to the portrayal of the company's financial condition and results of operations, and which
require the company to make its most difficult and subjective judgments, often as a result of the need to make
estimates of matters that are inherently uncertain. Based on this definition, we have identified the critical accounting
policies, estimates and judgments addressed below. We also have other key accounting policies, which involve the use
of estimates, judgments, and assumptions that are significant to understanding our results. For additional information,
see Item 15 of Part IV, "Financial Statements"—Note 2. Accounting Policies. Although we believe that our estimates,
assumptions, and judgments are reasonable, they are based upon information presently available. Actual results may
differ significantly from these estimates. Our critical accounting policies are as follows:

revenue recognition; and
accounting for the tZERO security token offering.

Revenue recognition

We derive our revenue primarily from our retail business through our Website from merchandise sold at a point in
time and shipped to customers. When we are the principal in a transaction and control the specific good or service
before it is transferred to the customer, revenue is recorded gross; otherwise, revenue is recorded on a net basis.

Revenue is recognized when control of the product passes to the customer, typically at the date of delivery of the
merchandise to the customer or the date a service is provided, and is recognized in an amount that reflects the
expected consideration to be received in exchange for such goods or services. As such, customer orders are recorded
as deferred revenue prior to delivery of products or services ordered.
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As we ship high volumes of packages through multiple carriers, we use estimates to determine which shipments are
delivered and, therefore, recognized as revenue at the end of the period. Our delivery date estimates are based on
average shipping transit times based on historical data. However, actual shipping times may differ from our estimates.
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The following table shows the effect that hypothetical changes in the estimate of average shipping transit times would
have had on the reported amount of revenue and income before taxes for the year ended December 31, 2018 (in
thousands):

Year Ended
December 31, 2018
Increase

Increase (Decrease)

Change in the Estimate of Average Transit Times (Days) (Decrease come
Revenue Before Tax
$(8,258) $(1,263 )

1 $(4,246) $(645 )
As As

As reported reported reported

(D $5,750  $900

2) $10,458 $1,620

Shipping and handling is considered a fulfillment activity, as it takes place prior to the customer obtaining control of
the merchandise, and fees charged to customers are included in net revenue upon completion of our performance
obligation. We present revenue net of sales tax, discounts, and expected refunds.

Our merchandise sales contracts include terms that could cause variability in the transaction price for items such as
discounts, credits, or sales returns.

We recognize gift cards and Club O rewards in the period they are redeemed. Unredeemed gift cards and Club O
rewards not subject to requirements to remit balances to governmental agencies are recognized as net revenue based
on historical redemption patterns.

Our Other revenue occurs primarily through our broker dealer subsidiaries in our tZERO segment. We recognize
revenue for our broker dealer subsidiaries based on the gross amount of consideration that we expect to receive on
securities transactions (commission revenue) on a trade date basis.

Accounting for the tZERO security token offering

The Simple Agreements for Future Equity ("SAFEs") offered through the tZERO security token offering were
accounted for as a prepaid contract to obtain equity interest in tZERO and were classified as a component of
noncontrolling interest in our consolidated financial statements. The tZERO Preferred Equity Tokens ("tZERO
Security Tokens") represent a form of preferred stock and are classified as a component of noncontrolling interest
within our consolidated financial statements.

For information about recent accounting pronouncements, see Item 15 of Part IV, "Financial Statements"—Note 2.
Accounting Policies.

Financial Outlook for the Quarter ending March 31, 2019

During 2018, we increased spending, especially in our sales and marketing, primarily due to our effort to aggressively
pursue increased revenue and new customers in our retail business. This effort resulted in significantly increased
spending in the sponsored search, display ads on social media, and television marketing channels, which continued
through early August 2018 when we began reducing our sales and marketing spend as we sought to return to our past
strategy which seeks to optimize the near-term return on our sales and marketing expenditures.
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Beginning in January 2019, we began implementing plans to further improve the efficiency of our operations,
including staff reductions, reducing third party expenses, and process streamlining. Additionally, we intend to further
reduce our general and administrative costs throughout 2019.

In Q1 2019, as a result of our return to a disciplined approach to marketing, we expect a decline in our consolidated
net revenues compared to the same period in the prior year of 17% to 19%. In addition, excluding severance costs and
any other special items, we expect to incur a total pre-tax loss of approximately $36 million in Q1 2019 ($20 million
Retail, $11 million tZERO, and $5 million Other).
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Our estimated results for the quarter ended March 31, 2019 are preliminary and subject to substantial uncertainty and
numerous risks including those outlined in Item 1A of Part I, "Risk Factors". We caution you that our estimates are
forward-looking statements and are not guarantees of future performance or outcomes and that actual results may
differ materially.

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
Executive Commentary

This executive commentary is intended to provide investors with a view of our business through the eyes of our
management. As an executive commentary, it necessarily focuses on selected aspects of our business. This executive
commentary is intended as a supplement to, but not a substitute for, the more detailed discussion of our business
included elsewhere herein. Investors are cautioned to read our entire "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations," as well as our interim and audited financial statements, and the
discussion of our business and risk factors and other information included elsewhere or incorporated in this report.
This executive commentary includes forward-looking statements, and investors are cautioned to read "Special
Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements."

Revenue increased 4% in 2018 compared to 2017. This increase was primarily driven by increased marketing
expenses as we more aggressively pursued revenue growth and new customers, a retail marketing strategy that we
continued through early August 2018. This resulted in a 2% increase in orders for the year, and we also saw a 5%
increase in average order size (excluding promotional activities) primarily due to a continued sales mix shift into
higher priced products. These increases were partially offset by increased promotional activities, including coupons
and site sales (which we recognize as a reduction of revenue), due to our driving a higher proportion of our sales using
such promotions, and an increase in marketplace sales (for which we record only our commission as revenue). While
we have seen improvements in our natural search rankings, we continue to face challenges in our natural search
marketing, which have significantly limited our efforts to grow revenue efficiently.

Gross profit in 2018 increased 4% compared to 2017 primarily as a result of increased revenue. Gross margin
decreased to 19.4% in 2018, compared to 19.5% in 2017. The decrease in gross margin was primarily due to increased
promotional activities, partially offset by a continued shift in sales mix into higher margin products and an increase in
marketplace sales (for which we record only our commission as revenue).

Sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of revenue increased from 10.4% to 15.1% in 2018 as compared to
2017, primarily due to our effort to aggressively pursue increased revenue and new customers. This effort consisted of
significantly increased spending in the sponsored search, display ads on social media, and television marketing
channels, and continued through early August when we shifted our retail strategy to reduce these expenses. We also
had an $8.3 million increase in staff-related costs, including $2.9 million at tZERO for employee severance and a
special restricted stock grant which fully vested during Q1 2018.

Technology expenses in 2018 increased $16.3 million compared to 2017 primarily due to an $11.8 million increase in
staff-related costs, and a $9.5 million increase in technology licenses. These increases were partially offset by a $2.9
million decrease in depreciation expense and a $2.7 million decrease in maintenance costs.

General and administrative expenses in 2018 increased $73.8 million compared to 2017, primarily due to a $20.7
million increase in legal costs largely related to our gift card escheatment case in Delaware and costs related to the
tZERO SEC investigation and pursuing our strategic alternatives, a $20.4 million increase in staff-related costs, and a
$12.8 million increase in consulting and outside services expenses. In addition, we had a $6.0 million increase in
impairments on indefinite-lived intangible assets, and a $3.6 million increase in losses on the disposal of various
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businesses and assets.

We continue to seek opportunities for growth, in our retail business and through our Medici and tZERO blockchain
and financial technology initiatives and through other means. As a result of these initiatives, we will continue to incur
additional

expenses and may purchase interests in, or make acquisitions of, other technologies or businesses. We anticipate that
our

initiatives will cause us to incur losses in the foreseeable future. These losses, additional expenses, acquisitions, or
purchases

may be material, and, coupled with existing marketing expense trends and strategic changes in our retail business,
may lead to

increased consolidated losses in some periods, and to reduced liquidity. Additionally, we may recognize additional
impairment

charges from our ownership interest in other entities.
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Additional commentary related to Medici Ventures

The majority of Medici Ventures' business is its 80% interest in tZERO, which is described below. The remaining
business activities of Medici Ventures are focused on developing and advancing blockchain technology. As a result of
its business model of providing technical assistance to companies in which Medici Ventures owns an interest, as well
as the early stage of development of the companies in which it owns interests, Medici Ventures has not yet generated
material revenues. Medici Ventures intends to continue to acquire strategic equity interests in blockchain-related
companies, with a focus on companies to which Medici Ventures believes it can provide technical or managerial
assistance from time to time. For the year ended December 31, 2018, our pre-tax loss in our Medici Ventures business,
excluding our loss in our tZERO business, was $20.5 million, and we expect to continue to incur significant losses in
our Medici Ventures business during 2019. As of December 31, 2018, we have spent approximately $209.6 million in
our Medici business since its inception, with the majority of that being spent in tZERO.

Additional commentary related to tZERO

To date, tZERO has focused on developing its non-blockchain and blockchain businesses and exploring opportunities
for novel applications of blockchain technology. tZERO does not yet have customers or backlog orders and has not
yet generated revenue from any commercially available blockchain-based applications. The businesses, products, and
services that tZERO is pursuing or contemplating will require substantial additional funding, initially for technology
development and regulatory compliance, as well as for working capital, marketing and sales, and other substantial
costs of developing new products and businesses in emerging areas of technology. For the year ended December 31,
2018, our pre-tax loss in our tZERO business, excluding our loss in the non-tZERO portion of our Medici business,
was $40.9 million, and we expect to continue to incur significant losses in our Medici Ventures business during 2019.
As of December 31, 2018, we have spent approximately $143.5 million in our tZERO business since its inception.
The costs have been and are expected to continue to be material, both to tZERO and to Overstock.

Results of Operations

Revenues and cost of goods sold recorded in "Direct" and "Partner and Other" are now split between "Retail" and
"Other" on the consolidated statements of operations. "Retail" includes retail revenue and costs of goods sold from
both "Direct" and "Partner" transactions. "Other" includes revenues and costs of goods sold related to our Medici
business. In addition, we have recast the prior period revenues and cost of goods sold to conform with current year
presentation.
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The following table sets forth our results of operations expressed as a percentage of total net revenue for the years
ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016:

Year ended December 31

2018 2017 2016

(as a percentage of total

revenue)
Revenue, net
Retail 98.8 % 99.0 % 99.2 %
Other 1.2 1.0 0.8
Total net revenue 100.0 100.0 100.0
Cost of goods sold
Retail 79.7 79.8 81.0
Other 0.9 0.7 0.6
Total cost of goods sold 80.6 80.5 81.6
Gross profit 19.4 19.5 18.4
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing 15.1 10.4 8.2
Technology 7.3 6.6 5.9
General and administrative 9.0 5.2 5.0
Litigation settlement — — (1.1 )
Total operating expenses 314 222 18.0
Operating income (loss) (11.9) @7 ) 04
Interest income 0.1 — —
Interest expense 0.1 ) @02 ) —
Other income (expense), net 0.2 ) 0.1 0.8
Income (loss) before income taxes (12.1) 2.7 ) 1.2
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (0.1 ) 3.7 0.5
Consolidated net income (loss) (11.9)% (6.5 Y 0.7 %
Revenue

The following table reflects our net revenue for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 (in thousands):

Year ended

December 31,

2018 2017 $ Change % Change
Revenue, net
Retail $1,800,187 $1,728,104 $72,083 42 %
Other 21,405 16,652 4,753 285 %

Total revenue, net $1,821,592 $1,744,756 $76,836 4.4 %

The increased total net revenue for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018, as compared to the same period in
2017, was primarily driven by increased marketing expenses as we more aggressively pursued revenue growth and
new customers, a retail marketing strategy that we continued through early August 2018. This resulted in a 2%
increase in orders for the year, and we also saw a 5% increase in average order size (excluding promotional activities)
primarily due to a continued sales mix shift into higher-priced products. These increases were partially offset by
increased promotional activities, including coupons and site sales (which we recognize as a reduction of revenue), due
to our driving a higher proportion of our sales using such promotions, and an increase in marketplace sales (for which
we record only our commission as revenue). While we have seen improvements in our natural search rankings, we
continue to face challenges in our natural search marketing, which have significantly limited our efforts to grow
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revenue efficiently.
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We continue to seek increased participation in our Club O loyalty program, including, in certain instances, by
increasing Club O Rewards to our Club O members in lieu of coupons we offer to all customers. For additional
information regarding our Club O loyalty program see Item 15 of Part IV, "Financial Statements"—Note 2. Accounting
Policies, Club O loyalty program.

The products and product lines we offer, and their respective percentages of our revenue, are based on many factors
including customer demand, our marketing efforts, promotional pricing, joint-marketing offered by our suppliers, the
types of inventory we are able to obtain and the number of SKUs we offer. These factors change frequently and can
affect the mix of the product lines we sell. We have experienced a trend toward our home and garden category in
recent years and we have recently focused our marketing and branding efforts towards our home and garden products.
We are also working to increase the number of SKUs we offer. While we do not currently expect any material shifts in
our product line mix, the relative amounts of the product lines we sell, and the revenue we earn from those product
lines, is generally an economic result of the factors described above, which may change from time to time.

International sales were less than 3% of total net revenues for 2018 and 2017.

Gross profit and gross margin

Our overall gross margins fluctuate based on changes in supplier cost and / or sales price, including competitive
pricing; inventory management decisions; sales coupons and promotions; product mix of sales; and operational and

fulfillment costs.

The following table reflects our net revenues, cost of goods sold and gross profit for the years ended December 31,
2018 and 2017 (in thousands):

Year ended

December 31,

2018 2017 $ Change % Change
Revenue, net
Retail $1,800,187 $1,728,104 $72,083 42 %
Other 21,405 16,652 4,753 285 %
Total net revenue 1,821,592 1,744,756 76,836 44 %
Cost of goods sold
Retail 1,452,195 1,392,558 59,637 43 %
Other 15,489 11,647 3,842 330 %

Total cost of goods sold 1,467,684 1,404,205 63,479 4.5 %
Gross Profit

Retail 347,992 335,546 12,446 37 %
Other 5,916 5,005 911 182 %
Total gross profit $353,908 $340,551 $13,357 39 %

Gross margins for the past eight quarterly periods and years ending December 31, 2018 and 2017 were:
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 FY
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
Retail 21.0% 189% 19.5% 17.9% 19.3%
Other 27.2% 24.1% 33.1% 26.8% 27.6%
Combined 21.1% 19.0% 19.7% 18.0% 19.4%
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 FY
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
Retail 20.0% 19.4% 19.6% 18.7% 19.4%
Other 24.8% 30.8% 33.2% 31.7% 30.1%
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Combined 20.1% 19.5% 19.7% 18.8% 19.5%

Gross profit for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018 increased 4% compared to the same period in 2017
primarily as a result of increased revenue. Gross margin decreased to 19.4% for the twelve months ended December
31, 2018, compared to 19.5% for the same period in 2017. The decrease in gross margin was primarily due to
increased promotional
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activities, partially offset by a continued shift in sales mix into higher margin products and an increase in marketplace
sales (for which we record only our commission as revenue).

Cost of goods sold includes stock-based compensation expense of $201,000 and $183,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Fulfillment costs

Fulfillment costs include all warehousing costs, including fixed overhead and variable handling costs (excluding
packaging costs), as well as credit card fees and customer service costs, all of which we include as costs in calculating
gross margin. We believe that some companies in our industry, including some of our competitors, account for
fulfillment costs within operating expenses, and therefore exclude fulfillment costs from gross margin. As a result, our
gross margin may not be directly comparable to others in our industry.

The following table has been included to provide investors additional information regarding our classification of
fulfillment costs, gross profit and margin, thus enabling investors to better compare our gross margin with others in
our industry (in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2018 2017
Total revenue, net $1,821,592 100% $1,744,756 100%
Cost of goods sold
Product costs and other cost of goods sold 1,390,750 76.3% 1,328,749 76.2%
Fulfillment and related costs 76,934 42% 75,456 4.3%
Total cost of goods sold 1,467,684 80.6% 1,404,205 80.5%
Gross profit $353,908 19.4% $340,551 19.5%

Fulfillment costs as a percentage of sales may vary due to several factors, such as our ability to manage costs at our
warehouses, significant changes in the number of units received and fulfilled, the extent to which we use third party
fulfillment services and warehouses, and our ability to effectively manage customer service costs and credit card fees.
Fulfillment and related costs remained relatively flat during the year ended December 31, 2018 as compared to 2017.

See Gross profit and gross margin above for additional discussion.

Operating expenses

Sales and marketing expenses

We use a variety of methods to target our consumer audience, including online campaigns, such as advertising
through keywords, product listing ads, display ads, search engines, affiliate marketing programs, social coupon
websites, portals, banners, e-mail, direct mail and viral and social media campaigns. We also do brand advertising

through television, radio, print ads, and event sponsorships.

The following table reflects our sales and marketing expenses for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 (in
thousands):

Year ended

December 31,

2018 2017 $ Change % Change
Sales and marketing expenses $274,479 $180,589 $93,890 520 %
Sales and marketing expenses as a percent of net revenues  15.1 % 10.4 %
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The 472 basis point increase in sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of revenue for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2018, as compared to the same period in 2017, was primarily due to our effort to aggressively pursue
increased revenue and new customers. This effort consisted of significantly increased spending in the sponsored

search, display ads on social media, and television marketing channels, and continued through early August when we
shifted our retail strategy to
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reduce these expenses. We also had an $8.3 million increase in staff-related costs, including $2.9 million at tZERO for
employee severance and a special restricted stock grant which fully vested during Q1 2018.

We are also experiencing an increasingly competitive digital marketing landscape. We have competitors who are
spending significant amounts on advertising bidding up the cost of certain marketing channels, such as paid keywords.
While we may not choose to match their levels of spending, this has increased our marketing costs in recent quarters.
We expect this trend to continue. However, we do have a number of important digital marketing initiatives that we are
testing and implementing that we believe will improve our competitive position in this area.

Sales and marketing expenses include stock-based compensation expense of $1.7 million and $415,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

We do not include costs associated with our discounted shipping and other promotions, such as coupons in sales and
marketing expense. Rather, we account for them as a reduction of revenue and therefore affect sales and gross margin.
We consider discounted shipping and other promotions, such as our policy of free shipping on orders over $45, as an
effective marketing tool, and intend to continue to offer them as we deem appropriate as part of our overall marketing
plan.

Technology expenses

We seek to invest efficiently in technology, including web services, customer support solutions, website search,
expansion of new and existing product categories, and in technology to enhance the customer experience, improve our
process efficiency and support and expand our logistics infrastructure. We may increase our technology expenses to
support these initiatives and these increases may be material.

The frequency and variety of cyberattacks on our Website, our corporate systems, and on third parties we use to
support our technology continues to increase. The impact of such attacks, their costs, and the costs we incur to protect
ourselves against future attacks have not been material. However, we consider the risk introduced by cyberattacks to
be serious and will continue to incur costs related to efforts to protect ourselves against them.

The following table reflects our technology expenses for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 (in thousands):

Year ended

December 31,

2018 2017 $ Change % Change
Technology expenses $132,154 $115,878 $16276 140 %
Technology expenses as a percent of net revenues 7.3 % 6.6 %

The $16.3 million increase in technology costs for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018, as compared to the
same period in 2017, was primarily due to an $11.8 million increase in staff-related costs, and a $9.5 million increase
in technology licenses, partially offset by a $2.9 million decrease in depreciation expense and a $2.7 million decrease
in maintenance costs.

Technology expenses include stock-based compensation expense of $2.1 million and $649,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

General and administrative expenses

The following table reflects our general and administrative expenses ("G&A") for the years ended December 31, 2018
and 2017 (in thousands):
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Year ended

December 31,

2018 2017 $ Change % Change
General and administrative expenses $164,481 $90,718 $73,763 813 %
General and administrative expenses as a percent of net revenues 9.0 % 5.2 %

The $73.8 million increase in general and administrative expenses for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018,
as compared to the same period in 2017, was primarily due to a $20.7 million increase in legal costs and accrued
contingencies largely related to our gift card escheatment case in Delaware and costs related to the tZERO SEC
investigation and pursuing our strategic
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alternatives, a $20.4 million increase in staff-related costs, and a $12.8 million increase in consulting and outside
services expenses. In addition, we had a $6.0 million increase in impairments on indefinite-lived intangible assets, and
a $3.6 million increase in losses on the disposal of various businesses and assets.

G&A expenses include stock-based compensation expense of approximately $10.4 million and $2.8 million for the
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

We continue to seek opportunities for growth, in our retail business and through our Medici blockchain and financial
technology initiatives and through other means. As a result of these initiatives, we will continue to incur additional
expenses and may purchase interests in, or make acquisitions of, other technologies or businesses. We anticipate that
our initiatives may cause us to incur losses in the foreseeable future. These losses, additional expenses, acquisitions, or
purchases may be material, and, coupled with existing marketing expense trends and strategic changes in our retail
business, may lead to increased consolidated losses in some periods, and to reduced liquidity. Additionally, we may
recognize additional impairment charges from our ownership interest in other entities.

Litigation settlement

In Q1 2016, we entered into a settlement agreement in our prime broker litigation which concluded the litigation in its
entirety and we recognized settlement proceeds of $19.5 million. Related costs associated with the litigation and
settlement of approximately $1.0 million were included in G&A expenses during Q1 2016.

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation expense is classified within the corresponding operating expense categories in the consolidated
statements of operations as follows (in thousands):

Year ended

December 31,

2018 2017
Cost of goods sold - retail $354  $307
Technology 21,894 24,604
General and administrative 4,163 3,937

Total depreciation, including internal-use software and website development $26,411 $28,848

Amortization of intangible assets other than goodwill is classified within the corresponding operating expense
categories in the consolidated statements of operations as follows (in thousands):

Year ended

December 31,

2018 2017
Technology $3.424 $3,620
Sales and marketing 460 83
General and administrative 1,402 296
Total amortization $5,286 $3,999

Non-operating income (expense)
Interest expense
Total interest expense decreased $1.5 million, from $2.9 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2017 to

$1.5 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018. The decrease in interest expense is primarily due to
paying off the PCL Loan in May 2018.
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Other income (expense), net
Other income (expense), net for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018 was ($3.5 million) as compared to $1.2
million in 2017. The decrease is primarily due to a $4.6 million increase in losses on equity holdings and other assets,

and a $2.7
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million decrease in Club O and gift card breakage, which we began recognizing as a component of revenue in 2018
following the adoption of ASC 606, partially offset by a $2.2 million decrease in debt retirement charges.

Income taxes

Our effective tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was 1.1% and (134.5)%, respectively. Our
effective tax rate is affected by recurring items such as research tax credits and non-recurring items such as changes in
valuation allowances. It is also affected to a lesser extent by tax rates in foreign jurisdictions and the relative amount
of income we earn in those jurisdictions, which we expect to be fairly consistent in the near term. The decrease in the
2018 effective tax rate relative to the 2017 effective tax rate is primarily attributable to our valuation allowance
against our net deferred tax assets which was established at the end of 2017, the act of which caused a significant
change in the 2017 rate.

We have indefinitely reinvested foreign earnings of $1.4 million at December 31, 2018. We would need to accrue and
pay various taxes on this amount if repatriated. We do not intend to repatriate these earnings.

Seasonality

Based upon our historical experience, revenue typically increases during the fourth quarter because of the holiday
retail season and gross margin decreases due to increased sales of certain lower margin products, such as electronics.
Revenue typically decreases in the following quarter(s), as shown in the table below. The actual quarterly results for
each quarter could differ materially depending upon consumer preferences, availability of product and competition,
among other risks and uncertainties. Accordingly, there can be no assurances that seasonal variations will not
materially affect our results of operations in the future.

The following table reflects our total net revenues for each of the quarters in 2018, 2017 and 2016 (in thousands):
First Second  Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

2018 $445,331 $483,133 $440,580 $452,548

2017 $432,435 $432,024 $424,007 $456,290

2016 $413,677 $418,540 $441,564 $526,182

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
Executive Commentary

This executive commentary is intended to provide investors with a view of our business through the eyes of our
management. As an executive commentary, it necessarily focuses on selected aspects of our business. This executive
commentary is intended as a supplement to, but not a substitute for, the more detailed discussion of our business
included elsewhere herein. Investors are cautioned to read our entire "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations," as well as our interim and audited financial statements, and the
discussion of our business and risk factors and other information included elsewhere or incorporated in this report.
This executive commentary includes forward-looking statements, and investors are cautioned to read "Special
Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements."

Our $111.9 million consolidated net loss in 2017 was the result primarily of our $46.6 million operating loss in 2017
and our $64.2 million income tax expense in 2017. The operating loss was caused primarily by changes that Google
made in its natural search engine algorithms and an increasingly competitive digital marketing landscape. The income
tax expense included $25.3 million of expense caused by the enactment in late December 2017 of the TCJA and $59.0
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million of expense caused by our establishment of a valuation allowance against our net deferred tax assets at
December 31, 2017. These matters are discussed in more detail below.

Revenues in 2017 decreased 3% compared to 2016. Beginning in mid-2017 and continuing in the fourth quarter of
2017, we experienced difficulties which we believe were due in part to changes that Google, Inc. ("Google") has made
in its natural search engine algorithms. This decrease to revenue was partially offset by efforts to increase revenue in
other marketing channels such as sponsored search and email.
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Gross profit in 2017 increased 3% compared to 2016 primarily as a result of increased gross margin. Gross margin
increased to 19.5% in 2017 compared to 18.4% in 2016. The increase in gross margin was primarily due to a
continued shift in sales mix into higher margin products and an increase in marketplace sales (which we recognize on
a net basis), partially offset by increased promotional activities, including coupons and site sales due to our driving a
higher proportion of our sales using such promotions.

Sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of revenue increased from 8.2% to 10.4% in 2017 as compared to 2016,
primarily due to increased spending in the sponsored search and display ads on social media marketing channels, due
in part to our seeking to increase revenue in these channels to partially offset the effects of the Google algorithm
changes described above.

Technology expenses in 2017 increased $9.1 million compared to 2016 primarily due to an increase in staff related
costs of $4.9 million, and an increase in technology licenses and maintenance costs of $4.0 million.

General and administrative expenses in 2017 increased $1.4 million compared to 2016, primarily due to an increase in
staff related costs of $4.9 million, partially offset by a decrease in legal fees of $3.0 million, and a decrease in bad
debt expense of $1.1 million.

Our provision for income taxes totaled $64.2 million and $9.3 million for 2017 and 2016, respectively. The increase in
2017 expense compared to 2016 is primarily attributable to our decision to establish a valuation allowance against our
net deferred tax assets, as well as the impact of the TCJA. On December 22, 2017, the President signed into law the
TCJA. Among many other changes, the new law lowers the corporate tax rate from 35% to 21% for tax years
beginning in 2018. Therefore, we re-valued our deferred tax assets in 2017 due to the federal rate reduction, which
resulted in an increase in our 2017 income tax expense of $25.3 million. Additionally, each quarter we assess
available positive and negative evidence to estimate whether we will generate sufficient future taxable income to use
our existing deferred tax assets. Due to losses incurred in 2017 and the potential for future losses, we have recorded a
valuation allowance on our deferred tax assets, net of deferred tax liabilities, which further increased our 2017 income
tax expense by $59.0 million.

The balance of our Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations provides
further information about the matters discussed above and other important matters affecting our business.

Results of Operations

Revenues and cost of goods sold recorded in "Direct" and "Partner and Other" are now split between "Retail" and
"Other" on the consolidated statements of operations. "Retail" includes retail revenue and costs of goods sold from
both "Direct" and "Partner" transactions. "Other" includes revenues and costs of goods sold related to our Medici
business. In addition, we have recast the prior period revenues and cost of goods sold to conform with current year
presentation.
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The following table sets forth our results of operations expressed as a percentage of total net revenue for the years
ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015:

Revenue, net

Year ended December 31
2017 2016 2015
(as a percentage of total
revenue)

Retail 9.0 % 992 % 999 %
Other 1.0 0.8 0.1
Total net revenue 100.0  100.0  100.0
Cost of goods sold

Retail 79.8 81.0 81.6
Other 0.7 0.6 —
Total cost of goods sold 80.5 81.6 81.6

Gross profit

19.5 18.4 18.4

Operating expenses:

Sales and marketing 10.4 8.2 7.5
Technology 6.6 5.9 5.9
General and administrative 5.2 5.0 5.0
Litigation settlement — (1.1 ) —
Total operating expenses 22.2 18.0 18.4
Operating income (loss) 2.7 ) 04 —
Interest income — — —
Interest expense 02 ) — —
Other income, net 0.1 0.8 0.2
Income (loss) before income taxes (2.8 ) 1.2 0.2
Provision for income taxes 3.7 0.5 0.1

Consolidated net income (loss) 6.5 Y% 07 %01 %

Revenue

The following table reflects our net revenue for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in thousands):

Revenue, net
Retail

Other

Total revenue, net

Year ended
December 31,
2017 2016 $ Change % Change

$1,728,104 $1,784,782 $(56,678) (3.2 )%
16,652 15,181 1,471 97 %
$1,744,756 $1,799,963 $(55,207) (3.1 )%

The decrease in total net revenue for the year ended December 31, 2017, as compared to the same period in 2016, was
due in part to changes that we believe Google has made in its natural search engine algorithms. In addition, we had an
increase in product sales for which we record only our commission as revenue, and an increase in promotional
activities, including coupons and site sales due to our driving a higher proportion of our sales using such promotions.

The products and product lines we offer, and their respective percentages of our revenue, are based on many factors
including customer demand, our marketing efforts, promotional pricing, joint-marketing offered by our suppliers, the
types of inventory we are able to obtain and the number of SKUs we offer. These factors change frequently and can
affect the mix of the product lines we sell. We have experienced a trend toward our home and garden category in
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recent years and we have recently focused our marketing and branding efforts towards our home and garden products.
We are also working to increase the number of SKUs we offer. While we do not currently expect any material shifts in
our product line mix, the relative amounts of the
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product lines we sell, and the revenue we earn from those product lines, is generally an economic result of the factors
described above, which may change from time to time.

International sales were less than 3% of total net revenues for 2017 and 2016.

Gross profit and gross margin

Our overall gross margins fluctuate based on changes in supplier cost and / or sales price, including competitive
pricing; inventory management decisions; sales coupons and promotions; product mix of sales; and operational and
fulfillment costs.

The following table reflects our net revenues, cost of goods sold and gross profit for the years ended December 31,
2017 and 2016 (in thousands):

Year ended

December 31,

2017 2016 $ Change % Change
Revenue, net
Retail $1,728,104 $1,784,782 $(56,678) (3.2 )%
Other 16,652 15,181 1,471 97 %
Total net revenue 1,744,756 1,799,963 (55,207 ) (3.1 Y%
Cost of goods sold
Retail 1,392,558 1,458,411 (65,853 ) (4.5 Y%
Other 11,647 10,203 1,444 142 %

Total cost of goods sold 1,404,205 1,468,614 (64,409 ) (44 )%
Gross Profit

Retail 335,546 326,371 9,175 28 %
Other 5,005 4,978 27 05 %
Total gross profit $340,551 $331,349 $9,202 28 %

Gross margins for the past eight quarterly periods and years ending December 31, 2017 and 2016 were:
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 FY
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
Retail 20.0% 19.4% 19.6% 18.7% 19.4%
Other 24.8% 30.8% 33.2% 31.7% 30.1%
Combined 20.1% 19.5% 19.7% 18.8% 19.5%
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 FY
2016 2016 2016 2016 2016
Retail 18.5% 18.1% 17.9% 18.6% 18.3%
Other 39.5% 33.8% 35.1% 26.0% 32.8%
Combined 18.7% 18.2% 18.1% 18.6% 18.4%

Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2017 increased 3% compared to the same period in 2016 primarily as a
result of increased gross margin. Gross margin increased to 19.5% for the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to
18.4% for the same period in 2016. This increase in gross margin was primarily due to a continued shift in sales mix
into higher margin products and an increase in marketplace sales (which we recognize on a net basis), partially offset
by increased promotional activities, including coupons and site sales due to our driving a higher proportion of our
sales using such promotions.

Cost of goods sold includes stock-based compensation expense of $183,000 and $266,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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Fulfillment costs

Fulfillment costs include all warehousing costs, including fixed overhead and variable handling costs (excluding
packaging costs), as well as credit card fees and customer service costs, all of which we include as costs in calculating
gross margin. We believe that some companies in our industry, including some of our competitors, account for
fulfillment costs
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within operating expenses, and therefore exclude fulfillment costs from gross margin. As a result, our gross margin
may not be directly comparable to others in our industry.

The following table has been included to provide investors additional information regarding our classification of
fulfillment costs, gross profit and margin, thus enabling investors to better compare our gross margin with others in
our industry (in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2017 2016
Total revenue, net $1,744,756 100% $1,799,963 100%
Cost of goods sold
Product costs and other cost of goods sold 1,328,749 76.2% 1,391,736 77.3%
Fulfillment and related costs 75,456 43% 76,878 4.3%
Total cost of goods sold 1,404,205 80.5% 1,468,614 81.6%
Gross profit $340,551 19.5% $331,349 18.4%

Fulfillment costs as a percentage of sales may vary due to several factors, such as our ability to manage costs at our
warehouses, significant changes in the number of units received and fulfilled, the extent to which we use third party
fulfillment services and warehouses, and our ability to effectively manage customer service costs and credit card fees.
Fulfillment and related costs remained relatively flat during the year ended December 31, 2017 as compared to 2016.

See Gross profit and gross margin above for additional discussion.

Operating expenses

Sales and marketing expenses

We use a variety of methods to target our consumer audience, including online campaigns, such as advertising
through keywords, product listing ads, display ads, search engines, affiliate marketing programs, social coupon
websites, portals, banners, e-mail, direct mail and viral and social media campaigns. We also do brand advertising

through television, radio, print ads, and event sponsorships.

The following table reflects our sales and marketing expenses for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in
thousands):

Year ended

December 31,

2017 2016 $ Change % Change
Sales and marketing expenses $180,589 $147,896 $32,693 221 %
Sales and marketing expenses as a percent of net revenues 10.4 % 8.2 %

The 220 basis point increase in sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of revenue for the year ended December
31, 2017, as compared to the same period in 2016, was primarily due to increased spending in sponsored search and
display ads on social media, and television marketing channels, and increased staff related costs.

Sales and marketing expenses include stock-based compensation expense of $415,000 and $249,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

We do not include costs associated with our discounted shipping and other promotions, such as coupons in sales and
marketing expense. Rather, we account for them as a reduction of revenue and therefore affect sales and gross margin.
We consider discounted shipping and other promotions, such as our policy of free shipping on orders over $45, as an
effective marketing tool, and intend to continue to offer them as we deem appropriate as part of our overall marketing
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Technology expenses
We seek to invest efficiently in technology, including web services, customer support solutions, website search,
expansion of new and existing product categories, and in technology to enhance the customer experience, improve our

process efficiency and support and expand our logistics infrastructure.

The following table reflects our technology expenses for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in thousands):

Year ended

December 31,

2017 2016 $ Change % Change
Technology expenses $115,878 $106,760 $9,118 85 %
Technology expenses as a percent of net revenues 6.6 % 5.9 %

The $9.1 million increase in technology costs for the year ended December 31, 2017, as compared to the same period
in 2016, was primarily due to an increase in staff related costs of $4.9 million, and an increase in technology licenses
and maintenance of $4.0 million.

Technology expenses include stock-based compensation expense of $649,000 and $777,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

General and administrative expenses

The following table reflects our general and administrative expenses ("G&A") for the years ended December 31, 2017
and 2016 (in thousands):

Year ended

December 31,

2017 2016 $ Change % Change
General and administrative expenses $90,718 $89298 $1420 16 %
General and administrative expenses as a percent of net revenues 5.2 % 5.0 %

The $1.4 million increase in general and administrative expenses ("G&A") for the year ended December 31, 2017, as
compared to the same period in 2016, was primarily due to an increase in staff related costs of $4.9 million, partially
offset by a decrease in legal fees of $3.0 million, and a decrease in bad debt expense of $1.1 million.

G&A expenses include stock-based compensation expense of approximately $2.8 million and $3.6 million for the
years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Litigation settlement
In Q1 2016, we entered into a settlement agreement in our prime broker litigation which concluded the litigation in its

entirety and we recognized settlement proceeds of $19.5 million. Related costs associated with the litigation and
settlement of approximately $1.0 million were included in G&A expenses during Q1 2016.
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Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation expense is classified within the corresponding operating expense categories in the consolidated
statements of operations as follows (in thousands):

Year ended

December 31,

2017 2016
Cost of goods sold - retail $307  $310
Technology 24,604 25,693
Sales and marketing — 124
General and administrative 3,937 1,156

Total depreciation, including internal-use software and website development  $28,848 $27,283

Amortization of intangible assets other than goodwill is classified within the corresponding operating expense
categories in the consolidated statements of operations as follows (in thousands):

Year ended

December 31,

2017 2016
Technology $3,620 $2,904
Sales and marketing 83 1,008
General and administrative 296 56
Total amortization $3,999 $3,968

Non-operating income (expense)
Interest expense

Total interest expense increased $2.1 million, from $877,000 for the year ended December 31, 2016 to $2.9 million
for the year ended December 31, 2017. The increase in interest expense is primarily due to no longer capitalizing
interest on our headquarters loan due to construction completion.

Other income, net

Other income, net for the year ended December 31, 2017 was $1.2 million as compared to $14.2 million in 2016. The
decrease is primarily due to a decrease in Club O Rewards breakage of $14.2 million due to discontinuing our Club O
Silver rewards program in Q4 2016, an increase in impairment charges of $2.6 million related to cost method
investments, and an increase in debt extinguishment costs of $2.5 million. These decreases were partially offset by an
increase in realized gains on sales of non-operating assets and precious metals of $6.6 million.

Income taxes

Our effective tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was (134.5)% and 45.3%, respectively. Our
effective tax rate is affected by recurring items such as research tax credits and non-recurring items such as changes in
valuation allowances. It is also affected to a lesser extent by tax rates in foreign jurisdictions and the relative amount
of income we earn in those jurisdictions, which we expect to be fairly consistent in the near term. The decrease in the
2017 effective tax rate relative to the 2016 effective tax rate is primarily attributable to our decision to establish a
valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets, net of deferred tax liabilities, as well as the impact of the TCJA. In
our decision to establish a valuation allowance, we concluded that the negative evidence outweighed the positive
evidence and that it was not more likely than not that all our federal and state deferred tax assets will be realized (see
Item 15 of Part IV, "Financial Statements"—Note 18. Income Taxes, contained in the "Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements" of this Annual Report on Form 10-K).
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We have indefinitely reinvested foreign earnings of $1.3 million at December 31, 2017. We would need to accrue and
pay various taxes on this amount if repatriated.
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Seasonality

Based upon our historical experience, revenue typically increases during the fourth quarter because of the holiday
retail season and gross margin decreases due to increased sales of certain lower margin products, such as electronics.
Revenue typically decreases in the following quarter(s), as shown in the table below. The actual quarterly results for
each quarter could differ materially depending upon consumer preferences, availability of product and competition,
among other risks and uncertainties. Accordingly, there can be no assurances that seasonal variations will not
materially affect our results of operations in the future.

The following table reflects our total net revenues for each of the quarters in 2017, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands):
First Second  Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

2017 $432,435 $432,024 $424,007 $456,290

2016 $413,677 $418,540 $441,564 $526,182

2015 $398,344 $388,013 $391,211 $480,270

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

We are proactively seeking opportunities to improve the efficiency of our operations and are considering a
comprehensive set of actions to do so. During the later end of 2018 we began taking and continue to take significant
steps to realize internal cost savings, including staff reductions, and process streamlining. Additionally, we intend to
further reduce costs in future periods. We believe that our cash and cash equivalents currently on hand and expected
cash flows from future operations will be sufficient to continue operations for at least the next twelve months. We also
believe that we may need to raise additional capital and/or obtain additional debt financing to be able to fully pursue
some or all of our strategies, including plans for our retail business while also funding our Medici initiatives, beyond
the next twelve months.

We have developed and implemented initiatives within our retail business around improving our Club O rewards
program primarily to increase member benefits and to develop additional personalization programs; improving our
organic search engine rankings; additional distribution facilities to speed shipping and improve our customer service;
additional automation, technology and engineering resources to improve our customers' shopping experience; and
improving our private label initiative to generate significant brand equity and customer loyalty. We believe these
initiatives will have significant long-term positive results; however, the expenditures will likely adversely affect our
short-term results. See "Strategies for Our Retail Business" above.

Our Medici initiatives also require substantial funding. Medici Ventures and its majority-owned subsidiary, tZERO,
continue to identify, evaluate and pursue various opportunities for strategic acquisitions or purchases of interests to
add to the services and expertise they offer their customers. See "Medici Business Initiatives" and "tZERO Business
Initiatives" above.

Our ability to pursue some or all of these plans, and the extent to which we would be able to pursue some or all of
them, will depend on the resources we have available, and will require significantly more capital than we currently
have.

Current sources of liquidity

Our principal sources of liquidity are existing cash and cash equivalents. At December 31, 2018, we had cash and cash
equivalents of $141.5 million. Our ability to access the liquidity of our subsidiaries may be limited by tax and legal
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considerations and other factors.
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Cash flow information is as follows (in thousands):

Year ended

December 31,

2018 2017
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities $(138,934) $(35,221)
Investing activities (110,923 ) (17,960 )
Financing activities 189,001 73,323

In August 2018, we entered into a sales agreement with JonesTrading Institutional Services LLC ("JonesTrading"),
under which we conducted "at the market" public offerings of our common stock during the second half of 2018 and
may conduct additional "at the market" public offerings of our common stock. Under the sales agreement,
JonesTrading, acting as our agent, may offer our common stock in the market on a daily basis or otherwise as we
request from time to time. We have no obligation to sell additional shares under the sales agreement, but expect to do
so. We will pay JonesTrading up to a 2.0% sales commission on all sales. The sales agreement contemplates sales of
up to $150 million of our common stock over a period of up to three years. As of December 31, 2018, we had sold
2,883,344 shares of our common stock pursuant to the sales agreement and have received $94.6 million in proceeds,
net of $2.6 million of offering costs, including commissions paid to JonesTrading.

In August 2018, Overstock signed a Token Purchase Agreement with GSR Capital Ltd., a Cayman Islands exempted
company ("GSR"), and a term sheet contemplating a sale of Overstock common stock to GSR. Concurrently, tZERO
signed a term sheet contemplating a sale of tZERO common stock to GSR.

The Token Purchase Agreement sets forth the terms on which GSR agreed to purchase, for $30 million, on May 6,
2019 or such other date as may be agreed by the parties, security tokens at a price of $6.67 per security token. These
security tokens were issued by tZERO to Overstock in satisfaction of $30 million of tZERO's indebtedness to
Overstock. We may be required to obtain additional tokens in order to fulfill our obligations under the agreement. The
agreement states that the obligations of GSR to complete the transaction described will be subject to conditions, some
of which are unidentified.

The previously-announced GSR equity investments in Overstock and tZERO contemplated by the term sheets did not
occur. However, we remain in discussions with GSR Capital and Makara Capital, a key partner of GSR Capital,
regarding a potential transaction. Both have recently signed an memorandum of understanding (“MOU”’) with tZERO
outlining a transaction in which Makara and GSR would co-lead an investment of up to $100 million in tZERO
common stock and close the transaction in April subject to due diligence, negotiation of binding contracts and
regulatory approval. The investors would also assist with tZERO’s expansion in Asia and other regions of the world
and link them with other key partners from their portfolios. If a definitive agreement is reached, the terms, including
the amount purchased, number of shares, and/or post money valuation of tZERO, may be less favorable than the terms
contemplated under the MOU. There can be no assurance that tZERO, Makara or GSR will enter into a definitive
agreement regarding the proposed transaction.

Free cash flow
"Free Cash Flow" (a non-GAAP measure) for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, was $(167.6) million and
$(58.8) million, respectively. See Non-GAAP Financial Measures below for a reconciliation of Free Cash Flow to net

cash provided by (used in) operating activities.

Cash flows from operating activities
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For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, our operating activities resulted in net cash outflow of $138.9
million and $35.2 million, respectively.

Cash received from customers generally corresponds to our net revenues as our customers primarily use credit cards to
buy from us causing our receivables from these sales transactions to settle quickly. We have payment terms with our
partners that generally extend beyond the amount of time necessary to collect proceeds from our customers. As a
result, following our typically seasonally strong fourth quarter sales, at December 31 of each year, our cash, cash
equivalents and accounts payable balances normally reach their highest level (other than as a result of cash flows
provided by or used in investing and financing activities). However, our accounts payable balance normally declines
during the first three months following year-end, which normally results in a decline in our cash and cash equivalents
balances from the year-end balance. The seasonality of our
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business normally causes payables and accruals to grow significantly in the fourth quarter, and then decrease in the
first quarter when they are typically paid.

The $138.9 million of net cash used in operating activities during the year ended December 31, 2018 was primarily
from a consolidated net loss of $217.6 million, partially offset by cash provided by operating assets and liabilities of
$19.5 million, and certain non-cash items including depreciation and amortization expense of $31.7 million,
stock-based compensation of $14.4 million, impairment losses, net of realized gains, recognized on cryptocurrency
holdings of $2.1 million, loss on equity investments, net of $2.8 million, loss on disposal of business and other asset
abandonments of $3.6 million, and impairment on intangible assets of $6.0 million.

The $35.2 million of net cash used in operating activities during the year ended December 31, 2017 was primarily
from a consolidated net loss of $111.9 million, and cash used by operating assets and liabilities of $30.3 million.
These were partially offset by certain non-cash items including deferred income taxes of $65.2 million, depreciation
and amortization of $32.8 million, stock-based compensation of $4.1 million, and loss on equity investments, net of
$6.0 million.

Cash flows from investing activities

For the year ended December 31, 2018, investing activities resulted in net cash outflows of $110.9 million, primarily
from purchases of equity investments of $48.7 million, expenditures for fixed assets of $28.7 million, acquisitions of
businesses, net of cash acquired of $12.9 million, purchase of intangible assets of $9.6 million, deposits made in
advance of $8.0 million, and disbursements for loans made of $3.1 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, investing activities resulted in net cash outflows of $18.0 million, primarily
from expenditures for fixed assets of $23.6 million and purchases of equity investments of $5.2 million, offset by
proceeds from sale of precious metals of $11.9 million.

Cash flows from financing activities

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, financing activities resulted in net cash inflows of $189.0 million
and $73.3 million, respectively.

The $189.0 million provided by financing activities during the year ended December 31, 2018 resulted primarily from
$94.6 million of proceeds from sales of our common stock, $82.4 million of proceeds from the tZERO security token
offering, $50.6 million of proceeds from sales and exercises of stock warrants, and $6.7 million of proceeds from sale
of subsidiary shares, offset by $40.0 million of repayments on our PCL term loan and $4.6 million of taxes withheld
upon vesting of restricted stock.

The $73.3 million provided by financing activities during the year ended December 31, 2017 resulted primarily
from $106.5 million of proceeds from sales and exercises of stock warrants, $40.0 million of proceeds from our PCL
term loan, offset by $45.8 million of repayments on our U.S. Bank term loan, $15.3 million of repayments on lease
finance obligations with U.S. Bank, $10.0 million of purchases of treasury stock and $1.2 million of taxes withheld
upon vesting of restricted stock.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2018 and the effect such obligations
and commitments are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flow in future periods (in thousands):
Payments Due by Period
Contractual Obligations 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Thereafter Total
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Operating leases

8,822 7414 7,654 7,579 6,677 19,571

Purchase obligations 2,569 — — — — —
Technology services 2,031 1,693 — — — —
High bench senior credit agreement — 3,069 — — — —

Total contractual cash obligations

66

$13,422 $9,107 $7,654 $7,579 $6,677 $ 19,571

57,717
2,569
3,724
3,069
$64,010
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Operating leases
From time to time we enter into operating leases for facilities and equipment for use in our operations.
Purchase obligations

The amount of purchase obligations shown above is based on assumptions regarding the legal enforceability against
us of inventory purchase orders we had outstanding at December 31, 2018. Under different assumptions regarding our
rights to cancel our purchase orders or different assumptions regarding the enforceability of the purchase orders under
applicable law, the amount of purchase obligations shown in the table above would be less.

High bench senior credit agreement

We are party to a financing agreement acquired in connection with our acquisition of Mac Warehouse, LLC
(see Borrowings below). The amounts presented reflect our related principal payments.

Technology services

From time to time we enter into long-term contractual agreements for technology services and capital leases for
equipment included in such service agreements.

Tax contingencies

We are involved in various tax matters, the outcomes of which are uncertain. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, tax
contingencies were $1.5 million and $1.7 million, respectively, which are included in our reconciliation of
unrecognized tax benefits (see Item 15 of Part IV, "Financial Statements"—Note 18. Income Taxes, contained in the
"Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" of this Annual Report on Form 10-K). We expect the total amount of
tax contingencies to increase in the future. In addition, changes in state, federal, and foreign tax laws may increase our
tax contingencies. The timing of the resolution of income tax contingencies is highly uncertain, and the amounts
ultimately paid, if any, upon resolution of issues raised by the taxing authorities may differ from the amounts accrued.
It is reasonably possible that within the next 12 months we will receive additional assessments by various tax
authorities. These assessments may or may not result in changes to our contingencies related to positions on prior
years' tax filings.

Borrowings
High Bench Senior Credit Agreement

On June 25, 2018, we became party to a senior credit agreement, as amended, with High Bench-Mac
Warehouse-Senior Debt, LLC ("High Bench Loan"), in connection with our acquisition of Mac Warehouse, LLC.
Under the amended agreement, the loan carries an annual interest rate of 11.0% and a default rate of 18.0%. The High
Bench Loan is subject to monthly interest only payments with the remaining principal amount and any then unpaid
interest due and payable on April 18, 2020. The High Bench Loan is subject to mandatory prepayment under certain
circumstances, and is prepayable at our election at any time without penalty or premium. There are no financial
covenants associated the High Bench Loan. At December 31, 2018, our outstanding balance on the High Bench Loan
was $3.1 million.

Letters of credit
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At December 31, 2018 and 2017, letters of credit totaling $280,000 and $355,000, were issued on our behalf
collateralized by compensating cash balances held at a bank, which are included in Restricted cash in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Commercial purchasing card agreement
We have a commercial purchasing card (the "Purchasing Card") agreement. We use the Purchasing Card for business
purpose purchasing and must pay it in full each month. At December 31, 2018, $48,000 was outstanding and $952,000

was available under the Purchasing Card. At December 31, 2017, $822,000 was outstanding and $4.2 million was
available under the Purchasing Card.
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Other Factors that May Affect Future Results

We periodically evaluate opportunities to repurchase our equity securities, obtain credit facilities, or issue additional
debt or equity securities. In addition, we may, from time to time, consider the investment in, or acquisition of,
complementary businesses, products, services, or technologies, any of which might affect our liquidity requirements
or cause us to issue additional debt or equity securities. There can be no assurance that financing arrangements will be
available in amounts or on terms acceptable to us, if at all. Our future results may be significantly different from our
historical results for several other reasons as well, including the possibility discussed in this Annual Report on

Form 10-K that we may sell our retail business, which would have a dramatic effect on our future results. Other
reasons that our future results may be significantly different from our historical results include the potential effects on
us of the accounting and tax changes discussed in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and other reasons described in
Item 1. "Business" under "Our Retail Business" and "Our Medici Business," as well as the risk factors described in
Item 1A. "Risk Factors."

Any investment in our securities involves a high degree of risk. Investors should consider carefully the risks and
uncertainties described in this Form 10-K, including the risks described in Item 1A of Part I, "Risk Factors", and all
other information in this Form 10-K and in our other filings with the SEC including those we file after we file this
Form 10-K, before deciding whether to purchase or hold our securities. Additional risks and uncertainties not
currently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also become important factors that may harm our
business. The occurrence of any of the risks described under "Risk Factors" in this report could harm our business.
The trading price of our securities could decline due to any of these risks and uncertainties, and investors may lose
part or all of their investment.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect
on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity,
capital expenditures or capital resources that would be material to investors.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Regulation G, Conditions for Use of Non-GAAP Financial Measures, and other SEC regulations regulate the
disclosure of certain non-GAAP financial information.

Free cash flow

Free cash flow (a non-GAAP financial measure) reflects an additional way of viewing our cash flows and liquidity
that, when viewed with our GAAP results, provides a more complete understanding of factors and trends affecting our
cash flows and liquidity. Free cash flow, which we reconcile below to "Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities," the nearest GAAP financial measure, is net cash provided by (used in) operating activities reduced by
"Expenditures for fixed assets, including internal-use software and website development." We believe that net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities is an important measure, since it includes both the cash impact of the
continuing operations of the business and changes in the balance sheet that impact cash. We believe free cash flow is a
useful measure to evaluate our business since purchases of fixed assets are a necessary component of ongoing
operations and free cash flow measures the amount of cash we have available for mandatory debt service and
financing obligations, changes in our capital structure, and future investments after purchases of fixed assets. Free
cash flow measures have limitations as they omit certain components of the overall consolidated statement of cash
flows and do not represent the residual cash flow available for discretionary expenditures. Free cash flow should not
be considered a substitute for net income or cash flow data prepared in accordance with GAAP and may not be
comparable to similarly titled measures used by other companies. Therefore, we believe it is important to view free
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cash flow as a complement to our entire consolidated statements of cash flows as reconciled below (in thousands):

Year ended

December 31,

2018 2017 2016
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $(138,934) $(35,221) $39,564
Expenditures for fixed assets, including internal-use software and website (28.680 ) (23.586 ) (72.281 )
development
Free cash flow $(167,614) $(58,807) $(32,717)
68
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Our financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts and contracts receivable, accounts
payable and long-term obligations. We consider highly-liquid instruments with a remaining maturity of 90 days or less
at the date of purchase to be cash equivalents. We currently do not hold any derivative financial instruments or foreign
exchange contracts.

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to our short-term investments and short-term
obligations; thus, fluctuations in interest rates would not have a material impact on the fair value of these securities.
However, the fair values of our investments may be subject to fluctuations due to volatility of the stock market in
general, investment-specific circumstances, and changes in general economic conditions.

At December 31, 2018, we had $141.5 million in cash and cash equivalents. Hypothetically, an increase or decrease in
interest rates of one hundred basis points would have an estimated impact of $1.4 million on our earnings or loss, or
the cash flows of these instruments.

At December 31, 2018, letters of credit totaling $280,000 were outstanding under collateralized compensating cash
balances held at our bank. Hypothetically, an increase or decrease in interest rates of one hundred basis points would
have an estimated impact of $3,000 on our earnings or loss if the letters of credit were fully drawn.

At December 31, 2018, we had cryptocurrency-denominated assets totaling $2.4 million. Hypothetically, an increase
or decrease in the market value of one hundred basis points would have an estimated impact of $24,000 on our
earnings or loss, or the recorded value of these instruments. It is generally not our policy to hold material amounts of
cryptocurrency because of volatility and market risk.

At December 31, 2018, our recorded value in equity investments in public and private companies was $60.4 million.
Our equity investments in publicly traded companies represent $2.6 million of our equity investments as

of December 31, 2018, and are recorded at fair value, which is subject to market price volatility. We perform a
qualitative assessment for our equity investments in private companies to identify impairment. If this assessment
indicates that an impairment exists, we estimate the fair value of the investment and, if the fair value is less than
carrying value, we write down the investment to fair value. Our assessment includes a review of recent operating
results and trends, recent sales/acquisitions of the investee securities, and other publicly available data. Valuations of
private companies are inherently more complex due to the lack of readily available market data. As such, we believe
that market sensitivities are not practicable.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The financial statements and supplementary data required by this item are included in Part IV, Item 15 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). The term disclosure controls and procedures
means controls and other procedures of an issuer that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed
by the issuer in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported, within the time periods specified in the Commission's rules and forms.
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Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by an issuer in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is
accumulated and communicated to the issuer's management, including its principal executive and principal financial
officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.
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Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation required by the Exchange Act under the supervision and with the participation of our
principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Exchange Act, as of the end of the period
covered by this report. Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurance that information
required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms and to provide reasonable
assurance that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives as
specified above. Management does not expect, however, that our disclosure controls and procedures will prevent or
detect all error and fraud. Any control system, no matter how well designed and operated, is based upon certain
assumptions and can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that its objectives will be met. Further, no
evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that misstatements due to error or fraud will not occur or that all
control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected.

(b) Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act.

Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not
prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management has assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018.
In making our assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, management used the
criteria set forth in Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission ("COSO"). Based on this assessment, management has concluded that, as
of December 31, 2018, our internal control over financial reporting was effective.

Our internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving its objectives as
specified above. Management does not expect, however, that our internal control over financial reporting will prevent
or detect all error and fraud. Any control system, no matter how well designed and operated, is based upon certain
assumptions and can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that its objectives will be met. Further, no
evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that misstatements due to error or fraud will not occur or that all
control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018 has been audited by
KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is in Item 9A(c).
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(c) Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors

Overstock.com, Inc.:

Opinion on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We have audited Overstock.com, Inc. and subsidiaries' (the Company) internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2018, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. In our opinion, the Company maintained, in
all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (PCAOB), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the related
consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flows
for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2018, and the related notes and financial statement
schedule II (collectively, the consolidated financial statements), and our report dated March 18, 2019 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered
with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit
also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

/s/ KPMG LLP
Salt Lake City, Utah
March 18, 2019
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(d) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

During the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2018, there has not occurred any change in our internal control over
financial reporting that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information regarding our Executive Officers required by Item 10 of Part III is set forth in Item 1 of Part I under
"Business—Executive Officers of the Registrant." Information required by Item 10 of Part III regarding our Board of
Directors and any material changes to the process by which security holders may recommend nominees to the Board
of Directors will be included in our definitive proxy statement for our 2019 annual meeting of stockholders, and is
incorporated herein by reference. Information relating to compliance with Section 16(a) of the 1934 Act will be set
forth in our definitive proxy statement for our 2019 annual meeting of stockholders and is incorporated herein by
reference.

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics ("Code"), which applies to all employees of the Company,
including our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, and principal accounting officer. We intend to
disclose any amendments to the Code and any waivers granted to our principal executive officer, principal financial
officer or principal accounting officer or other persons to the extent required by applicable rules or regulations in the
Investor Relations section of our Website, www.overstock.com. We will provide a copy of the Code to any person
without any charge upon request in writing addressed to Overstock.com. Attn: Investor Relations, 799 West Coliseum
Way, Midvale, UT 84047.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our definitive proxy statement for the 2019
annual meeting of stockholders.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Except as set forth herein, the information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our definitive proxy
statement for the 2019 annual meeting of stockholders.

The following graph compares the total cumulative stockholder return, on our common stock with the total cumulative
return of the NASDAQ Market Index—U.S. ("NASDAQ Market Index") and the Morningstar Specialty Retail Index
("Morningstar Group Index") during the period commencing on January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2018. The
graph assumes a $100 investment at the beginning of the period in our common stock, the NASDAQ Market Index
and the Morningstar Group Index, and the reinvestment of any dividends. Historic stock price performance is not
necessarily indicative of future stock price performance.
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COMPARISON OF YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our definitive proxy statement for the 2019
annual meeting of stockholders.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our definitive proxy statement for the 2019
annual meeting of stockholders.

74

139



Edgar Filing: OVERSTOCK.COM, INC - Form 10-K

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
1. Financial Statements

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 83
Consolidated Balance Sheets 84
Consolidated Statements of Operations 85
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) 86
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity 87
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 89
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 90
Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 124

2. Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts listed in (1) above is included herein. Schedules other than those
listed above have been omitted as they are either not required, not applicable, or the information has otherwise been
shown in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits
Exhibit o . . R Filed
Number Exhibit Description Form File No.  Exhibit Filing Date Herewith

Asset Purchase Agreement by and between Cirrus November
2.1® Technologies, LLC, as Seller, and Cirrus Services 10-Q 000-49799 2.1 9.2015
LLC. as Buyer, dated as of August 26, 2015 ’

Pro Securities. LLLC Membership Interest Purchase

Agreement by and among Joseph Cammarata and November
(b) Agreement by and among Joseph Lamimarata and - ~
22 John Paul DeVito. as Sellers. and Medici. Inc.. as 10-Q 000-49799 2.2 9, 2015

Buyer. dated as of August 26. 2015

SpeedRoute L.I.C Membership Interest Purchase

Agreement by and among Joseph Cammarata and November
(b) Agreement by and among Joseph Lammarata and - -
23 John Paul DeVito, as Sellers. and Medici. Inc.. as 10-Q 000-49799 2.3 9, 2015

Buyer. dated as of August 26. 2015

TraderField Securities. Inc. Stock Purchase
Agreement oy and between Joseph Lamimarata, as
2 4 Agreement by and between Joseph Cammarata, as 10-Q 000-49799 2.4 November

Seller. and Medici. Inc.. as Buyer. dated as of August 9, 2015
26, 2015
. . July 29,
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation 10-Q 000-49799 3.1 2014
May 4,
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws 10-Q 000-49799 3.1 2017
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Exhibit Description Form File No.  Exhibit Filing Date

Certificate of Designation for Blockchain Voting i i
Series A Preferred Stock 8-K  000-49799 3.1

Certificate of Designation for Voting Series B 8K  000-49799 3.2
Preferred Stock

Form of specimen common stock certificate S-1/A 333-83728 4.1

Form of Stock Certificate for Voting Series B 8K  000-49799 4.2
Preferred Stock

Registration Rights Agreement dated December 15.

2016 by and among Overstock.com. Inc. and Patrick i i

M. Byrne. individually and as representative of each 8-K 000-49799 4.1
of the Participating Affiliates (as defined therein)

Form of Participating Affiliate Agreement (included
in Exhibit 4.3)

Amendment No. 1 to Registration Rights Agreement

effective March 10. 2017 by and among i i
Overstock.com. Inc. and Patrick M. Byrne, 10-Q 000-49799 4.2
individually and in his representative capacity

Amendment No. 2 to Registration Rights Agreement

effective June 10. 2017 by and among i i
Overstock.com. Inc. and Patrick M. Byrne, 10-Q 000-49799 4.1
individually and in his representative capacity

Certificate of Designation for Blockchain Voting
Series A Preferred Stock (see Exhibit 3.3)

Certificate of Designation for Voting Series B
Preferred Stock (see Exhibit 3.4)

Form of Warrant issued to Passport Special
Opportunities Master Fund, L.P. dated November 8,
2017 (included in Exhibit 10.20)

Amendment dated November 13. 2017 to Warrant

issued to Passport Special Opportunities Master Fund, 8-K/A 000-49799 4.1.2
L.P. dated November 8. 2017

Form of Warrant issued to Quantum Partners LP
dated November 8, 2017 (included in Exhibit 10.21)

December
15,2016

December
15,2016

May 6,
2002

November
14, 2016

December
15,2016

May 4,

2017

August 3,
2017

November
13,2017

Herewith
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Amendment dated November 13. 2017 to Warrant
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issued to Quantum Partners P dated November 8. 8-K/A 000-49799 4.2.2

2017

Form of Indemnification Agreement between
Overstock.com. Inc. and each of its directors and

officers

Overstock.com. Inc. Amended and Restated 2005
Equity Incentive Plan

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice and

Restricted Stock Agreement under the 2005 Equity 10-K
Incentive Plan

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated May 5. 2014
between O.Com Land LL.C. Gardner Bingham
Junction Holdings. L..C. and Arbor Bingham Junction
Holdings. L.C.

First Amendment dated July 29, 2014 to Purchase and
Sale Agreement dated May 5. 2014 between O.Com 3.K
Land LIL.C. Gardner Bingham Junction Holdings. L..C.

and Arbor Bingham Junction Holdings. L.C.

Second Amendment dated September 3. 2014 to

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated May 5. 2014

between O.Com Land LI.C. Gardner Bingham 8-K
Junction Holdings. L..C. and Arbor Bingham Junction
Holdings. L.C.

Project Management Agreement dated May 5. 2014 3.K
between O.Com Land I.I.C and Gardner CMS. L..C.

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated September 17,
2014 by and between the Redevelopment Agency of 8-K
Midvale City and O.com Land LL.C

Loan Agreement dated November 6. 2017 among
0O.Com Land. as Borrower, Overstock as Guarantor, 8-K

and PCI as I ender

Promissory Note dated November 6. 2017 made by 3.K
0.Com Land and payable to the order of PCL
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Deed of Trust. Assignment of Rents. Assignment of
Leases. Security Agreement and Fixture Filing dated

November 6. 2017 made by O.Com Land for the
benefit of PCLL

Guaranty of Overstock.com. Inc. dated November 6.
2017 for the benefit of PCL

Environmental Indemnity Agreement made by
0O.Com Land dated November 6. 2017 for the benefit

of PCL,

Lease Subordination Agreement dated November 6.
2017 among O.Com Land. Overstock and PCL

Medici Ventures, Inc. 2017 Stock Option Plan

Summary of unwritten compensation arrangements
with Directors

Lease Agreement dated October 24, 2014 between
O.com Land. I.I.C and Overstock.com Inc.

Dealer-Manager Agreement. dated as of November 1.
2016, between Overstock.com. Inc. and Source

Capital Group. Inc.

Software Licensing Agreement. dated November 2.
2016 between Overstock and SiteHelix Inc.

Securities Purchase Agreement. dated as of
November 8. 2017, between Overstock.com. Inc. and

Passport Special Opportunities Master Fund. L..P.

Securities Purchase Agreement. dated as of
November 8. 2017, between Overstock.com. Inc. and

Quantum Partners LLP

t0.com 2017 Equity Incentive Plan

t0.com. Inc. 2017 Equity Incentive Plan as amended
and restated on May 21, 2018

Memorandum of Understanding dated December 27.
2017 by and among Overstock.com. Inc.. Medici
Ventures. Inc.. Patrick Byrne and Hernando de Soto
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Notice of Stock Option Grant effective May 21. 2018 Aueust 9

10.25@ dated June 6. 2018 between t0.com. Inc. and Saum 10-Q 000-49799 10.2 201gg ’
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Stock Purchase Agreement dated June 28. 2018 Tune 29

10.26@®)X©)  between Saum Noursalehi and the other stockholders 8-K  000-49799 10.1 2018 ’

of SiteHelix. Inc.. and Overstock.com. Inc.

Description of unwritten compensation arrangement August 9
(a) bescription of unwrittén compensation arrangement ~ ~ g >
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